
 AS S O C I A T I O N  O F  B A Y  AR E A  GO V E R N M E N T S  
Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area 

C A L L  A N D  N O T I C E  

CALL AND NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE OF 
THE ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 

As Chair of the Administrative Committee of the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), 
I am calling a special meeting of the ABAG Administrative Committee as follows: 

 

Special Meeting 

Friday, February 13, 2015, 9:30 AM 

Location: 

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter 
Lawrence D. Dahms Auditorium 
101 8th Street 
Oakland, California 

 

The ABAG Administrative Committee may act on any item on this agenda. 

Agenda and attachments available at abag.ca.gov 

This meeting is scheduled to be audiocast live on the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
website at mtc.ca.gov 

For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (510) 464 7913. 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / CONFIRM QUORUM 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. COMPENSATION ANNOUCEMENT 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of MTC Planning Committee Summary Minutes of January 9, 2015 

MTC Planning Committee ACTION 

B. ABAG Administrative Committee Consent Calendar 

ABAG Administrative Committee ACTION 

i. Approval of ABAG Administrative Committee Summary Minutes of 
November 14, 2014 

Call and Notice

http://abag.ca.gov/
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


ABAG Administrative Committee 
February 13, 2015 
2 
 
 

 

ii. Approval of ABAG Administrative Committee Summary Minutes of 
February 2, 2015 

iii. Adoption of Resolution No. 01-15 

5. FINAL DRAFT MTC PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN 

ABAG Administrative Committee Information / MTC Planning Committee ACTION 

6. PRIORITY DEVELOPMENT AREA CRITERIA 

ABAG Administrative Committee ACTION / MTC Planning Committee Information 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT / OTHER BUSINESS / NEXT MEETING / ADJOURNMENT 

 

Members of the public shall be provided an opportunity to directly address the ABAG 
Administrative Committee concerning any item described in this notice before consideration of 
that item. 

Agendas and materials will be posted and distributed for this meeting by ABAG staff in the 
normal course of business. 

 

 

 

Julie Pierce 
Chair, Administrative Committee 

 

Date Submitted:  February 6, 2015 

Date Posted:  February 9, 2015 

Call and Notice



 AS S O C I A T I O N  O F  B A Y  AR E A  GO V E R N M E N T S  
Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area 

A G E N D A  

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

Special Joint Meeting with the MTC Planning Committee 

Friday, February 13, 2015, 9:30 AM 

Location: 

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter 
Lawrence D. Dahms Auditorium 
101 8th Street 
Oakland, California 

 

The ABAG Administrative Committee may act on any item on this agenda. 

Agenda and attachments available at abag.ca.gov 

***Attachment sent to MTC Planning Committee. 

This meeting is scheduled to be audiocast live on the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
website at mtc.ca.gov 

For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (510) 464 7913. 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / CONFIRM QUORUM 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. COMPENSATION ANNOUCEMENT 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of MTC Planning Committee Summary Minutes of January 9, 2015 

MTC Planning Committee ACTION 

Attachment:  MTC Planning Committee Summary Minutes of November 14, 2014*** 

B. ABAG Administrative Committee Consent Calendar 

ABAG Administrative Committee ACTION 

i. Approval of ABAG Administrative Committee Summary Minutes of 
November 14, 2014 

Attachment:  Summary Minutes of November 14, 2014 

  

Agenda

http://abag.ca.gov/
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/


ABAG Administrative Committee 
February 13, 2015 
2 
 

ii. Approval of ABAG Administrative Committee Summary Minutes of 
February 2, 2015 

Attachment:  Summary Minutes of February 2, 2015 

iii. Adoption of Resolution No. 01-15 

Attachments:  Staff Memo Clean Vessel Act Proposal; CVA Resolution; CVA Final 
Proposal; CVA Budget 

5. FINAL DRAFT MTC PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN 

ABAG Administrative Committee Information / MTC Planning Committee ACTION 

Ellen Griffin, MTC, will review comments received on the Revised Draft Public Participation 
Plan (released for public review on November 7, 2014), describe revisions in response to 
comments, and seek referral of the Plan to the full Commission for approval. 

Attachments:  Staff Memo on Final Draft Public Participation Plan; Final Draft MTC Public 
Participation Plan; Abstract MTC Resolution No. 4174 

6. PRIORITY DEVELOPMENT AREA CRITERIA 

ABAG Administrative Committee ACTION / MTC Planning Committee Information 

Duane Bay, ABAG, and Doug Johnson, MTC, will present the criteria used to establish and 
refine the Bay Area’s Priority Development Areas (PDAs).  PDAs were established in 2007 
during the joint agency FOCUS initiative. 

Attachment:  Staff Memo on Priority Development Areas Criteria Review 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT / OTHER BUSINESS / NEXT MEETING / ADJOURNMENT 

 

Submitted: 

 

 

Ezra Rapport, Secretary-Treasurer 

 

 

Date Submitted:  February 6, 2015 

Date Posted:  February 9, 2015 

 

Agenda



 

 

 

MTC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

January 9, 2015 

MINUTES  

 

ATTENDANCE 

Chair Spering called the MTC Planning Committee meeting to order at  

9:30 a.m. Planning Committee members in attendance were: Commissioners 

Haggerty, Liccardo, Mackenzie and Pierce. Commission Chair Rein-Worth 

and Vice-Chair Cortese were present in their ex-officio voting member 

capacity. Commissioner Bates, Campos, Tissier and Wiener were present as 

ad hoc non-voting members of the Committee.  

 

CONSENT CALENDAR: Minutes of December 12, 2014 

Commissioner Mackenzie moved approval of the Consent Calendar and  

Commissioner Pierce seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 

   

VITAL SIGNS PERFORMANCE MONITORING INITIATIVE 

Mr. David Vautin presented an overview of MTC’s new performance monitoring 

initiative to track regional trends and summarized findings from Phase 1A – 

Transportation. He concluded with a preview of the upcoming Vital Signs 

performance monitoring website. 

 

Committee discussion: 

 Commissioner Spering asked how this will be used in the next round of the 

Plan. Mr. Vautin stated that it will help staff understand areas that the region has 

fallen short in the past. The data should help refine the vision for the Plan Bay 

Area Update. 

 Commissioner Spering asked, when the data show that 77% of Bay Area 

residents commute by car, what accommodations are being made for those 

people? Do we want to change that trend or do we want to help facilitate that 

commute? Mr. Heminger noted that staff is trying to integrate performance at 

every level to support decision-making. Performance measures have been used 

in the Plan to evaluate projects for all modes. That analysis indicated that 

traditional heavy capital investments are not necessarily the best place to spend 

money. The performance discipline is highlighting the extent to which staff 

needs to focus more on operational improvements. 

 Commissioner Weiner stated that this really shows that transit capacity has not 

kept up with us. He indicated that he hopes that this will spur efforts statewide, 

regionally and locally to increase the investment in transit capacity. 

 Commissioner Cortese noted that tracking what’s going on with the non-public 

carriers, such as Google with their free shuttles, would be interesting to see how 

it impacts the much larger numbers in the Bay Area. He also asked how much 

staff is looking at demographic changes over time. Mr. Heminger noted  
 

Agenda Item 4a 

Item 4.A.



January 9, 2015 Minutes 

Page 2 

 

that staff wants to get Google and other major firms involved, because if you add all of the 

private shuttles together they may be the seventh or eighth largest transit operation in the Bay 

Area. He also responded to the demographic changes and noted that there is growth in 

demographic groups that will probably favor transit more than not. 

 Commissioner Worth stated that staff needs to look at issues around work hours and consider 

how changes to employer operations might be able to provide flexibility. 

 Commissioner Pierce asked if there will be an audio narrative on the website. Mr. Vautin 

responded yes, and that staff is working on creating a series of short videos. Commissioner 

Pierce also stated that commute flow charts would work well with employers for subsidies or 

independently privately funded shuttles such as the ones Google uses. She also suggested that 

staff make note on the website that the data shown is not real time – it may be 1-2 years old. 

 Commissioner Spering suggested that staff reference where the real time traffic data can be 

located. 

 Commissioner Haggerty commented on the lack of tracking people moving from adjacent 

regions, and asked what those communities are doing transit-wise. He asked if there is a 

better way to track people moving into the Bay Area.  

 Commissioner Mackenzie commented on “real-time” and significant changes that have taken 

place over the last 12 months in terms of busier roadways and more transit crowding. He also 

commented on the changing traffic patterns and commute patterns on Highway 37 and 

Highway 101, and how important it is to show the real-time data. 

 Commissioner Bates suggested staff create a campaign to use for the existing transportation 

network. Get the state to incentivize the employers to give their employees flexibility. He 

also suggested getting BART to carry more passengers – possibly building another transbay 

tube for BART to access San Francisco. 

 Commissioner Campos inquired about the outreach process for Vital Signs. Mr. Vautin stated 

that staff is working on their outreach plan for when they launch their site in a few weeks. 

They plan on a series of press releases, social media, and will make sure the site is available 

in a large number of languages in hopes that it will attract diversity in terms of the 

viewership. Staff has been talking to working groups and stakeholders from the various 

counties and cities to get the word out through those venues.  

 Commissioner Campos noted that community-based organizations are one way of getting the 

word out, as well as accessing ethnic media. He also commented on displacement and asked 

if there is any way of knowing how displacement impacted traffic congestion. Mr. Vautin 

stated that it’s difficult to track displacement, and trying to make that correlation with traffic 

trends is very difficult. Staff will have more answers and more clarity when they come back 

with the land use and economic data. 

 

Public Comment: 

 Mr. Ken Bukowski asked staff to improve the contrast of colors on their presentations as it is 

difficult to read. He also suggested staff do a traffic model with this, or consider putting an 

express bus lane on the Bay Bridge to see how it impacts traffic. 

 Clarence Fischer commended staff on this being one of the best presentations to date among 

the regional agencies and for providing easily accessible data that will be available for the 

public and other agencies. He suggested adding, for a potential data source in the future, as 

Item 4.A.



January 9, 2015 Minutes 

Page 3 

 

staff looks as public transit data ridership statistics to also include for each operator the 

number of route miles and routes per year. 

 Jane Kramer commented on the concern of how to reduce time spent in congestion, and one 

suggestion is to stagger work hours. The Commission needs to keep in mind that they cannot 

determine the way people want to organize their lives and that there are many considerations 

needed to make in their daily lives, including childcare in some cases.  

 

 

OTHER BUSINESS/PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Ken Bukowski stated that he is now a Notary Public. There being no other business, the 

meeting adjourned at 10:46 a.m. The Committee’s next meeting is scheduled for Friday, 

February 13, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. in the Lawrence D. Dahms Auditorium, Joseph P. Bort 

MetroCenter, Oakland, CA. 

 

Item 4.A.



Blank Page 



SUMMARY MINUTES (DRAFT) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Special Meeting 

Friday, November 14, 2014 
Lawrence D. Dahms Auditorium 

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter 
101 8th Street, Oakland, California 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND CONFIRM QUORUM 

Committee Chair Julie Pierce, Councilmember, City of Clayton, called the special meeting of 
the Administrative Committee of the Association of Bay Area Governments to order at about 
9:30 a.m. 

The Committee met jointly with the Planning Committee of the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission. 

A quorum of the Committee was present. 

Members Present 

Councilmember Julie Pierce, City of Clayton 
Supervisor Dave Cortese, County of Santa Clara 
Councilmember Pat Eklund, City of Novato 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, County of Alameda 
Mayor Bill Harrison, City of Fremont 
Councilmember Sam Liccardo, City of San Jose 
Supervisor Mark Luce, County of Napa 
Supervisor Eric Mar, City and County of San Francisco 
Mayor Jean Quan, City of Oakland 
Supervisor James Spering, County of Solano 

Members Absent 

Supervisor David Rabbitt, County of Sonoma 

MTC Planning Committee members in attendance were:  Commissioners Giacopini, 
Haggerty, Halsted, Kinsey, Liccardo, Luce, and Mackenzie. Commission Chair Rein-Worth, 
and Vice Chair Cortese were present in their ex-officio voting member capacity.  
Commissioner Bates, Quan, and Wiener, were present as ad hoc non-voting members of 
the Committee.  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairs Pierce and Spering led the Committee members and public in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

3. COMPENSATION ANNOUCEMENT 

Fred Castro, ABAG Clerk of the Board, made the Compensation Announcement. 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of MTC Planning Committee Summary Minutes of October 10, 2014 

MTC Committee approved the MTC Planning Committee summary minutes of 
October 10, 2014. 

Item 4.B.(i), Summary Minutes



Summary Minutes (Draft) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Special Meeting 

Friday, November 14, 2014 
2 
 

B. Approval of ABAG Administrative Committee Summary Minutes of July 11, 2014 

Chair Pierce recognized a motion by Luce which was seconded by Eklund to approve 
the ABAG Administrative Committee summary minutes of July 11, 2014. 

There was no discussion. 

The aye votes were:  Pierce, Cortese, Eklund, Luce, Quan, Spering. 

The nay votes were:  None. 

Abstentions were:  None. 

Absent were:  Haggerty, Harrison, Liccardo, Mar, Rabbitt 

The motion passed unanimously. 

5. PLANNING AND IMPLEMENTATION IN THE BAY AREA’S “BIG THREE” CITIES 

Mr. Ken Kirkey, MTC, introduced Mr. Harry Freitas, Mr. Michael Brilliot, and Mr. Steve 
Piasecki from the City of San Jose; Mr. John Rahaim, and Mr. Gil Kelley from the City of 
San Francisco; and, Ms. Rachel Flynn from the City of Oakland all of which presented an 
overview of their city’s plan for future growth, alignment with Plan Bay Area, current 
transportation-related growth challenges, and opportunities to advance the implementation 
of Plan Bay Area at the local level.  

Committee discussion:  

Commissioner Spering commented on the City of San Jose’s presentation and asked how 
industrial growth is integrated into the Plan, and where it’s located.  Mr. Piasecki stated that 
North San Jose has a plan for 32,000 housing units in addition to millions of square feet of 
commercial development. There are 8,000 units that are currently permitted. He indicated 
that both Downtown San Jose and the city’s designated urban villages encompass 
residential and commercial uses. He clarified that industrial impels manufacturing and 
warehousing uses, and both are prioritized and preserved in the city’s general plan.  

Commissioner Spering commented on the City of San Francisco’s presentation and asked 
about population growth and diversity. Mr. Rahaim stated that the African American 
population is decreasing, and is below 5%, the Hispanic population is approximately 18% 
and the Asian population is about 33%. He noted that most of the growth is in Caucasian 
populations because of the influx of jobs.  

Commissioner Worth commented on the charts that show migration and housing movement 
as helpful to understanding where people are going and what type of transportation 
resources are needed. She asked if they will be able to produce the housing consistent with 
the plans. Mr. Kelley stated that the Mayor of San Francisco has announced a major 
housing initiative that calls for creating 30,000 new housing units by 2020. 

Commissioner Bates expressed his concern with BART being overly crowded due to the 
population growth, and noted that they need to figure out some way to address that.  

Commissioner Wiener stated that MTC adopted the Core Capacity matching grant to try to 
prioritize investment in the core particularly for MUNI, BART, AC Transit and VTA. He noted 
that San Francisco also recently passed Propositions A & B, which will generate additional 
funding for transit capacity in the next 15 years.  

Item 4.B.(i), Summary Minutes



Summary Minutes (Draft) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Special Meeting 

Friday, November 14, 2014 
3 
 

Commissioner Wiener commented on Oakland’s presentation and asked how Oakland has 
been navigating the challenges with the Fire Department and narrow streets. Ms. Flynn 
stated that a lot of it comes down to the Fire Chief and/or Fire Marshall and educating that 
person. She noted that they would like to bring in Nelson Nygaard to talk about a long-term 
plan in changing the vehicle types.  

Commissioner Cortese asked how much economic modeling has been done on what 
happens on the East Bay side once South Bay BART opens. Ms. Flynn stated that they are 
updating their economic development strategy and will report that information once 
complete.  

Commissioner Kinsey recommended that the next generation of planning for the Bay Area 
distinguish the fact that the smaller communities are important. He also asked how Oakland 
is handling the resilience issue responding to the sea-level rise. Ms. Flynn stated that they 
studied that as part of the Environmental Impact Report, and for example with Brooklyn 
Basin they are raising the grade two feet to address this issue, and they brought it up in the 
West Oakland area where it’s most vulnerable. She noted that developers know that this is 
an issue, that if you are right on the waterfront, it will need to be addressed.  

Commissioner Spering stated that it would be good if the “Three Big Cities” could report on 
an annual basis so everyone can understand the importance of the economics of the entire 
Bay Area.  

Commissioner Haggerty suggested that they hear from the next three largest cities, notably 
the City of Fremont, and the City of Santa Rosa.  

Public Comment:  

Mr. Egon Terplan, SPUR, stated that the work they are doing as an organization is to work 
very closely with San Francisco, San Jose, and Oakland on how they take on the question 
of Plan Bay Area implementation and transportation evolution. He highlighted one issue of 
regional importance, which is the question of balancing jobs and housing in the location of 
employment.  

6. PUBLIC COMMENT / OTHER BUSINESS / NEXT MEETING / ADJOURNMENT 

There was no other public comment. 

There was no other business. 

The meeting was adjourned at about 11:25 a.m. 

 

Submitted: 

 

 

Ezra Rapport, Secretary-Treasurer 

 

Date Submitted:  January 28, 2015 

Date Approved:  TBD 

 

Item 4.B.(i), Summary Minutes



Summary Minutes (Draft) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Special Meeting 

Friday, November 14, 2014 
4 
 

For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (510) 464 7913 or 
FredC@abag.ca.gov. 

Item 4.B.(i), Summary Minutes

mailto:FredC@abag.ca.gov


SUMMARY MINUTES (DRAFT) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Special Meeting 

Monday, February 2, 2015 
Lawrence D. Dahms Auditorium 

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter 
101 8th Street, Oakland, California 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND CONFIRM QUORUM 

Committee Chair Julie Pierce, Councilmember, City of Clayton, called the special meeting of 
the Administrative Committee of the Association of Bay Area Governments to order at about 
6:00 p.m. 

Chair Pierce directed Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, to conduct roll call. 

A quorum of the Committee was present. 

Members Present 

Councilmember Julie Pierce, City of Clayton 
Supervisor Dave Cortese, County of Santa Clara (Teleconference) 
Mayor Pro Tem Pat Eklund, City of Novato 
Councilmember Pradeep Gupta, City of South San Francisco 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, County of Alameda 
Mayor Bill Harrison, City of Fremont (Teleconference) 
Supervisor Mark Luce, County of Napa (Teleconference) 
Supervisor Eric Mar, City and County of San Francisco (Teleconference) 
Supervisor David Rabbitt, County of Sonoma (Teleconference) 

Members Absent 

Supervisor James Spering, County of Solano 

Staff Present 

Ezra Rapport, ABAG Excecutive Director 
Kenneth Moy, ABAG Legal Counsel 
Brad Paul, ABAG Deputy Executive Director 
Miriam Chion, ABAG Planning and Research Director 
Susan Hsieh, ABAG Finance Director (Interim) 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

The following individuals gave public comments: 

Kristian Ongoco, SOMA Community Stabilization Fund, spoke on the problems faced by the 
South of Market community, the need for infrastructure improvements, and the need to 
return funds that were apparently embezzled from the Rincon Hill facilities. 

Chris Durazo, Veterans Equity Center, spoke on the Rincon Hill Mello Roos bond funds, 
needed infrastructure improvements, the public trust, and the return of the funds. 

Theresa Imperial, Veterans Equity Center and the Bill Sorro Housing Program, spoke on the 
SOMA Stabilization Fund and its effects on the community, and the return of the funds. 

The Committee entered Closed Session at about 6:10 p.m. 

Item 4.B.(ii), Summary Minutes



Summary Minutes (Draft) 
ABAG Administrative Committee Special Meeting 

Monday, February 2, 2015 
2 
 

3. CLOSED SESSION 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

The City and County of San Francisco demand letter for return of proceeds of a bond issued 
in connection with Rincon Hill CFD. 

The Committee exited Closed Session at about 8:35 p.m. 

4. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 

There was no report out of Closed Session. 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at about 8:35 p.m. 

 

Submitted: 

 

 

Ezra Rapport, Secretary-Treasurer 

 

Date Submitted:  February 3, 2015 

Date Approved:  TBD 

 

For information, contact Fred Castro, Clerk of the Board, at (510) 464 7913 or 
FredC@abag.ca.gov. 

Item 4.B.(ii), Summary Minutes

mailto:FredC@abag.ca.gov


 AS S O C I A T I O N  O F  B A Y  AR E A  GO V E R N M E N T S  
Representing City and County Governments of the San Francisco Bay Area 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: February 6, 2015 
 
To: Administrative Committee 
 
From: Judy Kelly 

Director, San Francisco Estuary Partnership  
 
Subject: Authorization to Submit Proposal and Enter into Grant Agreement 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
SFEP’s multifaceted Clean Vessel Act (CVA) Program will focus on in person direct boater 
education, capacity building for marinas, and pumpout network enhancement within the 11 
County San Francisco Bay and Sacramento Delta Estuary. The combination of boater and 
marina education and capacity building will serve to address the complex nature of sewage 
discharge by providing boaters with the information they need to make correct decisions and 
provide marinas with the tools they need to work with boaters to proactively prevent sewage 
discharge. In addition, SFEP will continue to monitor the pumpouts in the 11 county San 
Francisco Bay Delta Estuary. This monitoring component will help DBW and SFEP continue to 
determine the status, condition and usage of pumpout stations in the pumpout network. Keeping 
track of these parameters allows DBW and SFEP staff to assist in expediting pumpout repair, 
provide data about pumpout systems, and target CVA funding outreach efforts. This program 
will begin in July, 2015 and will continue for 18 months, ending in December, 2016. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
The Board is requested to authorize the Executive Director or designee to submit the CVA 
Program Proposal to the State Parks Division of Boating and Waterways and to enter into a 
grant agreement, if funds are awarded, grant funds not to exceed amount to $282,000 with a 
match amount of $148,308. 
 
Attachments 
 
Grant Proposal 
Grant Budget 

Item 4.B.(iii), Memo CVA Proposal



Blank Page 



 

 -1-  

ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 
EXECUTIVE BOARD 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 01-15 

 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, OR DESIGNEE, TO SUBMIT AN 

APPLICATION AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CALIFORNIA STATE 
PARKS DIVISION OF BOATING AND WATERWAYS ON BEHALF OF THE SAN 

FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP’S CLEAN VESSEL ACT PROGRAM 
 
WHEREAS, the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) is the home 

agency for the San Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP), a coalition of resource 
agencies, non-profits, citizens, and scientists working to protect, restore, and enhance 
water quality and fish and wildlife habitat in and around the San Francisco Bay Delta 
Estuary; and 

 
WHEREAS, ABAG is the eligible to apply to the California State Park’s Division 

of Boating and Waterways 2015 Clean Vessel Act Grant Program as per guidelines 
issued in January, 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the grant proposal seeks to continue a 20 year partnership 

implementing Clean Vessel Act goals and objectives in the San Francisco Bay 
Sacramento Delta Estuary; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Clean Vessel Act Education Program is intended to perform 

outreach and education for recreational boaters and marinas about the location and 
proper use of sewage pumpouts in the 11-county San Francisco Bay Delta Estuary 
Region.  In addition, the program notifies marinas about the opportunity to have 75% of 
the costs of installation or maintenance of the pumpout covered, and monitors the 
current pumpout network (how many pumpouts are functioning and how many hours 
are they operating). 

 
  

Item 4,B.(iii), CVA Resolution



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 
RESOLUTION NO. 01-15 

 

 -2-  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Administrative Committee of 
the Executive Board of the Association of Bay Area Governments hereby authorizes the 
Executive Director or his designee to submit the proposal for funding, and enter into a 
grant agreement if that funding is awarded at a match rate of 33%. 

 
The foregoing was adopted by the Administrative Committee this 13th day of February, 
2015. 
 
 
 

Julie Pierce 
Chair 

 
Certification of Executive Board Approval 

 
I, the undersigned, the appointed and qualified Secretary-Treasurer of the Association 
of Bay Area Governments (Association), do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution 
was adopted by the Administrative Committee of the Association at a duly called 
meeting held on the 13th day of February, 2015. 
 
 
 

Ezra Rapport 
Secretary-Treasurer 

 
Approved as To Legal Form 

 
 
 

Kenneth K. Moy 
Legal Counsel 

 

Item 4,B.(iii), CVA Resolution



CLEAN VESSEL ACT EDUCATION AND OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  
 

APPLICATION SUMMARY 
 
1. Applicant Organization: The San Francisco Estuary Partnership / Association of Bay Area Governments 
 
2. Name and Title of Contact Person: James Muller, Program Manager 
 
3. Address:  
San Francisco Estuary Partnership 
1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400 
Oakland, CA 94612 
 
4. Telephone: (510) 622-2406, Fax: (510) 622-2501  
    Email: jamuller@waterboards.ca.gov 
 
5. Website: http://www.sfestuary.org/boating 
 
6. Geographic location targeted by your grant proposal: 

 The 11‐county San Francisco Bay Delta Estuary or      the 5 Southern California Coastal 
Counties 
 
7. Brief Project Summary:  
The San Francisco Bay Clean Vessel Act Program will focus on direct boater outreach through boat 
shows, presentations, and events and will increase the capacity of marina operators to proactively 
prevent sewage discharge with a Best Management Practices Manual. SFEP will monitor the San 
Francisco Bay-Delta Pumpout Network quarterly and will develop a new app to streamline surveys and 
increase quality control for the data.  
 
8. Number of people who will be directly served by the project (estimate): 1,100 boaters, harbormasters 
and marina managers. 
 
9. Requested amount: $281,989 
 
10. Total project budget: $430,297 
 

11. Is your organization a   non-profit corporation?    government agency?    Other 
 
12. Proposal prepared by: James Muller, Title: Program Manager 
 
Under penalty of perjury, I certify that all information represented in this grant application and 
supplemental documentation is accurate and true. 
 
 
 
Signature      Date: 02/02/2015 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   2 | P a g e  
 

Background/History 
The San Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP) has been working with the State of California Division of 

Boating and Waterways (DBW), The Bay Foundation, and a vast array of partners in the San Francisco 

Bay (Bay) and Sacramento Delta (Delta) for two decades to promote clean boating and environmental 

stewardship to boaters and marinas in the 11 county San Francisco Bay Delta Estuary. This 20 year old 

program has been funded by the Clean Vessel Act with the 25% match being contributed by a 

combination of sources including volunteers, cost sharing, and administrative support from the 

Association of Bay Area Governments, our fiscal agent.  

During the first 14 years, our program focused exclusively on public education and resource 

development, and since 2008, SFEP has also conducted a regional pumpout monitoring program. As of 

today, SFEP has attended over 40 boat shows, and distributed over 250,000 maps to the public at these 

shows and through annual mail-outs to marinas and boating supplies stores. In addition, SFEP has given 

over 50 clean boating presentations to marinas, yacht clubs, and boating groups ranging from 10 – 100 

participants. In addition to our participation at events and production of printed material, SFEP has 

worked with DBW to create three clean boating videos on the subjects of oil, fuel, and sewage that have 

been viewed more than 6,600 times since the first video’s upload in 2011.  

For the past 6 years we have been monitoring approximately 90 pumpouts in the Bay and Delta for their 

use and condition. The relational database we have developed currently has over 2,600 entries. In 

addition to collecting information, SFEP also notified marinas of broken or malfunctioning pumpouts, 

ensured that all pumpouts monitored had the proper signage and that the DBW QR sticker was placed 

on each unit.  

Most recently, SFEP has been conducting mobile pumpout events to engage the public in new settings 

and using new techniques. These events, called Honey Pot Days, serve to introduce boaters to the 

mobile pumpout service industry in a safe and controlled environment for free and also allow staff to 

provide participants with clean boating information. To date, these events have prevented over 8,800 

gallons of sewage from entering California’s waterways from a total of 278 vessels.  

Project Description 

Goals 
1) In the 11-county San Francisco Bay Delta Estuary: 

a. Increase awareness among boaters of the impacts of sewage discharge and waste 

management alternatives to overboard discharge 

b. Monitor and assess the use and condition of pumpout stations 

c. Increase the capacity of marinas to proactively address sewage through education and 

management practices 

2) Share products to other regions of California and other States to promote the aforementioned 

goals on a national level 

3) Increase information about CVA grant funding for marinas for pumpout installation and 

maintenance  

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   3 | P a g e  
 

Objectives 

1) Educate boaters one on one, in groups, and at events and boat shows on the effects of improper 

sewage disposal in the San Francisco Bay and Sacramento Delta, the locations of pumpouts in 

the 11 county region, and mobile pumpout options – Objective to be accomplished utilizing the 

outreach plan as described below. This objective will accomplish Goal 1a.  

2) Create a new resource for marinas to reference that has management practices and programs 

used in other parts of the state that can be easily and effectively used and referenced to employ 

sewage reducing techniques at their marinas - Objective to be accomplished by completing the 

BMP program element described below. This will accomplish Goal 1c.  

3) Expand the use of mobile pumpouts as a viable alternative to dock side pumpout stations and 

overboard discharge – Objective to be accomplished by completing the Honey Pot Day and 

Mobile Pumpout Pilot program elements described below. This will accomplish Goal 1a. 

4) Conduct 6 quarterly surveys to monitor the pumpout network in the 11 county San Francisco 

Bay Delta Estuary. Objective to be accomplished by completing the Pumpout Monitoring 

program element described below. This will accomplish Goal 1b.  

5) Work with marinas that have no pumpout station to obtain CVA funds to install new stations. 

Objective to be accomplished by completing the Pumpout Network Enhancement program 

element described below. This will accomplish Goal 3. 

6) Attend the States Organization for Boating Access (SOBA) meeting in 2015 and 2016 to share 

drafts and final BMP Manual and Pumpout Monitoring App with other states and regions. This is 

intended to proliferate products and to allow other states access to them. These conferences 

will also serve to inform the tools as they are in their draft phases. Presentations will be made at 

each conference. This will accomplish goal 2. 

Educational Component 
SFEP’s multifaceted educational campaign will focus on in person direct boater education, capacity 

building for marinas, and pumpout network enhancement within the 11 County San Francisco Bay and 

Sacramento Delta Estuary. The combination of boater and marina education and capacity building will 

serve to address the complex nature of sewage discharge by providing boaters with the information 

they need to make correct decisions and provide marinas with the tools they need to work with boaters 

to proactively prevent sewage discharge. General descriptions including outreach tools used, events, 

information on reports used to outline outreach plans, and a description of our main outreach 

document, will be found in this section. Step by Step descriptions and timelines are located in the Task 

List. The education and outreach components will be evaluated as outlined in the Evaluation Plan below.  

Boater Community Education 

SFEP will pursue multiple avenues to educate boaters on the effects of sewage discharge and how to 

dispose of their waste properly. The DBW 2011 California Boater Survey Report (Survey Report) has 

statistically shown that boaters get a majority of their information from Marinas and Boat Shows with a 

significant number of boaters getting their information from boating magazine publications. SFEP will 

take advantage of these opportunities to educate boaters by attending all three major boat shows in 

Northern California: the San Francisco Boat Show, Sacramento Boat Show, and the Strictly Sail in Jack 

London Square. In order to enhance the program’s visibility and to reinforce CVA’s message, SFEP will 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   4 | P a g e  
 

design a new standing banner highlighting the components of the program, as well as displaying critical 

information and messages for boaters. 

SFEP will also continue to sponsor Honey Pot Day events in the Delta as they have been very successful 

in providing information to boaters on clean boating practices and introducing boaters to mobile 

pumpout services as a viable alternative to dockside pumpouts. These on-water events have allowed 

SFEP staff to educate boaters recreating in the delta on the effects sewage has on the very waters they 

are recreating in at the time. The Honey Pot Day events have also been very positively received by 

boaters as they provide a needed service to boaters at no cost to them. In addition to education, this 

component of our program will ensure sewage is not discharged from the vessels we work with. As of 

today, this program has serviced 278 vessels and prevented almost 9,000 gallons of sewage from being 

discharged into the waterways of California. SFEP will plan and host 4 Honey Pot Days during the 18 

month grant period. 

In addition, SFEP will extend its outreach visibility and increase its targeted audience by presenting to 

boating groups at marinas and yacht clubs, and by pursuing opportunities to write articles for Boat US, 

Latitude 38, Changing Tides, Slack Tide, and others. The presentations and articles will include 

information about Y-Valves, MSD types, environmental regulations, and environmental impacts of 

dumping sewage. Outreach staff will also distribute resources to boaters (including DBW’s clean boating 

information), and let participants know how marinas can attain funding to repair or replace pumpouts. 

These audiences will be recruited by working with the Pacific Inter Club Yacht Association and DBW’s 

Clean Boating Program.  

As reported in the Survey Report, there is still a gap in knowledge of sewage pumpout locations. SFEP 

will distribute its Pumpout Guide and Map for Boaters at Boat Shows, Honey Pot Days, and at 

presentations to supplement educational opportunities and to address this gap in knowledge. The 

Pumpout Guide and Map for Boaters has been SFEP’s primary informational publication and has been 

distributed for over a decade. This resource is readily recognizable by marina staff and boaters alike. It 

features a guide section that has recently been redesigned for a more logical flow and grouping of topics 

and to include more detailed information on Y-Valves, MSD types and regulations. It features DBW’s 

clean boating “dump at the pump” messaging and information about the CVA grant. It also has a map of 

marinas that have pumpouts and includes pumpout specific information including location in the 

marina, hours of operation, contact information, and cost. Boaters will be exposed to this publication 

and its contents when SFEP conducts any of its outreach activities.  

Marina Capacity Building 

This component of our education campaign will increase the ability of marinas to implement 

preventative programs to address sewage. The list of Best Management Practices (BMP’s) and the 

technical appendix supplied by SFEP at the end of the current contract’s 2015 extension will be 

expanded into a full Manual for marina operators wishing to proactively address sewage discharge. This 

report will be written with support from the TAC and our Southern California partners, The Bay 

Foundation. The goal of this Manual is to have a resource available to marinas in California that wish to 

implement sewage prevention programs and to supply the manual to other State’s CVA grant managers 

for their use and adaptation. Staff will request presenting this project at the SOBA conference in 2015. 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   5 | P a g e  
 

Once the Manual has been completed and approved by DBW, a limited number will be printed for 

marinas to be supplied upon request. Also, a PDF version will be available for download on the SFEP 

Boating webpage1. SFEP will work with stakeholders statewide to ensure Marinas and Harbors in 

California are aware of this resource. By providing technological and programmatic BMP’s, SFEP can 

increase the capacity for marinas to proactively address sewage and also address the need for more 

pumpouts as indicated in the Survey Report. 

Pumpout Network Enhancement 

SFEP will work with marinas that do not currently have pumpout systems, or ones that are chronically 

broken, to inform them of the CVA grant funds available to them for pumpout installation and 

maintenance. SFEP will work with Bay marinas, but will focus most of its time in the Delta as the Survey 

Report indicated that boaters encountered more broken and closed pumpouts in that region. By 

increasing the number of operational pumpouts in our Bay Delta region, SFEP can increase the capacity 

for marinas to proactively address sewage. SFEP will utilize monitoring visits, described below, and 

follow up communication to facilitate this effort. 

Monitoring Component 
Background 

SFEP will continue to monitor the pumpouts in the 11 county San Francisco Bay Delta Estuary. This 

monitoring component will help DBW and SFEP continue to determine the status, condition and usage 

of pumpout stations in the pumpout network. Keeping track of these parameters allows DBW and SFEP 

staff to assist in expediting pumpout repair, provide data about pumpout systems, and target CVA 

funding outreach efforts. 

The phrase “pumpout network” refers to all of the pumpouts as a group within the San Francisco Bay 

and Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta. By monitoring this network, SFEP can expedite the repair of 

broken pumpouts and can also let operators know about pumpout issues that may have been missed by 

marina staff. While some marinas and harbors monitor their own pumpout systems regularly and repair 

them as needed, SFEP provides a level of regional monitoring that the marinas themselves cannot 

provide. During our site visits, we are able to gather information that can be used to understand the 

network as a whole. When we visit the marinas to conduct the quarterly inspections of the pumpouts, 

we are also able to inform marinas about the various benefits that the grant offers.  Most notable is the 

75% cost coverage for any maintenance, replacement of parts, or new pump installation. Once marinas 

know about these opportunities, they can then get in contact with DBW to get more information and to 

begin the grant application process. Beginning in 2015, SFEP will begin leaving postcards on a quarterly 

basis at surveyed marinas to inform them about their pumpout’s status, readings and trends. This will 

further assist DBW and SFEP in expediting pumpout repair.  

Methods 

Since 2008, SFEP has gathered information about the effectiveness of the pumpout network through in-

person site visits. In the last five years we have conducted around 2,000 surveys during four annual 

quarterly site visits of about 90 pumpout stations in the 11 counties of the San Francisco Bay Delta 

                                                             
1 http://www.sfestuary.org/boating 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   6 | P a g e  
 

Estuary. Steven Cochrane, SFEP’s surveyor, has been monitoring pumpout stations for seven years (See 

the Key Staff section on page 14). His experience allows him to visit all of the marinas in a short period 

of time, usually two to three weeks, once every quarter (March, June, September, and December).  

The number of marinas surveyed has varied by year depending on additional units being installed and 

units being removed. The survey trips are multipurpose in that Steven is checking the equipment 

functionality and use as well as installing meters onto the motors that do not already have them after 

permission is granted. When we began surveying marinas in 2008, our initial visits were primarily to gain 

access, check status, and install equipment when necessary. Since then, we have installed meters on a 

majority of the pumpouts that did not have them and are building a robust database for future in-depth 

analysis. In 2011, 74 pumpout stations had meters installed. At the end of 2012, this number went up to 

87. At locations that had badly damaged nozzles, universal nozzles with backflow flaps were given to 

marina operators. This helped to ensure that the boaters using the pumpout network were not deterred 

by collapsing nozzle tips that commonly impede flow. In this task, Steven will work with to marinas that 

do not have the proper signage to obtain it and will continue to replace hour meters if they stop 

operating. The data gathered from these visits includes the following:  

Marina Information      Pumpout Information 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signage Displayed      Readings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Actions Taken if Needed 

 
This data is subsequently logged into the existing Microsoft Access relational database (See attachment 

2 for a sample of the quarterly survey). The survey data is supplemented by monthly meter readings, 

from a subset of surveyed marinas, sent in via email by harbormasters and marina managers. These 

readings will be reviewed and compared to previous data to ensure quality control and quality 

Contact information: mailing address, phone 
number and email of the manager. 
Location of pumpout station(s). 
Hours of operation. 
Pumpout cost. 
Portapotty dumpout availability. 
Public restroom availability. 
Pumpout Guide & Map distribution #. 

Is it grant funded? If yes, what year? 
Pumpout make and model. 
Is there a meter installed? 
Is it operational? If not, why? 
Condition of hose, nozzle, sight glass, 
backflow flap, and pedestal. 
Condition of On/Off buttons. 

Universal symbol. 
State funding credit signage. 
Instructions. 
Hours of operation. 
Cost of pumpout (if any). 
Contact in case of problems. 
On/Off button indicators. 

Meter reading. 
Time to pump 5 gallons. 
Vacuum pressure. 
Notes regarding the condition/signage or 
other comments about the pumpout. 
Distance from hose to motor. 
Availability and funding source of automated 
monitored system. 
 

SFEP inspector installs meters with marinas approval, when needed. 
SFEP inspector replaces or assists the marina in replacing missing or broken pumpout parts. 
SFEP staff or inspector notifies marinas of malfunctioning pumpouts and funding available to repair or 
replace systems. 
 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   7 | P a g e  
 

assurance. For marinas willing to submit the monthly email readings we will have two sources of usage 

data, increasing the quality control and quality assurance of that data set.  As of the end of 2014, the 

number of entries in the Access Database is 3,020, with 2,070 surveys resulting from in person visits, and 

950 monthly reading sent on a voluntary basis by harbormasters and marina managers. See attachment 

2 for a list of active pumpout stations that are surveyed once per quarter. 

Pumpout Monitoring App 

Currently, the SFEP surveyor fills out a paper survey sheet when visiting each marina. These surveys 

(about 90 per quarter) are then manually input into the Access Database, which takes significant staff 

time and can result in errors that are detected during our quality assurance and quality control process. 

There are significant amounts of time and resources put into this process that can be reduced. To 

streamline the process and reduce the environmental impact of monitoring, SFEP will develop an 

application that will allow the surveyor, as well as harbormasters participating in the voluntary data 

collection, to input readings and other qualitative information using their smartphone, iPad, or web 

browser. The application will send the information mentioned above to the already existing Microsoft 

Access database in real time. This app will be the property of DBW and is intended to work for 

monitoring programs statewide. This new app can even be shared with other state’s CVA programs to 

encourage monitoring programs and to streamline those already in place.  

The Pumpout Monitoring application will facilitate the work of SFEP inspector by providing him with a 

simple interface displaying accurate and recent information from the previous surveys. The application 

will automatically input time and location, and will help keep track of the nozzle and meter parts that 

are needed. The application will also give the opportunity to the inspector/harbormasters to take 

pictures of the pumpout to record damage and other relevant information. Photos taken through the 

app will be stored in an organized system that will allow DBW and SFEP staff to easily find media related 

to any particular pumpout of interest. 

The design of the application will be developed in coordination with the SFEP inspector to make it an 

efficient and a valuable tool for him. During the process, we will also share the design with 

harbormasters and marinas managers that are participating in the monthly data reading. Once a pilot 

version of the app is available, we will test it here in the San Francisco Bay Delta area before presenting 

it to the other regions and other state CVA programs. This final product will be presented during the 

2016 SOBA Conference. 

Mobile Pumpout Pilot 

In a hybrid education/monitoring effort to assist marinas and boaters to overcome the difficulty in 

managing sewage and to protect the water quality of the San Francisco Bay Delta Estuary,  SFEP will 

create a detailed plan for a publically funded mobile pumpout program that can be piloted in the 

Oakland Estuary, similar to the CVA funded mobile pumpout program in Connecticut. This plan would 

act as a model for implementation throughout the state where stakeholder interest was significant 

enough to support such a program. This plan will include an analysis of the financial requirements, 

funding and matching opportunities, implementation plans, logistical details, and an assessment of local 

stakeholder interest in the Oakland Estuary. This plan will also include details on what information 

would be collected by the mobile pumpout companies during the pilot to support pumpout monitoring 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   8 | P a g e  
 

efforts and future funding. The educational portion of this effort would include working with marinas 

and boaters to increase awareness of such a program were it to be funded and implemented.  

The benefits of a mobile pumpout program are varied, significant, and would further the Sport Fish and 

Wildlife goal of reducing sewage discharge into the waters of the US. Although a regional, long term, 

publically funded mobile pumpout program has never been implemented in California, SFEP believes it 

can be funded by CVA grants in the future. In addition to the program precedent in Connecticut, the 

WSFR CVA Fact Sheet (August 2014) states that projects involved with holding and transporting sewage 

are considered eligible for funding. In addition, this type of program would address the two most 

frequent obstacles to dock side pumpout use as reported in the DBW Survey Report; lines at the station 

and broken pumpouts. 

Project Details 

Please see the Education Component section (Page 3) and the Monitoring Component section (Page 5) 

for a detailed project description. These sections include targeted audiences, personnel involved and 

outreach opportunities. Step by Step descriptions can be found in the Task List, below, with timelines for 

each task and its components.  

Evaluation Plan 
Many of the elements of this proposal are built from past successes, achievements, and evaluations. In 

particular, the DBW 2011 Survey Report assessed the knowledge, characteristics, and habits of boaters 

throughout the state of California. This report analyzed the responses of 5,735 boaters collected from 

2007 – 2009. This report’s results were used to inform much of the outreach component of this proposal 

and SFEP will support DBW in its continued efforts, where possible, to collect this data. However, due to 

the comprehensive nature of this report, in depth evaluation of some components of this proposal 

would not be appropriate as DBW Evaluation Guide2 suggests, due to the limited value added for such 

an effort.  

 

The Boater Outreach and Education program will evaluate the various efforts undertaken during the 

grant period formatively and summatively. Formative evaluation is done during a project to evaluate the 

effort and to provide opportunity to administer corrective action. This project will use a Technical 

Advisory Committee to review product driven efforts. Summative evaluation is intended to evaluate the 

outcomes and impacts of project elements for their effectiveness and success. The final report and 

pumpout report will be used as platforms to provide these evaluation results.  

 

The formative evaluation, hereafter referred to as the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), will be used 

to solicit input on the Best Management Practices Manual, and Mobile Pumpout Pilot Plan. These efforts 

have discrete deliverables that will be submitted to DBW towards the end of this grant, making a 

summative evaluation uninformative and inappropriate. By convening a TAC composed of industry 

experts, stakeholders, and regulators, SFEP can solicit feedback on these components to ensure the end 

products are useful and will meet the goals and objectives of the project. These TAC members will be 

                                                             
2 http://www.coastal.ca.gov/publiced/plate/wtevaluation.pdf 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   9 | P a g e  
 

convened once during this grant period in 2016 and will have opportunities to provide feedback on 

these efforts throughout the project as appropriate. Notes from the TAC will be provided to DBW as well 

as SFEP’s response to the evaluation and corrective actions taken meant to incorporate evaluation 

results.  

 

The summative evaluation will be used to assess the outcomes and successes of our outreach, 

monitoring, and network enhancement tasks. As previously stated, an in depth summative evaluation of 

outreach techniques for the boating community has already been done, and our direct boater outreach 

effort is built to maximize the opportunities highlighted in the results of this report. Our evaluation will 

focus on the number of boaters reached at boat shows, presentations, and on the number of 

publications we publish. The network enhancement effort will assess the effectiveness of SFEP’s efforts 

to increase the number of publically funded pumpout stations and maintenance programs, and the 

increase of pumpout stations as a result of this work. Metrics to be considered and reported include the 

number of marinas contacted, marinas interested, grant applications submitted as a result of our work, 

and the number of marinas that seek additional funding, even outside CVA funding, to install systems. 

Our Honey Pot Days will include slightly more in depth evaluation as it exists outside of the realm of 

metrics assessed by DBW in 2011.  

 

Honey Pot Days will be evaluated using data collected during the events including the number of vessels 

serviced, boaters participating, outreach materials distributed, and quantity of sewage properly 

disposed of. SFEP will also ask boaters to take a survey after the service is administered to gage behavior 

change. There will be a section in this service for qualitative feedback in addition to the yes/no type 

answers that boaters will respond to for quantitative analysis. These responses will be analyzed and 

conclusions will be included in the final report. 

 

Our monitoring efforts will be evaluated in a final Pumpout Report to be submitted to DBW at the end 

of our grant period. This report will analyze the use and condition of the Bay Delta pumpout network. It 

will also include an evaluation of the success of SFEP to enlist more marinas to participate in the 

monthly meter readings.  

 

These evaluation efforts will be fine-tuned with DBW grant managers to ensure outcomes and successes 

of the program goals and objectives are adequately evaluated and reported on. In addition, DBW grant 

managers will be active participants on our Technical Advisory Committee meeting and will have the 

opportunity to review a draft of our final and pumpout reports before their final submission. The results 

of these evaluations will be used to adaptively manage product driven elements and will inform DBW on 

various successes and lessons learned that can be applied to future outreach efforts.  

Task List and Timeline 
1) Direct Boater Outreach 

a. Boat Shows 

SFEP will participate in three boat shows in 2016 including: The San Francisco Boat 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   10 | P a g e  
 

Show, Sacramento Boat Show, and the Strictly Sail in Jack London Square to conduct 

outreach consistent with the messaging described above and to distribute informational 

materials. Staff will work with show organizers to ensure booths are close, or combined 

with DBW’s booth to ensure comprehensive clean boating messaging. Volunteers 

recruited through DBW, Coast Guard Auxiliary and other organizations, will be assisting 

staff with shows to increase outreach potential. SFEP will also design and manufacture a 

new single panel banner display with the most recent Parks and DBW logos, relevant 

photos, clean boating messages, and the QR code to access educational materials 

online. We anticipate a banner size of about 3 feet wide and about 6 feet tall. We will 

prospect for recyclable components, like aluminum pedestal, and recyclable printed 

vinyl. 

Timeline:  

2015 Q3: First design, feedback from DBW. 

2015 Q4: Final design, DBW approval, call for bids from manufacturers. 

2016 Q1: Banner manufactured and sent to SFEP, SF Boat Show, Sacramento Boat Show. 

2016 Q2: Strictly Sail. 

 

b. Honey Pot Days 

SFEP will partner with mobile pumpout companies in the Delta to host at least 4 Honey 

Pot Days to provide pumpouts to boaters with the goals of preventing sewage 

discharge, educating boaters on the impacts of sewage and how do dispose of it, 

providing them with informational material, and to introduce them to a viable 

alternative to pumping out dockside. SFEP will provide DBW with the number of vessels 

pumped out, vessel information, number of boaters participating, and gallons of sewage 

pumped. Staff will select dates in the summer boating season to ensure maximum 

visibility and to ensure event goals are met. A mobile pumpout vendor will be selected 

based on availability, rate, and match contribution. SFEP staff will work with the 

selected vendor to ensure the boaters information is captured, and that they receive the 

clean boating messaging outlined in the Project Description section. All event results will 

be reported to DBW.  

Timeline:  

2015 Q3: One HPD Event. 

2016 Q2: Two HPD Events. 

2016 Q3: One HPD Event. 

 

c. Clean Boating Presentations 

SFEP will partner with DBW to present a comprehensive clean boating message to 

boating groups including marinas and yacht clubs. The Pacific Inter Club Yacht 

Association will also be partnered with to solicit willing Yacht Clubs for presentations. 

SFEP will present to at least 3 groups and will provide DBW with the number of 

participants per event and informational materials distributed. 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   11 | P a g e  
 

Timeline:  

2015 Q3 - 2016 Q4 (exact dates depend on availability of clubs and groups to meet). 

 

d. Publications 

SFEP will work with an array of magazines, agencies, and marinas to publish at least four 

articles about program achievements, topics related to the CVA, and the environment. 

These articles may be published in, but are not limited to: Boat US, Latitude 38, Slack 

Tide, Changing Tide, and Estuary News. SFEP has a long relationship with Latitude 38, 

Slack Tide and Changing Tide publications and will draw on those to publish these 

articles. Boat US and other publications will be contacted to discuss the opportunities 

for articles and SFEP will partner with The Bay Foundation and DBW when able to help 

facilitate these opportunities.   

Timeline:  

2015 Q3 - 2016 Q4 (Exact dates depend on availability of publications to house articles). 

 

e. Pumpout Network Enhancement 

SFEP will work, over the 18 month period, to increase the number of grant funded 

pumpouts in the San Francisco Bay and Sacramento Delta. SFEP will utilize its 

partnerships with the MRA, CAHMPC, and the Clean Marinas Program to encourage 

marinas to install these systems. In addition, SFEP will select marinas with 

malfunctioning pumpouts (as noted on surveys) to contact regarding grant funding to 

repair them.  

Timeline: 

2015 Q3 - 2016 Q4: Work with marina operators to inform them of CVA funding 

opportunities to install or repair pumpout systems. 

 

2) BMP Project 

The list of BMPs and the technical appendix supplied by SFEP at the end of their 2015 extension 

would be expanded into a full manual for marina operators wishing to proactively address 

sewage discharge. It will include sample language, tracking forms, and turnkey programs. The 

manual will be shared with other State’s CVA grant mangers for their use and adaption. Staff will 

request to present this project at the SOBA conference in 2015. Once the manual has been 

completed and approved by DBW, a limited number will be printed for marinas to be supplied 

upon request. SFEP will work with stakeholders statewide to ensure marinas and harbors in 

California are aware of the resource.  

 
Timeline: 
2015 Q3 - 4: Building upon the technical appendix supplied by SFEP at the end of their 2015 
extension final considerations for BMP’s will be solicited from partners and written into the 
manual. Product design and content outline will be provided to DBW for approval.  
2016 Q1 - 2: SFEP will solicit feedbacks from DBW and the TAC throughout the drafting process. 
2016 Q3 - 4: Final version, DBW approval, and release. A limited number will be printed for 
marinas to be supplied upon request. A PDF version will also be made available for download on 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   12 | P a g e  
 

SFEP webpage and will be supplied to any organization, entity, marina, or boater that wishes it. 
Emails will be sent out to the MRA and CAHMPC to let them know of this final product.  

 

3) Mobile Pumpout Pilot Plan 

Create a detailed plan for a publically funded mobile pumpout program that can be piloted in 

the Oakland Estuary. This plan would act as a model for implementation throughout the state. 

This plan will include an analysis of the financial requirements, funding and matching 

opportunities, implementation plans, logistical details, and an assessment of local stakeholder 

interest in the Oakland Estuary. This plan will also include outreach requirements and details on 

what information would be collected by the mobile pumpout companies during the pilot to 

support future funding.  

 

Timeline: 

2015 Q3 - 4: Gather information from other programs, DBW’s grant managers, and partners. 
2016 Q1: Draft a first version of the plan in coordination with local stakeholders and feedback 
from the TAC and DBW. 
2016 Q2 - 4: Final draft and DBW approval. 

 

4) Pumpout Monitoring  

SFEP will monitor all pumpouts at marinas in the 11 county San Francisco Bay and Sacramento 

Delta where access is granted, quarterly, from July 2015 to December 2016. This includes 

approximately 70 marinas containing 90 pumpouts, all of which are listed on the Pumpout 

Guide and Map for Boaters. To streamline this process, SFEP will develop the Pumpout 

Monitoring App to be used, after its development, to log surveys automatically into a database. 

This app will be shared with other California CVA programs and will be presented at the national 

SOBA conference. SFEP will create an annual pumpout usage report that we will submitted to 

DBW during the grant period. 

 

Timeline: 

2015 Q3 – 2016 Q4 – Monitor pumpout network quarterly and submit results to DBW in 

quarterly reports. 

2015 Q3-4: SFEP will work with the pumpout surveyor to create an initial design and work with 
harbormasters that are part of the voluntary monthly pumpout readings to get input on their 
needs and preferences.  
2016 Q1: DBW design approval, call for bids from app developers.  
2016 Q2: App development, test and troubleshooting during the surveying.  
2016 Q3: Final product with DBW approval, Presentation to other CVA grantee in California, and 
presentation of the App during the 2016 SOBA Conference. 
2016 Q4: Write and submit final pumpout report. 

 

5) Project Evaluation / Reporting 

SFEP will develop a list of Technical Advisory Committee members to be approved by DBW that 

will meet at least once during the duration of this grant. These members will include marina and 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   13 | P a g e  
 

harbor representatives, boating groups, government agencies, and other stakeholders. This TAC 

will be asked to review program components and deliverables. Participating TAC members will 

commit to a minimum number of hours to contribute to the program that can include the 

review of deliverables, feedback on program components, and the TAC meeting itself.  

 

In addition to the TAC, SFEP will write quarterly reports to the Division of Boating and 

Waterways’ Grant Mangers that will include summaries of all work completed during the 

reporting period on all tasks, a budget review, pumpout information collected during surveys, 

and any supplemental information relevant to the program. In addition, SFEP will submit a final 

report that will review the program in its entirety, including lessons learned, steps forward, and 

an evaluation of the project and its effectiveness at achieving its objectives and goals (more 

detailed information in section 4 – Evaluation Plan). 

 

Timeline: 

2015 Q3 - 2016 Q4: Quarterly reporting for periods ending March, June, September, December. 

2016 Q2: Technical Advisory Committee. 

2016 Q4:  Write and submit final report. 

 

6) Project Administration 

SFEP will submit monthly invoices for all reimbursable project expenses, will manage contracts, 

all components of the San Francisco Bay Boater Education and Sewage Pumpout Monitoring 

Program, and oversee project staff. SFEP will also ensure that all necessary documentation is 

retained and available to DBW for auditing and tracking purposes.   

 

Timeline: 

2015 Q3 – 2016 Q4: All administrative duties including but not limited to accounting, invoicing, 

audit documentation and contract management. 

Budget 
If awarded, SFEP is willing to negotiate tasks and line item budgets to meet funder requirements.  

Please see attachment 1. 

Resolution from Governing Body 
Please see attachment 3. 

Description of Applicant Organization 

Organization 
The Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) is the official Council of Governments (COG) 

representing the San Francisco Bay Area’s nine counties and 101 cities and towns. Formed in 1961, 

ABAG holds the distinction of being the first Council of Governments in California and is the Bay Area’s 

official regional planning agency. Its mission is to strengthen cooperation and coordination among local 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   14 | P a g e  
 

governments and in doing so address social, environmental and economic issues that transcend local 

borders. The agency’s innovative programs, projects, and partnerships have led to state, national, and 

international recognition for its award-winning research and analysis and cost-effective local 

government service programs.   

The agency is governed by a General Assembly and Executive Board with standing and interagency 

committees. An elected official from each of the nine counties and 100 member cities and towns serves 

as a delegate to its General Assembly, which determines policy annually, adopts the annual budget and 

work program, and reviews the policy actions of ABAG’s Executive Board. The 38-member Executive 

Board meets bimonthly to make operating decisions, appoint committee members, authorize 

expenditures, and recommend policy. The complete list of Executive Board officers and members and 

their occupations can be found at http://abag.ca.gov/overview/ExecBoard.html. They are not listed here 

due to the large number of members. 

One of ABAG’s key programs, the San Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP) provides leadership, 

partnering, coordination, and project implementation to restore and maintain the water quality and 

ecological integrity of the San Francisco Bay-Delta Estuary. The program implements projects to protect 

San Francisco Bay water quality and improve the condition of shellfish, fish and wildlife as well as 

estuarine habitats. SFEP also promotes the local and regional economies that increasingly rely on 

tourism, commercial and recreational fishing, commercial shipping, boating and other water-dependent 

industries. 

The San Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP) will be the project lead, responsible for overall project 

management, budget, coordination, and reporting. SFEP brings extensive project management 

experience in coordinating large, multi-partner projects with documented environmental outcomes. For 

more than 15 years SFEP has coordinated complex and collaborative projects (typically federal and/or 

state-grant funded) designed to improve water quality in the Bay Area. SFEP/ABAG issues written sub-

award agreements with carefully detailed work scopes, schedules, and deliverables, including required 

project progress reports that provide timely information on project outputs and outcomes. SFEP 

monitors project progress, costs, and achievements and works in close collaboration with sub-recipients 

and the funding agency to ensure projects are completed on time, within budget, and on target to 

achieve the desired environmental outcomes. SFEP has successfully managed more than 40 grants 

annually with an annual budget of over $20 million. 

Key Staff 

The key staff involved in this project includes James Muller and Adrien Baudrimont. James has been 

working with SFEP for the past 5 years to manage and implement environmental projects including the 

Clean Vessel Act funded Boater Outreach and Education Project. He has worked one on one with 

boaters at shows and events and has also presented clean boating information to groups of over 100 

boaters. He has worked with marinas, harbors, agencies, volunteers, and organizations to create 

partnerships that work to advance the clean boating message and educate boaters. He also brings 

management experience into this project and has managed grants with over $4.9 million budgets that 

focused on public education, ecosystem restoration, pollutant remediation, invasive species control, 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal

http://abag.ca.gov/overview/ExecBoard.html


2015 CVA EDUCATION & OUTREACH GRANT PROGRAM  SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
 

   15 | P a g e  
 

local governmental policy change, low impact development, and disadvantaged communities. James 

brings a technical background as well as robust management and public outreach experience to this 

project.  

Adrien Baudrimont has been working with SFEP for the past 2 years as an Environmental Planner. Adrien 

managed the San Francisco Creek Mouth Assessment Project, as well as the SFEP Small Grant Program 

before taking an active role in the Boater Outreach and Education Program. Before joining the 

Partnership, Adrien worked for several cities in Europe as a consultant in urban planning and sustainable 

development. Adrien has a Master in Geography and a Master in Urban Planning from the University of 

Paris Sorbonne. 

Steven Cochrane, SFEP Surveyor: Steven has an extensive experience in collecting field data, 

entering data into field forms, hand held devices and spreadsheets. Previously a water quality 

monitor at Hayward Shoreline Interpretive Center, Steven conducts data quality control, quality 

assurance and equipment accuracy tests. Also, Steven has a 20 year experience using maps, GIS and 

locating field sites through his regional work as a Bay Area naturalist. In addition, Steven is 

experienced in working with stakeholders on environmental issues such as water quality, erosion 
control and bacteria in local watersheds. 

Selected List of Grant Projects 
rebtCN tcartnoCc Name of Project Begin/End Dates Project Budget 

00-701-177 DBW-OUTREACH 05/01/01-06/30/15 $2,721,101 
WS-96932601-0 EPA-WCEI_Green Infill 10/01/08-09/30/2015 $996,495 
X7-00T04701-0 EPA-Estuary 2100 03/01/09-02/29/2016 $4,922,000 
CD-96925701-0 EPA- Stream 3 10/01/08-06/30/14 $297,800 

09-670-552 
SWRCB-Hicks Flat 

Remediation 02/01/10-12/31/2013 $315,000 

EM-00T34101-0 EPA-Estuary 2100-Phase 2 03/10/10-12/31/2016 $3,613,704 
E1083005 DFG- IRWM Analysis 12/07/10-06/30/14 $420,000 

ASC 951 
Aquatic Science-Wetland 

Policy 06/01/11-07/31/2014 $100,000 

W9-00T68901-0-1 San Pablo Stormwater Spine 10/01/11-01/31/2015 $307,646 

11-PML-G001 DPR-Got Ants? 01/24/2012-
03/30/2014 $200,000 

11-300-809 DBW- Reg Sed Mgnt 05/07/12-6/30/2014 $49,999.35 

4600009715 
DWR-IRWM Green 

Infrastructure 08/16/11-09/30/2016 $2,315,881 

4600009715 DWR-IRWM- DAC Cts 08/16/11-09/30/2016 $2,201,026 

00T92401-0 
EPA-Flood 2.0 Resilient 

Habitats 07/01/12-12/01/2015 $1,552,059 

00T97901-0 EPA-Greener Pesticides 09/01/12-10/31/2014 $250,000 
U59232-0 SGC_Urban Greening-EC3 08/01/12-12/30/2015 $717,692 
ASC 1034 ASC 1034-WAPP Support 07/01/12-11/15/2013 $57,000 
12-415-550 SWRCB_GreenPlan-Prop 84 0/01/13-11/30/15 $597,901 

CE00T47801-3 EPA-SFEP-NEP FY 13-14 12/01/13-09/30/14 $512,000 
 

Item 4.B.(iii) CVA Final Proposal



Blank Page 



Ta
sk
 1

M
at
ch

Ta
sk
 2

M
at
ch

Ta
sk
 3

M
at
ch

Ta
sk
 4

M
at
ch

Ta
sk
 5

M
at
ch

Ta
sk
 6

M
at
ch

Sa
n 
Fr
an

ci
sc
o 
Cl
ea
n 
Ve

ss
el
 A
ct
 P
ro
gr
am

 B
ud

ge
t

$1
5,
51

7
$2

0,
98

1

$1
48

,3
08

 (5
3%

 o
f R

eq
ue

st
 G
ra
nt
 F
un

ds
)

$4
30

,2
97

To
ta
l G

ra
nt
 

Re
qu

es
te
d

$2
81

,9
89

$4
7,
20

3
$0

$1
9,
59

2

$3
,0
00

Personnel Vo
lu
nt
ee
rs

Totals

$3
2,
50

0
$4

0,
45

1

$2
0,
09

4
$2

0,
98

1

$1
5,
51

7
$2

0,
98

1

$2
,4
53

$0

$2
,1
24

$0

$4
,5
77

$0

$1
2,
74

9
$5

,7
31

$0
$5

,7
31

$6
,8
27

$0

$5
,9
21

$0

$1
2,
74

9
$0

$8
0,
44

3
$4

0,
45

1

$2
,0
00

$3
0,
00

0

$1
9,
59

2
$5

,7
31

$3
3,
92

7
$1

4,
35

1

$2
,0
00

$1
4,
35

1

$2
,0
00

$1
4,
35

1

$2
3,
34

9
$2

5,
66

5
$0

$2
2,
27

8
$0

$4
7,
94

3
$0

$1
7,
10

8
$0

$1
8,
90

0

$5
00

$2
1,
55

1

$0

$2
0,
23

7
$0

$4
3,
58

6
$0

$1
4,
81

9
$0

$3
1,
92

7
$0

$4
3,
58

6
$1

9,
59

2

$3
8,
20

3

Ta
sk
 T
ot
al
s

To
ta
l M

at
ch
 F
un

di
ng

 
(3
3%

 m
in
)

To
ta
l P
ro
je
ct
 

In
cl
ud

in
g 
M
at
ch

Po
st
ag
e/
Sh
ip
pi
ng

Tr
av
el

Su
pp

lie
s f
or
 S
ho

w
s 

&
 M

ee
tin

gs
$1

,0
00

$9
1,
19

0
$4

7,
20

3

$2
00

$1
,0
00

Su
bt
ot
al

$6
,2
00

Operating Expenses

Ev
al
ua

tio
n 
&
 

Re
po

rt
in
g

Ad
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n

Sa
la
rie

s a
nd

 W
ag
es

Be
ne

fit
s 

Su
bt
ot
al

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt
s &

 
Pr
of
es
si
on

al
 

O
ut
re
ac
h

BM
P 
Pr
oj
ec
t

M
ob

ile
 P
um

po
ut
 

Pi
lo
t

M
on

ito
rin

g

$4
5,
50

6
$0 $0 $0

$3
9,
48

4

$8
4,
99

0

Eq
ui
pm

en
t

O
ve
rh
ea
d 
&
 In

di
re
ct

Pr
in
tin

g

$4
,0
00

$9
,0
00

Iter 4.B.(iii), CVA Budget



To
ta
l H

ou
rs

Ta
sk
 1

Ta
sk
 2

Ta
sk
 3

Ta
sk
 4

Ta
sk
 5

Ta
sk
 6

16
80

56
0

35
0

40
0

20
0

80
90

at
 $
71

.5
1/
hr

16
10

74
0

80
20

0
50

0
90

0
at
 $
61

.2
9/
hr

36
0

0
0

0
0

36
at
 $
14

5.
68

/h
r

36
0

0
0

0
0

36
at
 $
88

.9
8/
hr

18
0

0
0

0
0

18
at
 $
11

3.
29

/h
r

18
0

0
0

0
0

18
at
 $
78

.0
8/
hr

18
0

0
0

0
0

18
at
 $
58

.5
2/
hr

Ex
pl
an

at
io
n 
of
 R
at
es
 a
nd

 H
ou

rs

Ac
co
un

ts
 P
ay
ab
le
 C
le
rk

1)
 R
at
es
 a
re
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 in
cr
ea
se
 5
%
 ‐ 
10

%
 p
er
 y
ea
r a

s i
nd

ic
at
ed

 b
y 
ou

r f
isc

al
 a
ge
nt
 (A

BA
G
). 
Th
is 
is 
du

e 
to
 in
fla
tio

n 
an
d 
st
ep

 in
cr
ea
se
s 

in
 S
al
ar
y

2)
 B
en

ef
its
 to

ta
l 4
6%

 o
f t
he

 b
ill
ab
le
 ra

te
 li
st
ed

. A
lth

ou
gh

 th
is 
is 
ab
ov
e 
w
ha
t t
he

 e
xa
m
pl
e 
bu

dg
et
 st
ip
ul
at
ed

, w
e 
ha
ve
 re

al
ize

d 
co
st
 

re
du

ct
io
ns
 in

 o
ve
rh
ea
d 
an
d 
ad
m
in
ist
ra
tio

n 
to
 c
om

pe
ns
at
e.
 W

e 
ar
e 
w
ill
in
g 
to
 w
or
k 
w
ith

 D
BW

, s
ho

ul
d 
w
e 
be

 a
w
ar
de

d 
th
es
e 
fu
nd

s,
 to

 
en

su
re
 o
ur
 b
ill
ab
le
 ra

te
s a

dh
er
e 
to
 a
ll 
fe
de

ra
l a
nd

 st
at
e 
re
gu
la
tio

ns
 re

ga
rd
in
g 
be

ne
fit
s.
 

Pr
og
ra
m
 D
ire

ct
or
 ‐ 
Ja
m
es
 M

ul
le
r

Pr
og
ra
m
 C
oo

rd
in
at
or
 ‐ 
Ad

rie
n 
Ba

ud
rim

on
t

Ag
en

cy
 D
ire

ct
or
 ‐ 
Ju
dy

 K
el
ly

G
ra
nt
s A

dm
in
ist
ra
to
r ‐
 P
au
la
 T
rig

ue
ro
s

As
sis
ta
nt
 D
ire

ct
or
 o
f F
in
an
ce
 ‐ 
Su
sa
n 
Hs
ie
h

Ac
co
un

ts
 R
ec
ei
va
bl
e 
‐ L
uc
y 
N
g

Iter 4.B.(iii), CVA Budget



Li
st
 o
f e

xp
en

se
s,
 e
st
im

at
ed

 c
os
ts
, a
nd

 m
at
ch

Ta
sk
 1
: O

ut
re
ac
h

Ta
sk
 1
: O

ut
re
ac
h

Ta
sk
 1
: O

ut
re
ac
h

Ta
sk
 1
: O

ut
re
ac
h

Ta
sk
 2
: B

M
P 
Pr
oj
ec
t

Ta
sk
 4
: M

on
ito

rin
g

Ta
sk
 4
: M

on
ito

rin
g

Ta
sk
 4
: M

on
ito

rin
g

Ta
sk
s 
1‐
6

Ta
sk
 1
: O

ut
re
ac
h

Ta
sk
 4
: M

on
ito

rin
g

Ta
sk
 6
: A

dm
in
is
tr
at
io
n

M
at
ch

AB
AG

 A
dm

in
ist
ra
tio

n
$1
5,
00
0.
00

AB
AG

 p
ro
vi
de
s 
m
an
y 
se
rv
ic
es
 fo

r S
FE
P 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
bi
lli
ng
, i
nv
oi
ci
ng
, l
eg
al
 s
er
vi
ce
s,
 a
nd

 
ac
co
un

tin
g 
th
at
 a
ll 
se
rv
e 
to
 m

an
ag
e 
pr
o j
ec
t s
pe
ci
fic
 b
ud

ge
ts
. A

BA
G
 s
ta
ff 
ha
ve
 ti
m
e 
bu

ilt
 

in
to
 th

is
 b
ud

ge
t, 
bu

t a
 la
rg
e 
m
aj
or
ity

 o
f t
he

 s
er
vi
ce
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
pr
ov
id
ed

 a
s 
m
at
ch
, t
ot
al
in
g 

$1
5,
00
0.
 

Ho
ne
y 
Po

t D
ay

$9
,0
00
.0
0

M
ob

ile
 p
um

po
ut
 c
om

pa
ni
es
 c
on

tr
ac
t w

ith
 S
FE
P 
at
 a
 lo
w
er
 ra

te
 fo

r p
re
fe
re
nc
e 
in
 th

e 
bi
dd

in
g 
pr
oc
es
s.
 T
he

 d
iff
er
en
ce
 in

 th
ei
r p

os
te
d 
ra
te
s 
an
d 
ou

r n
eg
ot
ia
te
d 
ra
te
 is
 c
on

si
de
re
d 

m
at
ch
 a
nd

 ty
pi
ca
lly
 c
om

es
 o
ut
 to

 $
2,
25
0 
pe
r e

ve
nt
.

Su
rv
ey
s

$1
8,
90
0.
00

St
ev
en

 C
oc
hr
an
e 
pr
ov
id
es
 h
is
 fi
el
d 
w
or
k 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
t a

 s
ub

st
an
tia

l d
is
co
un

t d
ue

 to
 o
ur
 lo
ng

 
hi
st
or
y 
of
 w
or
ki
ng

 to
ge
th
er
 a
nd

 h
is
 d
es
ire

 to
 p
ro
m
ot
e 
en

vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l s
te
w
ar
ds
hi
p.
 H
e 

ty
pi
ca
lly
 c
ha
rg
es
 $
85
/h
r. 
W
e 
ha
ve
 a
n 
on

go
in
g 
co
nt
ra
ct
 w
ith

 S
te
ve
n 
fo
r $

40
/h
r t
ha
t w

ill
 b
e 

in
cr
ea
se
d 
to
 $
45
/h
r w

he
n 
ne
xt
 w
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
. W

ith
 a
n 
av
er
ag
e 
of
 7
8.
75

 h
ou

rs
 p
er
 s
ur
ve
y 

(2
01
4 
av
er
ag
e)
, w

ith
 a
 m

at
ch
 o
f $

40
 o
n 
th
e 
ho

ur
, s
ix
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 s
ur
ve
ys
 w
ill
 y
ei
ld
 $
18
,9
00

 
in
 m

at
ch
in
g 
fu
nd

s.
 

Eq
ui
pm

en
t

$5
00
.0
0

Re
pl
ac
em

en
t o

f m
et
er
s 
an
d 
no

zz
le
s 
du

rin
g 
su
rv
ey
s 
as
 n
ee
de
d 

$1
,0
00
.0
0

SO
BA

/T
ra
ve
l

$2
,0
00
.0
0

Tr
av
el
 to

 S
O
BA

 c
on

fe
re
nc
e 
to
 p
re
se
nt
 th

e 
BM

P 
m
an
ua
l i
n 
its
 e
ar
ly
 s
ta
ge
s

SO
BA

/T
ra
ve
l

$2
,0
00
.0
0

Tr
av
el
 to

 S
O
BA

 to
 p
re
se
nt
 th

e 
pu

m
po

ut
 a
pp

 to
 o
th
er
 s
ta
te
s 
to
 p
re
se
nt
 th

e 
ne
w
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

to
ol

M
ob

ile
 p
um

po
ut
 s
er
vi
ce
s

$4
,0
00
.0
0

Th
is
 w
ill
 fu

nd
 th

e 
m
ob

ile
 p
um

po
ut
 v
es
se
ls
 th

at
 w
e 
w
ill
 h
ire

 to
 s
er
vi
ce
 b
oa
te
rs
 o
n 
ou

r 
Ho

ne
y 
Po

t D
ay
s.

Tr
av
el

$1
,0
00
.0
0

Bo
at
 s
h o

w
 tr
av
el
 c
os
ts
 to

 a
ll 
th
re
e 
sh
ow

s

Be
ca
us
e 
SF
EP

 s
ta
ff 
(Ja

m
es
, A

dr
ie
n,
 Ju

dy
, P
au
la
) a

re
 h
ou

se
d 
w
ith

in
 th

e 
st
at
e 
bo

ar
d,
 th

er
e 
is
 

no
 o
ve
rh
ea
d 
ch
ar
ge
d 
to
 fu

nd
er
s.
 T
he

 S
an

 F
ra
nc
is
co
 R
eg
io
na
l W

at
er
 Q
ua
lit
y 
Co

nt
ro
l B
oa
rd
 

su
pp

lie
s 
of
fic
e 
sp
ac
e,
 e
m
ai
l, 
IT
 s
er
vi
ce
s,
 m

ee
tin

g 
sp
ac
e,
 a
nd

 a
ll 
ot
he
r c
om

po
ne
nt
s 
of
 w
ha
t 

is
 t y
pi
ca
lly
 in
cl
ud

ed
 in

 o
ve
rh
ea
d.
 W

e 
ha
ve
 u
se
d 
AB

AG
's 
ov
er
he
ad

 ra
te
 o
f %

44
.9
5 
to
 

ca
lc
ul
at
e 
th
e 
St
at
e'
s 
in
ki
nd

 c
on

tr
ib
ut
io
n.
 T
hi
s 
ra
te
 w
as
 a
pp

lie
d 
to
 th

e 
ab
lo
ve
 li
st
ed

 
pe
ro
nn

el
 a
nd

 is
 c
al
cu
la
te
d 
by
 ta

sk
 in

 th
e 
Bu

dg
et
 T
ab
le
.

Bo
at
 s
ho

w
 re

gi
st
ra
tio

n 
an
d 
on

 s
ite

 e
qu

ip
m
en
t t
o 
al
l t
hr
ee

 e
ve
nt
s

Pr
in
tin

g 
of
 p
os
tc
ar
ds
 to

 le
av
e 
w
ith

 m
ar
in
as
 a
ft
er
 s
ur
ve
ys

$1
05
,4
07
.0
0

Th
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
or
 h
ire

d 
to
 d
o 
th
e 
pu

m
po

ut
 s
ur
ve
ys
 w
ill
 b
e 
pa
id
 a
pp

ro
xi
m
at
ly
 5
,0
00

 p
er
 

qu
ar
te
r t
o 
co
lle
ct
 th

e 
da
ta
. I
t w

ill
 th

en
 b
e 
su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 S
FE
P 
fo
r i
np

ut
 in
to
 th

e 
Ac
ce
ss
 

Da
ta
ba
se
.

$3
0,
00
0.
00

Su
rv
ey
 S
er
vi
ce
s

Po
st
ca
rd
s

Su
pp

lie
s 
fo
r S

ho
w

O
ve
rh
ea
d

$2
00
.0
0

Ta
sk
 

Ite
m

Es
tim

at
ed

 C
os
t

N
ar
ra
tiv

e 
de

ta
ils

Iter 4.B.(iii), CVA Budget



Blank Page 



 

 

TO: MTC Planning Committee/ABAG Administrative Committee DATE: February 6, 2015 

FR: MTC Executive Director/ABAG Executive Director   

RE: Final Draft MTC Public Participation Plan, MTC Resolution No. 4174 

 

State and federal statutes require MTC as the Bay Area’s metropolitan planning organization to adopt 

participation plans to provide the public with opportunities to be involved in the transportation planning 

process. MTC’s current Public Participation Plan (PPP) was adopted in 2010. A draft 2015 update was 

released for a 66-day comment period November 7, 2014, which closed on January 12, 2015. 

The Final Draft PPP outlines how MTC and the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) will 

involve the public in developing the focused update to Plan Bay Area scheduled for adoption in 2017. 

Attached are: 

 Summary of comments received on the Draft PPP as released November 7, 2014, along with 

responses (Attachment 1). Note that full correspondence is available on the web 

(mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/ppp/comments_2015.htm).  

 MTC Resolution No. 4174 : Final Draft 2015 Public Participation Plan, incorporating changes 

based on comments received (Attachment 2). 

 

Approach to the 2015 PPP Update 

MTC held an evening public meeting on October 8 to hear comments and suggestions for improving 

public engagement. ABAG staff held discussions at their Executive Committee and Regional Planning 

Committee, as well as at county delegate meetings. Likewise staff has sought ideas from MTC’s Policy 

Advisory Council, the Regional Advisory Working Group, and congestion management agency 

planning directors. Staff also launched an online survey and comment forum, and surveyed the public 

at numerous community events around the region.  

Key Messages Heard 

We received 94 comments in all (see Attachment 1), including several from MTC’s Policy Advisory 

Council and the Regional Advisory Working Group. Staff appreciates the many thoughtful comments, 

which fell into the following themes: 

Be Specific — A number of comments asked for more detail in the PPP, including showing more 

explicitly how public comments are factored into the decision-making process. The Final Draft PPP 

includes strategies directing staff to summarize comments to highlight areas of consensus and areas of 

disagreement so that Commissioners and the public have a clear understanding of the depth and 

breadth of opinion on a given issue. The Final Draft PPP also calls for meeting minutes that reflect 

public comments and for staff documentation how comments are considered in MTC’s decisions, and 

providing information about how public meetings and participation are helping to shape or have 

contributed to MTC’s key decisions and actions. The Final Draft PPP also calls for explaining the 

rationale when outcomes don’t correspond to the views expressed. 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/ppp/comments_2015.htm


Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

Public Comments Received on Preliminary Draft Public Participation Plan  
(Preliminary Draft released Nov. 7, 2014; close of comments Jan. 12, 2015) 

 

All correspondence is posted online at http://mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/ppp/comments_2015.htm.  

 

Advisory Group Comments: 

Name Date County 

Policy Advisory Council  12/10/14 Multiple 

Regional Advisory Working Group (RAWG) 1/6/14 Multiple 

 

General Public Comments: 

Name Affiliation Date County 

Marin Info  11/10/14 Marin 

Robert Allen  11/12/14  Alameda 

Wayne Phillips   11/19/14, 

10/1/14 

Contra 

Costa 

Jennifer Savage   11/26/14 Unknown 

Audrey LePell  Citizens for Alternative Transportation 

Solutions 

11/29/14 Alameda 

Ken Bukowski   12/13/14 Alameda 

Robert Miltner   12/22/14 Marin 

Sandi Galvez 
 

Michael Stacey, Solano County 

Public Health  
 

Chuck McKetney, Alameda County 

Dept. of Public Health 

Bay Area Regional Health Inequities 

Initiative (BARHII) 

1/12/15 Multiple 

Cathleen Baker Member, MTC Policy Advisory Council 1/12/15 Napa 

David Denton  1/12/15 Unknown 

Matt Vander Sluis Greenbelt Alliance 1/12/15 Multiple 

Susan Kirsch  1/12/15 Marin 

Shireen Malekafzali Member, MTC Policy Advisory Council  1/12/15 San Mateo 

Multiple Organizations 37 signatories 1/12/15 Multiple 

Stephen Nestel   1/12/15 Marin 

Patrisha Piras  1/12/15 Alameda 

Judy Schriebman  1/12/15 Marin 

    
 

  

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/ppp/comments_2015.htm


 

Summary of Comments and Responses to 

MTC’s November 2014 Preliminary Draft Public Participation Plan (PPP) 

 

COMMENTS  

(Please note these comments are summarized.) 
MTC RESPONSE 

1. MTC Policy Advisory Council, Dec. 10, 2014 —  

 

Concern was expressed that a regional equity working 

group is not planned for this next phase/update of Plan 

Bay Area. The separation of the equity work from the 

Regional Advisory Working Group allows for a more 

manageable discussion around complex topics, and 

gives an opportunity for organizations that work with 

and represent the needs of low-income communities 

and communities of color to be able to delve deeper 

into and fully understand the equity issues related to 

Plan Bay Area.   

 

This is a suggestion we have heard in several 

comments. We will establish an Equity Working 

Group to address issues related to low-income 

communities and communities of color as needed 

for the focused update to Plan Bay Area, drawing 

from membership of the Regional Advisory 

Working Group and MTC’s Policy Advisory 

Council. We have added language in the Final 

Draft PPP to so indicate (see Appendix A, p. 11).  

 

2. MTC Policy Advisory Council, Dec. 10, 2014 — 

 

MTC should add live streaming video of its public 

hearings as part of the Public Participation Plan, and 

consider the possibility of a “call-in” conference setup 

to allow individuals to type their questions in from 

their computers remotely to be answered by the 

presenters at a hearing or workshop. 

 

We do commit to offering interactive web-based 

polls and surveys (see Appendix A, p. 27). We 

will consider the idea of live streaming webinars 

as budget and resources allow. 

3. Regional Advisory Working Group, Jan. 6, 2015  
 

Please work to include representatives from 

multilingual nonprofits; encourage working parents to 

participate by providing daycare and food. 

 

MTC does contract with community-based 

organizations working in low-income 

communities and communities of color — 

including in communities with limited English 

proficiency — to engage residents on key 

planning work. We anticipate doing this again for 

the update to Plan Bay Area through a competitive 

procurement. We will partner with these groups to 

tailor engagement that best meets the needs of 

local residents (see Appendix A, p. 25).  

 

4. Regional Advisory Working Group, January 6, 

2015 — 
Please try to hold public meetings at places accessible 

by public transit and have a live, streaming option so 

that those who cannot attend meetings are still able to 

participate. 

 

The Final Draft PPP includes language stating that 

public workshops will be held in convenient and 

accessible locations (see Appendix A, p. 26). 

Regarding the comment suggesting live streaming 

of public workshops, please see the response to 

comment #2. 

5. Regional Advisory Working Group, January 6, 

2015 — 
How will the Call for Projects relate to the land use, 

housing and transportation goals?  

 

The call for projects will be followed by a project 

performance assessment. This project 

performance assessment will seek to track how 

well projects meet the goals of the Plan. Please 

see Appendix A, p. 9 “Project Performance 

Assessment.”  

 

6. Regional Advisory Working Group, January 6, 

2015 — 

This question about GHG emissions goes beyond 

the scope of this Final Draft PPP. The GHG target 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

Where do Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions come into 

play in terms of the selection of alternatives?   

 

reduction requirements will be key to assessing 

how well the scenarios perform in meeting Plan 

goals and one of the considerations relative to 

adoption of the Preferred Scenario. 

 

7. Regional Advisory Working Group, Jan. 6, 2015 

— 
How does Alameda County’s latest voter-approved 

sales tax program, which increases vehicle miles 

traveled (VMT) per capita, fit into the picture given 

MTC’s guidance on countywide plans? 

 

Your comments about Alameda County’s sales 

tax measure go beyond the scope of this Final 

Draft PPP.  

 

MTC’s County Transportation Plan guidelines are 

not mandatory but are structured to create a strong 

link between the regional long-range plan and 

countywide plans.  

 

8. Email (“Marin Info”) 

 

 Utilize online forums.  

 The Draft uses the term “forum” without providing 

needed detail.  

 Provide ways for people to vote irrelevant comments 

to the bottom of the list,  

 Provide opportunities for participants and experts to 

squash incorrect assumptions that are leading the 

public astray and educate them instead.  

 If there are a lot of comments that need clarification, 

then provide a Frequently Asked Questions page.  

 Let the days be over where a meeting consists only of 

a presentation followed by two-minute public 

comment opportunities.  

 Start all meetings with an online presentation, 

available a week ahead of the meeting.  

 Decision-makers and experts should actively 

participate in the forum.  

 Consider an online meeting.  

 

The Final Draft PPP is intended to provide a 

general framework rather than specify in detail 

how a public meeting or forum — online or in 

person — will be conducted. Many of your 

suggestions (for example, adding to an online 

Frequently Asked Questions feature as questions 

come up, and online forums that allowed 

individuals to agree with other commenters) were 

in fact implemented for the last Plan Bay Area 

process. Regarding the suggestion to live stream 

meetings online, please see the response to 

comment #2.  

9. Email (Robert Allen) 

 

Our residents deserve better than the fractured network 

of MTC’s “Regional Rail Plan” that is really no plan at 

all. MTC could fulfill its destiny by letting the people 

vote on [the Regional Rail Plan], as the voters did in 

1962 with their vote creating BART. 

 

Your comments about deficiencies in the Bay 

Area’s transportation infrastructure are beyond the 

scope of this Final Draft PPP. Members of the 

public may comment on currently planned 

projects at Plan Bay Area public open houses 

slated for May 2015. We have added language in 

Appendix A of the Final Draft PPP to so indicate 

(see p. 8).  

 

10. Email (Wayne Phillips) 

 

If you don't include powered two-wheeled vehicles 

(motorcycles and scooters), you're missing the total 

solution to bay area traffic. 20% of bay area 

households already own a PTW. If they all rode (and 

left their cars at home ), it would be as if the highways 

were suddenly 15% bigger, wider, more comfortable. 

 

Plan Bay Area identifies investments for a 

transportation network that supports a wide 

variety of modes for getting around, including 

two- and four-wheeled vehicles. Members of the 

public may comment on currently planned 

projects at Plan Bay Area public open houses 

slated for May 2015. 

 

11. Email (Jennifer Savage) Your comments are noted. MTC and ABAG will 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

 

The Public Participation Plan is a long document that 

seems to defeat your goal of providing user friendly 

web content and handouts . . . Please consider meeting 

the goal of user friendly content. 

 

strive to develop user-friendly content.   

12. Email (Audrey LePell) 

 

It has been my past experience that top MTC staff are 

NOT interested in citizens’ input with regards to 

important transportation matters that apply to the 

general public. I used to attend MTC meetings; but 

became so discouraged with the rudeness of the top 

officials and the Caltrans people. I would appreciate a 

reply to my concerns about MTC and its past history of 

ignoring citizens’ valid transportation statements. 

 

We regret that you have encountered a less than 

ideal experience when attending MTC meetings. 

We strive to promote an atmosphere of civility at 

public meetings from staff as well as from 

members of the public. We sincerely hope that 

you will continue to participate in public comment 

opportunities. 

 

We are committed to making sure the public’s 

views are summarized, analyzed and presented to 

decision-makers before key decisions are made. 

After major public comment periods — such as 

with Plan Bay Area or the Transportation 

Improvement Program — staff logs, analyzes and 

summarizes all public comments and presents key 

themes heard from the public to decision-makers 

prior to any action. We identify where there are 

areas of agreement with recommendations and 

conversely, where there is disagreement. 

 

There are many occasions when MTC and ABAG 

decision-makers opt to revise staff 

recommendations in response to public 

comments; conversely, there are times when they 

choose to not alter a proposal even though there is 

a significant amount of public comment 

requesting that they do so. Ultimately, it is an 

individual board member’s decision about how to 

shape public policy or invest public funds, based 

on her or his best judgment. 

 

13. Email (Ken Bukowski) 

 

Most of the public outreach is in the form of a 

workshop. Since the Commissioners are not required to 

attend, it may create the impression comments made 

are not actually heard by the decision makers. 

 

Attendance and participation from both MTC 

Commissioners and ABAG Executive Committee 

members during the last Plan Bay Area process 

was robust, with ABAG board members and MTC 

Commissioners present at nearly all public 

workshops; we anticipate similar levels of 

participation in the pending plan update. 

Moreover, comments from all the public 

workshops and open houses are logged, 

summarized, analyzed and presented to ABAG 

and MTC board members at prior to their vote on 

key issues. 

14. Email (Ken Bukowski) 

 

All of the public outreach meetings could be video 

recorded and posted on the web. If someone doesn't 

attend a meeting, the video is the next best thing to 

As budget and resources allow we will attempt to 

video record public outreach meetings or produce 

videos that capture the information displayed at 

the meetings and allow those who could not attend 

to offer comments.  

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

being there. The videos provide necessary evidence of 

the public meetings which are otherwise difficult to 

envision. 

 

15. Email (Ken Bukowski) 

 

There is some confusion of roles and responsibilities 

between ABAG & MTC. Perhaps that can be clarified. 

 

California Senate Bill 375 gives MTC and ABAG 

joint responsibility for Plan Bay Area. As stated 

on page 6 of Appendix A of the Final Draft PPP, 

ABAG is responsible for land use forecasts, 

including jobs, housing and population forecasts; 

MTC will forecast travel demand and 

transportation revenue. The legislation also spells 

out that the two agencies are jointly responsible 

for “set(ting) forth a forecasted development 

pattern for the region, which, when integrated 

with the transportation network, and other 

transportation measures and policies, will reduce 

the greenhouse gas emissions from automobiles 

and light trucks….” We have added language to  

p. 1 of Appendix A to clarify this point.  

 

16. Email (Ken Bukowski) 

 

Learn from the past public process. For example, look 

at transcript of past MTC meetings. 

 

Thanks for including your record of a 2002 

assessment of public involvement for the long-

range regional transportation plan. We agree it is 

important to review past public engagement 

programs to identify strengths and weaknesses 

and endeavor to improve in subsequent efforts. 

Staff does prepare an evaluation of the public 

engagement efforts at the conclusion of each long-

range planning process. The most recent 

evaluation can be viewed at 

http://planbayarea.org/pdf/Evaluation_Report_PB

A_Outreach.pdf.   

 

17. Email (Robert Miltner) 

 

To improve transit in the Bay Area, and especially in 

Marin County, the solution is to purchase and schedule 

more bus service. Projects that involve building tracks, 

like the SMART train or studies to return to trolleys, 

are not economically justified as bus service can be 

initiated without any investment in the physical plant 

of the area, and routes can be altered or expanded to 

meet ongoing needs and demands by the public. Do not 

pursue more rail mass transit. 

 

Your comments about funding priorities for public 

transit — including in Marin County — go 

beyond the scope of the Final Draft PPP. County-

level congestion management agencies (CMAs) 

— including the Transportation Authority of 

Marin (TAM) — in spring of 2015 will begin 

updating their list of priority projects for submittal 

to MTC for inclusion in Plan Bay Area. (See 

Appendix A, p. 8, “Call for Projects.”) CMAs will 

be seeking public comment on their project 

submittals directly, and members of the public 

may comment on currently planned projects at 

Plan Bay Area public open houses slated for May 

2015. 

 

18. Email (Robert Miltner) 

 

Bicycle transit is not a realistic substitute for automated 

travel. It requires year-round, 24/7 good weather, and a 

degree of physical fitness that is not possible for most 

of the public. Expending public funds for special 

Your comments about the costs and benefits of 

bicycle transportation go beyond the scope of this 

Final Draft PPP. However, MTC will be assessing 

the benefits and costs of various transportation 

projects or programs as part of the update to Plan 

Bay Area. (See Final Draft PPP, Appendix A,  

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://planbayarea.org/pdf/Evaluation_Report_PBA_Outreach.pdf
http://planbayarea.org/pdf/Evaluation_Report_PBA_Outreach.pdf


 

structures like bridges and tunnels for bicycle use is not 

economically justified as the number of users is very 

small compared with the number of people who need to 

travel considerable distances (i.e., more than 5 miles) 

to work or shop. Current bicycle use is almost entirely 

recreational, and not for functional transit. Finally, 

investment for structures designed to provide access 

and rights of way for bicycles violate ADA 

requirements. 

 

p. 9, “Project Performance Assessment”) 

19. Email (Robert Miltner) 

 

Housing near transit is not a universal answer to 

reducing traffic congestion, and in most cases will 

simply make matters worse. Houses built near 

freeways will provide residents with more immediate 

access to freeway onramps, thus further congesting the 

feeder surface streets located at greater distances from 

the freeway.   

 

Your comments about the costs and benefits of 

housing near transit and housing near freeways go 

beyond the scope of this Final Draft PPP. 

However, the connections between transportation, 

housing and employment will be central to the 

development of scenarios in the Plan Bay Area 

update. (See Final Draft PPP, Appendix A, p. 10 

“Scenario Analysis”) 

20. Letter (Sandi Galvez; Michael Stacey, Solano 

County Public Health; Chuck McKetney, 

Alameda County Dept. of Public Health -- Bay 

Area Regional Health Inequities Initiative 

(BARHII)) 

 

Will there be a Technical Advisory Group (TAC)? If 

so, how will it be staffed? Its meetings should be open 

to the public, with minutes of their meetings and a 

report of its findings, made available to the public. 

What are the assumptions behind mode shift from 

motorized to non-motorized transportation? Will there 

be an analysis of induced demand from different 

projects? Public health is interested in serving on a 

TAC. 

 

The Regional Advisory Working Group (RAWG), 

described on p. 18 of Appendix A of the Final 

Draft PPP, is the technical advisory committee. 

All key work associated with the technical and 

policy milestones will be discussed there. All 

RAWG meetings are audiocast and archived 

(along with meeting materials) and are accessible 

from the Plan Bay Area website. 

 

Analytical details and assumptions along the lines 

you suggest will be discussed at the RAWG and 

are not specifically described in this Final Draft 

PPP. 

 

21. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Reconvene the Equity Working Group. Last round, the 

Regional Equity Working Group (REWG) was an 

effective forum for integrating equity and allowing for 

representatives from different low-income communities 

to participate meaningfully throughout the process, yet 

the PPP makes no mention of reconvening the REWG. 

 

Please see the response to comment #1. 

 

 

22. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Include an explicit process for integrating the 

recommendations of the Regional Prosperity Plan 

(RPP) into the PBA Update process: The Bay Area 

RPP is a three-year initiative funded by a $5 million 

grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) to ABAG and the MTC. This 

important work should help inform the update process. 

The Regional Prosperity Plan is led by a 

consortium of stakeholders including local 

jurisdictions, regional agencies, community and 

business groups, education institutions, and labor 

organizations, among others. MTC and ABAG are 

facilitating the process on behalf of the 

consortium.  

 

It is anticipated that the project will be completed 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

In particular: 

 Fair Housing: MTC should use the approach 

suggested by HUD for our Regional Prosperity Plan’s 

“Fair Housing and Equity Assessment” by (1) 

identifying the determinants of current segregation 

and exclusion by race and income, (2) including 

actions to address and eliminate them in the short-

term (4 years), and (3) assessing progress annually. 

 Focus on Quality Jobs: With hundreds of billions of 

dollars being spent, our new regional plan should 

include a focus on creating and giving low-income 

residents access to good jobs. 

 

by June 2015. The project Steering Committee is 

currently in the process of developing an action 

plan for implementing key recommendations and 

lessons learned through this three-year process. 

The action plan will be informed by findings from 

the Fair Housing and Equity Assessment as well 

as more than 50 pilot projects that were funded 

through the program. 

 

It is anticipated that the action plan will include 

specific recommendations for the Plan Bay Area 

update. The action plan is expected to be 

completed and approved by the project Steering 

Committee by May 2015, at which point it will be 

forwarded to MTC and ABAG to be consideration 

as input into the Plan Bay Area update process. 

 

23. Letter (BARHII) 

 

The Joint Policy Committee (ABAG, MTC, 

BAAQMD, BCDC) is committed to climate change 

adaptation planning. There is no mention of 

coordinating the policy objectives, targets, and 

scenarios between GHG mitigation and climate change 

adaptation plans. If the smart growth strategies involve 

increasing housing/jobs in PDAs threatened by sea 

level rise/coastal flooding, how will potential conflicts 

be anticipated and resolved, and still meet the targets? 

 

Although the update to Plan Bay Area will be 

limited and focused, there are a few key issues 

that will be analyzed beyond what was included in 

the adopted 2013 Plan. The 2017 update to Plan 

Bay Area will indeed consider issues relating to 

climate adaptation, including sea-level rise, in 

partnership with the Joint Policy Committee. See 

Appendix A, p. 22.  

 

24. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Assess needs first: There should be a mechanism early 

in the process to assess the critical transportation and 

housing needs of the region as a whole, and of low-

income communities and communities of color in 

particular, as well as a decision as to how the critical 

needs identified will guide later analysis and decision 

making. This is a critical first step in public health 

program development and we recommend its use in 

your process. 

 

Needs are assessed on an ongoing basis. The 

approach to updating Plan Bay Area will build 

upon the Plan adopted in 2013 and incorporate 

information gleaned from ongoing work, such as 

for the Regional Prosperity Plan effort, the Core 

Capacity Transit Study, the Regional Goods 

Movement Plan and the Core Connectivity Study.  

 

 

25. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Use of performance measures throughout: PBA’s 

targets and performance measures are strong, and 

should be strengthened. They should be used 

throughout the process. Rather than waiting until the 

EIR to see how well each scenario meets the 

performance measures, they should guide the Scenario 

process and decision points throughout. 

 

Similar to Plan Bay Area, performance measures 

and targets will be used throughout the process for 

the Plan update, both for the evaluation of 

planning scenarios and transportation projects. 

The current Plan included evaluation of planning 

scenarios throughout the process as documented 

in the Plan Bay Area Performance Assessment 

Report; this Plan update will include similar 

evaluations before the EIR process begins.   

 

26. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Make assumptions explicit: The assumptions and 

Equity measures will be considered as an integral 

part of the scenario performance assessment for 

the Plan Alternatives and will be a consideration 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://planbayarea.org/pdf/final_supplemental_reports/FINAL_PBA_Performance_Assessment_Report.pdf
http://planbayarea.org/pdf/final_supplemental_reports/FINAL_PBA_Performance_Assessment_Report.pdf


 

implications for social and health equity and income 

inequality should be made clear to the public. For 

example, if the stated or unstated assumption is that 

existing income disparities will stay the same or get 

worse in the next 20 years, this should be clearly stated 

so that this can best inform program and policy 

deliberations. 

 

related to the selection of the Preferred 

Alternative.  

27. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Updating population figures: Given the population 

shifts (displacement) since the 2010 Census, what more 

recent population data will the demographic, 

econometric, and travel models draw upon and what 

accommodations will be made to make sure the models 

reflect the new reality on the ground (e.g. eastern 

Contra Costa County)? 

 

This question is beyond the scope of the PPP. The 

forecasting for the Plan Bay Area update will use 

the most currently available data from the U.S. 

Census, and the American Community Survey 

(ACS), and supplemented with local agency 

review of the data to confirm the accuracy of 

information at the jurisdictional level to the extent 

possible. The local agency review process will 

provide the opportunity for planners to flag any 

recent trends that may not be adequately 

represented in the ACS five-year data. The 

forecast development process also will consider 

the possible cyclical nature of the most recent 

swings.. 

 

28. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Will projects be evaluated for their health benefits and 

harms? Which benefits and harms will be considered? 

In cost-benefit analysis will the amount of health 

benefit or harm be used to screen projects irrespective 

of capital costs or thresholds? What opportunities will 

exist for independent review of cost-benefit 

methodologies? If so, will the findings of the review be 

made public? 

 

In Plan Bay Area, a rigorous project assessment 

was conducted for all uncommitted projects (that 

is, those projects seeking discretionary revenue 

from MTC not already committed to other 

projects) with a particular emphasis on major 

investments with costs greater than $50 million. 

Both the quantitative (benefit-cost) and qualitative 

(targets) assessments incorporated health impacts 

as a key component; for example, the benefit-cost 

analysis incorporated health benefits associated 

with improved physical activity from biking or 

walking. Specific benefits, methodologies, and 

tools for project evaluation for the update to Plan 

Bay Area, as well as cost thresholds for project-

level analysis, will be identified through staff-

level working groups specific to the performance 

assessment processes. Staff recommends that 

stakeholders interested in this issue participate in 

that process, which will be discussed at the 

Regional Advisory Working Group. Performance 

methodologies and results will be documented and 

made available to the public; please refer to the 

Plan Bay Area Performance Assessment Report as 

a precedent.  

 

29. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Engage stakeholders in Scenario Development: The 

PPP only mentions public involvement in the 

evaluation of scenarios once developed. It does not lay 

out a process for involving the public in the 

The Regional Advisory Working Group (RAWG) 

will serve as the technical advisory committee for 

the Plan update. Public input will be sought 

through the RAWG to develop the scenarios and 

throughout the Plan development process. RAWG 

meetings are open to the public, audiocast and 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://planbayarea.org/pdf/final_supplemental_reports/FINAL_PBA_Performance_Assessment_Report.pdf


 

development of Scenarios in the first place. In the 

development of the CTP Guidelines, MTC heard and 

responded to the public’s desire to participate in 

workshops to inform the development of the guidelines. 

This same early engagement is needed for the PBA 

update. 

 

archived on the project website at 

www.PlanBayArea.org.   

30. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Include an Equity Scenario from the start: A Scenario 

should be developed and analyzed that maximizes 

greenhouse gas reductions by running more frequent 

local transit service, protecting high-use transit riders 

against displacement, and locating more affordable 

housing near transit and jobs. 

 

Your comment on a specific scenario is beyond 

the scope and purpose of the PPP. The Regional 

Advisory Working Group (RAWG) will serve as 

the technical advisory committee for the Plan 

update. Public input will be sought through the 

RAWG to develop the scenarios and throughout 

the Plan development process.   

31. Letter (BARHII) 

 

For scenario development and analysis, evaluate the 

equity impacts of each alternative prior to selection of 

Preferred alternative. 

 

Your comment on equity impact evaluation is 

beyond the scope and purpose of the PPP. Equity 

measures will be considered as an integral part of 

the scenario performance assessment for the Plan 

Alternatives and will be a consideration related to 

the selection of the Preferred Alternative. 

 

32. Letter (BARHII) 

 

Tracking Performance: will there be any effort to 

coordinate “Vital Signs” with the many existing public 

health indicator projects (e.g. BARHII Guide to the 

Social Determinants of Health, California Department 

of Public Health’s Healthy Communities Project)? Will 

assumptions behind economic and population growth 

be monitored and will forecasting models be re-rerun 

and assessed for their implications on the transportation 

scenarios? 

 

Vital Signs is a critical aspect of implementation 

relating to the currently adopted Plan Bay Area. 

Vital Signs includes over 40 performance 

indicators spanning a wide range of issue areas. 

MTC planning staff intends to use Vital Signs 

data to establish baseline conditions and 

understand historical trends to better inform 

planning decisions going forward. See Appendix 

A, p. 16, “Tracking Performance.” 

 

33. Letter (Cathleen Baker) 

 

List the media outlets and community based 

organizations that you work with or where people can 

go locally for information directly in the plan (perhaps 

in additional appendices), as well as on all websites and 

social media to empower residents to seek more in-

depth information or communicate directly with their 

preferred local media outlet, service providers, or 

community resources. 

 

The best place for individuals to go for in-depth 

information on the Plan is the joint MTC/ABAG 

website www.PlanBayArea.org, or to follow MTC 

and ABAG on social media. For more information 

about what is happening in their county with 

regard to the Plan and transportation planning, 

individuals should check with their county 

Congestion Management Agency.  

 

MTC will work with community-based 

organizations to assist in engaging certain 

populations, but those community groups will be 

selected via a competitive bid process and have 

not yet been identified (please see the response to 

comment #3). 

 

With regard to media outlets, MTC and ABAG 

issue news releases and advisories to media 

outlets large and small. MTC also uses a news 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://www.planbayarea.org/


 

service to distribute news releases. We receive a 

great deal of news media coverage, which is 

available for viewing on MTC’s web site: 

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/news/headlines.htm.  

You raise a good point that the public might want 

to know which news media outlets receive our 

press releases, so we have added such a listing to 

the Plan Bay Area website at 

www.PlanBayArea.org, and will reference its 

availability on p. 14 of the Final Draft PPP.  

 

34. Letter (Cathleen Baker) 

 

Bay Area agencies (i.e. ABAG, BAAQMD, BCDC) 

should collaborate on proactive reporting so that 

significant developments, opportunities for input, and 

critical decisions among MTC’s partners are also 

publicized in a more centralized and effective manner. 

This is especially important given the stated 

commitment to stronger interagency collaboration in 

the update to the PBA. 

 

We will endeavor to include content along the 

lines you suggest on the Plan Bay Area website 

when it affects the development of the Plan. 

Additionally, the Joint Policy Committee 

maintains a website that includes content from 

planning work that cuts across regional agency 

jurisdictions (from ABAG, MTC, the Bay Area 

Air Quality Management District and the San 

Francisco Bay Conservation and Development 

Commission). You can view this information 

here; http://www.abag.ca.gov/jointpolicy/  

 

35. Letter (Cathleen Baker) 

 

Partnering with and communicating through offices of 

education, schools and districts, school boards, and 

social service providers is a highly effective strategy in 

meeting people where they already are. This will 

require additional steps and increased cultural 

competency as MTC develops content and messaging 

to better frame issues, investments, and trade-offs. 

 

One relatively simple option would be to partner with 

communications leadership in each of the Bay Area’s 

nine counties, and the top 15 to 20 cities in terms of 

household growth, to place a small “spotlight” window 

or link on relevant web pages. Counties could then 

extend this partnership to the community-based 

organizations that commonly care out select functions 

of local government. [Commenter provided screen 

shots of websites, see letter] 

 

We are developing a communications tool kit for 

Plan Bay Area to encourage partnerships along 

the lines you suggest (see Appendix A, p. 25, 

“Other Partnerships”). We will consider your 

ideas as budget and resources allow.   

36. Letter (Cathleen Baker) 

 

MTC and its partners should integrate the engagement 

and framing approaches used by Washington D.C. and 

the San Diego Association of Governments 

(SANDAG). The Public Participation Plan, especially 

for the update of PBA, would benefit from 

implementing these tactics. [Commenter provided links 

to examples, see letter] 

 

Thank you for your suggestions. We are doing 

some modest retooling of the Plan Bay Area 

website to streamline navigation and will keep 

these examples in mind. 

37. Letter (Cathleen Baker) Please see the response to comment #28 regarding 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/news/headlines.htm
http://www.planbayarea.org/
http://www.abag.ca.gov/jointpolicy/


 

 

MTC should shift the paradigm of first determining the 

capital cost of a project, then determining its benefits.  

The Integrated Transport and Health Impact Modelling 

Tool (ITHIM) provides a perfect and feasible 

opportunity to do so.  I sincerely urge the Commission 

to empower its staff and stakeholders to utilize newly 

developed metrics to better gauge the true costs and 

benefits of our regional investments. 

 

the inclusion of health benefits in the project 

performance assessment process. Staff will 

consider the use of ITHIM and/or alternative 

models to forecast project benefits through the 

Regional Advisory Working Group or staff-level 

working groups. 

 

 

38. Letter (Cathleen Baker) 

 

Separate from the Regional Advisory Working Group 

(RAWG), I beg you to allocate some time and effort to 

convene a Regional Equity Working Group (REWG) 

or something similar to continue the important and 

beneficial advancements that were made in the 2013 

PBA. 

 

Please see the response to comment #1.  

39. Letter (David Denton) 

 

Under the banner of opposing ‘Gentrification,’ your 

agencies have funded studies that extol pseudo-science, 

race-based wedge politics. HUD funding has been 

given to fringe groups with no accountability for the 

accuracy of the reports. 

 

I am asking that no additional funds be granted for 

these ‘Gentrification’ studies and mandate that all 

grantees must sign pledges to neither orchestrate, 

support nor participate in ANY illegal acts.   

 

Please see the response to comment #22. 

40. Letter (Matt Vander Sluis, Program Director, 

Greenbelt Alliance) 

 

The Participation Plan should do a better job of making 

the regional plan relevant, showing how Plan Bay Area 

is meaningful at the local scale and can have a positive 

local impact. For example, Plan Bay Area could reflect 

on what cities and towns are already doing to 

encourage smart development patterns through 

neighborhood-scale community-based plans. Public 

involvement needs to be a key component. This 

necessitates including public participation in early 

stages of plan development, particularly the 

development of land use and transportation scenarios. 

Additionally, at all relevant opportunities ABAG/MTC 

staff should clearly articulate how public feedback will 

be used and report afterwards how it was incorporated 

into the final plan.  

 

We do seek to encourage and help outreach to 

various constituencies via a Plan Bay Area 

communications tool kit. (See Appendix A of the 

Final Draft PPP, p. 25, “Other Partnerships.”) 

 

Regarding public comments, please see the 

response to comment #12.  

 

41. Letter (Greenbelt Alliance) 

 

The Participation Plan should do a better job of 

You raise some interesting ideas and we will keep 

these in mind as budget and resources allow.  

 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

engaging Bay Area residents where they are.  The draft 

plan should include listening sessions with a broad 

array of stakeholders (small business representatives, 

elderly, youth, etc.). These sessions should occur in the 

community, during regularly-scheduled events, to 

make participation as easy as possible. These meetings 

should include an emphasis on under-represented 

constituents. 

 

 

42. Letter (Greenbelt Alliance) 

 

The Participation Plan should do a better job of 

harnessing civic engagement technology to reach 

broader audiences. Plan Bay Area’s website should be 

responsively designed—able to detect device type and 

internet speed and improve the user experience 

accordingly to maximize participation. For example, 

signing up to receive updates about Plan Bay Area 

should be the most obvious button on both MTC and 

Plan Bay Area websites.  

 

We are seeking to streamline navigation of the 

Plan Bay Area website and will keep your ideas in 

mind. 

43. Letter (Greenbelt Alliance) 

 

MTC should be creative in encouraging people to 

follow their social media accounts through a visionary 

advertising campaign, retweeting, and/or sharing other 

interesting content. Additionally, outreach should 

include a text messaging strategy to engage the many 

Bay Area residents who have cell phones but do not 

regularly access the internet. (ex. Use Textizen)  

 

We will keep your ideas in mind as budget and 

resources allow. 

44. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

The majority of citizens do not have direct voting 

access to a representative. For example in Marin, our 

MTC representative is elected by 20% of the 

population, leaving 80% of us with no direct access to a 

decision-maker.  “Involvement” is not the same as a 

legal right to vote for representatives, ballot measures, 

or to agree to be taxed. 

 

MTC’s composition is prescribed in state law and 

does not provide for directly elected members. 

45. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

The Public Meeting MTC held on October 8, 2014 and 

the Preliminary Draft released on November 7, 2014, 

45 day comment period fell during Thanksgiving, the 

Christmas Holiday, and New Year’s, which raises 

questions about the sincerity of the process. 

 

In response to comments made at an October 8, 

2014 evening public meeting held prior to the 

release of the Draft PPP, the public comment 

period was extended for an additional three 

weeks, to January 12, 2015. This provided the 

public with a full 66 days to comment. 

46. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

Regarding the Guiding Principles and five Strategies, 

the plan fails to convey that public comment will 

actually be taken into account, seriously considered, 

Please see the response to Comment #12. 

 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

and used to help shape decisions.   

 

47. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

MTC’s 27-member Policy Advisory Council is out of 

alignment with our representative government and its 

democratic process. There is no public accountability. 

PAC’s are Policy ADVISORY groups. These advisory 

groups do not have legal political power. 

 

Advisory councils are part and parcel of 

representative democracy, in that public policy 

makers (in this case members of MTC) directly 

appoint members of the public representing a 

range of viewpoints and backgrounds to serve on 

a formal advisory council to directly advise on 

key policy and fiscal issues that come before them 

for consideration and action. Meetings of MTC’s 

Policy Advisory Council are open to the public. 

Meeting materials are posted on MTC’s website 

and the deliberations are broadcast live then 

archived online. 

 

48. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

The 5 standing committees (Legislation, 

Administration, Planning, Program & Allocations, and 

Operations) demonstrate how the public is even further 

removed from decision making.  

Solution: At a minimum, name the members of the 

committees and provide the committee meeting 

schedule. Even more appropriate, these committees 

need to be terminated, agency advocacy prohibited and 

regional agencies absorbed into the State executive 

branch agencies and into our counties.   

 

You do raise a good point that the PPP should 

mention when MTC’s committees meet. While 

the times and dates are subject to change, and the 

MTC’s website is the best place to look for up-to-

date information on meetings, we have added 

information about meeting days on p. 9 of the 

Final Draft PPP.  

 

Regarding your suggestion to list committee 

members, the composition of MTC’s committees 

changes from time to time. Given that a new term 

is starting in February 2015, committee 

membership will change significantly. We 

therefore direct interested members of the public 

to MTC’s website for up-to-date information on 

committee membership. Committee members also 

are listed on each committee agenda.  

 

We respectfully disagree, however, that 

committee deliberations serve to distance the 

public from decision making. In fact the opposite 

is true. Committees are an integral part of the 

legislative process at all levels of government in 

the United States, and offer benefits to both the 

public as well as to the decision makers. 

Committee review and oversight provides two 

opportunities for the public to review and 

comment upon pending MTC actions. Board 

members serving on committees have the 

opportunity to delve more substantively into 

topics and develop subject-matter expertise. We 

likewise disagree that our organization should 

cease to exist.  

 

49. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

Provide the elected representatives with upcoming 

agenda items and provide links to relevant information. 

Explore mass media alternatives for the elected 

We do send electronic newsletters to elected 

officials in the Bay Area at all levels, and plan to 

use a communications tool kit to make it easier for 

our board members to communicate with their 

constituents (for more information see Appendix 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

representatives to communicate effectively with their 

constituents. 

 

A, p. 25, “Other Partnerships”). 

50. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

Public Participation Techniques, demonstrated at the 

October 8, 2014 meeting are not trusted. Rather than 

using techniques that fulfill the staff agenda, but not 

meet the needs of the public, find ways to bridge the 

gap between staff and public through genuine 

processes, discussion, and meaningful problem solving. 

Consider resources from the Kettering Foundation.  

 

Please know that our public workshops and events 

— including the one you reference — are 

designed to encourage dialogue and deliberation 

from the public. We hope to continue to improve 

our meetings. 

51. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

Public Participations Procedures for the RTP and TIP. 

The charts on pages 23, 28, 29, and 30 demonstrate the 

complexity of these processes and the challenges faced 

by the MTC Policy Council, staff, and the public. 

Solution: The success of these procedures will depend 

on many factors of clarity, but consider: 1) The goals; 

2) Alternative strategies to reach the goals; 3) Criteria 

by which the strategies are assessed; 4) Short and long-

range impact of reaching the goals; 5) Timeline; 6) 

Budget; 7) Evaluation with milestones and 

benchmarks; 8) The roles and responsibilities of 

individuals or groups; 9) Schedules to monitor, assess, 

report, and correct . Use the axiom: A picture is worth 

a 1,000 words. Use more diagrams. In contrast to the 

Milestones 2014 -‐ 2017 map on page 30, print 

diagrams in a readable format and font size.  

 

We agree that a picture is worth a thousand words. 

MTC recently released Vital Signs, an interactive 

website that residents can use to track the region’s 

progress toward reaching key transportation, land 

use, environmental and economic policy goals. 

Like Vital Signs, we will work to use more graphs 

and tables to depict information related to the Plan 

Bay Area update.   

52. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

You have a problem that individually engulfs the nine 

counties of the Bay Area and collectively impacts the 

MTC Planning Committee and the Joint Policy 

Committee. It is a core problem of trust and credibility.  

 

Please know that MTC and its partner agencies 

are committed to working together to protect the 

wealth of features that make the Bay Area a 

wonderful place, including our diverse 

communities, our transportation network, our 

beautiful natural environment and our innovative 

economy. 

53. Letter (Susan Kirsch) 

 

Public Participation Goals for Plan Bay Area. These are 

excellent goals and have broad based support. The 

current strategies to achieve these goals, however, are 

measured in terms that are substantially meaningless, 

such as producing user-friendly videos, holding 

meetings in all 9 counties, and logging 100% of written 

correspondence. This leaves a great challenge and room 

for significant improvement. 

 

We agree that public engagement is challenging 

and certainly there is room for improvement. The 

measures show the unprecedented public 

participation in the last Plan Bay Area process, 

which included: 
 

 170 public meetings 

 Nearly 2,000 individuals participated in 36 

community events; over 5,000 individuals 

participated in the public opinion poll via 

telephone; and nearly 1,400 people participated 

in online surveys and forums 

 66,000 unique visitors to the Plan Bay Area 

website 

 Some 340 articles and opinion pieces were 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

published covering nearly every major local 

paper throughout the region 

 Over 5,000 comments were logged throughout 

the four phases of outreach, including input 

from public workshops, community-based 

meetings, EIR hearings and online forums. 
 

We look forward to working with partner 

agencies, advisors, the news media, civic groups 

and interested residents to improve upon our 

public engagement activities, which are critical to 

delivering a plan that reflects the priorities and 

values of the Bay Area. 

 

54. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

Include an early process for assessing important 

transportation needs of the region, particularly for low-

income communities, communities of color, those with 

disabilities and older adults, and describe how the 

needs will guide the Plan’s development. 

a. Review and consider analyses already conducted 

on transportation need. 

b. Create new methods for capturing need directly 

from residents, such as bus surveys, employee 

surveys at major employers of lower-wage 

workers, and organizations that provide services to 

older adults, those with disabilities and lower 

income communities.  

 

Please see the response to comment #24. 

55. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

Ensure the targets and measures are a starting point for 

how the plan scenarios are developed rather than 

waiting until the EIR to see how well each scenario 

meets the performance measures. They should guide 

the scenario process and decision points throughout. 

 

Please see the response to comment #25.  

 

56. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

MTC is building out a comprehensive performance 

measure web portal, which will be a great way to 

feature and share how MTC and Plan Bay Area are 

doing against their goals. Currently, there is no Equity 

section. If transportation and land use are the main 

mechanisms MTC utilizes to achieve its goals, with 

economy and environment featured as goals, equity 

must also be included. This highlight MTC's focus on 

advancing equity and allows for interested advocates to 

track progress. Equity measures should be both 

imbedded across sections as well as featured on their 

own.  

 

Vital Signs is a critical aspect of implementation 

relating to the current Plan; it is outside of the 

scope of this PPP, which is focused on the 

planning process for the update to Plan Bay Area. 

That said, Vital Signs incorporates equity 

measures throughout the various sections of the 

website – reflecting the unique and cross-cutting 

nature of equity issues. Furthermore, for each of 

the performance targets in Plan Bay Area, the 

Vital Signs project will track corresponding 

indicators, including measures connected to equity 

goals (e.g., lower-income household 

affordability). 

 

57. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) Your comments on gentrification and 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

 

Ensure issues of gentrification and involuntary 

displacement are front and center in the Plan’s 

development. Be clear that the Plan intends to 

minimize and avoid the negative impacts of 

gentrification and plans to measures progress towards 

that goal. UC Berkeley’s Center for Community 

Innovation analysis on this – scheduled for release in 

March 2015 –can be a great starting point for baseline 

data. 

 

displacement are beyond the scope and purpose of 

the PPP.   

 

The Regional Prosperity Plan is structured to 

inform the implementation of Plan Bay Area. It 

may also provide mechanisms for stronger 

regional coordination beyond Plan Bay Area and 

the purview of the regional agencies. Housing 

affordability and displacement are both issues 

being considered as part of the Prosperity Plan. 

58. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

Provide a focus on quality jobs.  Plan Bay Area 

provides an enormous opportunity to support the 

advancement and development of new quality jobs. 

The opportunity should be maximized.  

 

Your comments on quality jobs are beyond the 

scope and purpose of the PPP.   

 

The Regional Prosperity Plan is structured to 

inform the implementation of Plan Bay Area. It 

may also provide mechanisms for stronger 

regional coordination beyond Plan Bay Area and 

the purview of the regional agencies. Economic 

and Workforce development are both issues being 

considered as part of the Prosperity Plan 

59. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

Include consideration of health outcomes, especially 

for vulnerable populations, in the Plan Bay Area 

process. Specify how the plan will be developed with 

clear health equity goals. 

 

Please see the response to comment #28.  

60. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

Provide support for the development of accurate 

measures of transportation demand and mode share to 

effectively consider walking, biking and public 

transportation as critical means of transportation. 

 

Your comment on transportation demand 

measurements is beyond the scope of the PPP. 

That said, MTC recognizes the importance of non-

auto modes of transportation in achieving regional 

goals. MTC will consider a variety of potential 

performance measures and targets as part of the 

goals and target-setting processes at the beginning 

of the update to Plan Bay Area. Members of the 

public will have the opportunity to share their 

views on these goals at the first round of public 

open houses slated for May 2015. The current 

Plan Bay Area incorporates measures such as non-

auto mode share and time spent walking and 

biking that directly relate to the strategies you 

cite. These measures and/or other alternative 

measures may be used to assess scenarios and 

projects, based on what is ultimately adopted by 

the joint MTC Planning Committee and ABAG 

Administrative Committee as targets for the Plan 

Update. 

 

61. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

Build in steps for considering and implementing the 

actions and strategies that have been developed under 

the HUD SCI grant.  

Please see the response to comment #22. 

 

 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

 

62. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

Maximize Effective and Ongoing Means of Public 

Participation by low-income people, those with 

disabilities and older adults.  
 

Engage with underrepresented communities much 

earlier in the process with a focus on establishing 

understanding around the fundamentals of regional 

planning and how it impacts local experiences and 

local planning.  
 

Provide local opportunities for stakeholders, 

particularly those that are low-income, people of color, 

those with disabilities and older adults to meet with 

commissioners and other MTC decision-makers in 

their communities to express their needs and 

aspirations. 
 

Provide mini-grants to organizations representing low-

income participants to conduct outreach and facilitate 

their participation effectively and appropriately. 

 

Please see the response to comment #3. 

63. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

Provide information on how to ensure continued 

participation through resources and easy to access 

venues and means of providing substantive input. 

Vary the location of Plan Bay Area deliberation 

meetings around the Bay Area to make it easier to 

participate and enable a broader set of participants 

from across the region. 

Clarify the linguistic needs of communities of concern 

and specify how the participation process will support 

access for limited English speakers with an important 

stake in the Plan’s development.  

 

The best place for individuals to stay involved and 

offer input is to check the joint MTC/ABAG 

website www.PlanBayArea.org, or to follow MTC 

and ABAG on social media.  

 

As in the past, we will hold meetings around the 

region in various locations. Limited-English 

participants can request translation assistance at 

any point, as noted on pgs. 18-19 of the Final 

Draft PPP.  

 

Also, please see the response to comment #3.  

 

64. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

 

Maintain an Equity Working Group as an effective 

forum for integrating equity throughout the process. 

 

Please see the response to comment #1. 

65. Letter (Shireen Malekafzali) 

Include public participation in the development of 

scenarios, not just evaluation of the scenarios. 

Demonstrate how public input is considered and 

incorporated within the process. 

Specify how the Public Participation Process will be 

utilized and referred to throughout the Plan 

development and how accountability to the Plan will be 

Regarding your comment on scenarios, please see 

the response to comment #29. Regarding public 

comments, please see the response to comment 

#12.  

 

Regarding lessons learned from past efforts, 

please see the response to comment #16.  

 

 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://www.planbayarea.org/


 

assured.  

Ensure lessons learned from the last Plan Bay Area 

public participation process are not lost and are 

incorporated throughout this next round. 

 

66. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories)  

 

Start with the Needs: As in 2010, the draft Participation 

Plan skips this crucial step. MTC should include an 

early process for assessing the critical transportation 

and safety needs of the region as a whole, and of low - 

income communities and communities of color in 

particular, and should describe how the critical needs 

identified will guide later analyses and decision 

making. 

 

Please see the response to comment #24. 

67. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

The draft Participation Plan does not lay out a process 

for involving the public in the development of 

scenarios (as opposed to the evaluation of scenarios 

developed by staff). We have long expressed our desire 

to be included in that process. In the recent 

development of the CTP Guidelines, MTC heard and 

responded to the public’s desire to participate in 

workshops before the draft was “written in stone.” The 

same early engagement is even more crucial here.  

 

Please see the response to comment #29.  

68. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

A scenario should be developed and analyzed that, like 

the EEJ, maximizes greenhouse gas reduction by 

running more frequent local transit service; protecting 

high - propensity transit riders against displacement; 

incentivizing increased transit mode share with free 

passes (especially for youth, persons with disabilities, 

and seniors); locating more affordable housing near 

transit, schools and jobs; integrating local transit and 

safe, active transportation between these essential 

destinations; investing more in complete streets 

maintenance and improvement; and ensuring that 

underserved and disadvantaged communities receive a 

fair, timely and meaningful share of the benefits of 

public investment. 

 

Please see the response to comment #30.  

 

 

69. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

Evaluate and Integrate Goals and Performance 

Measures: Plan Bay Area’s goals and performance 

measures are strong, and should be strengthened. Since 

they are the yardstick against which progress will be 

measured, they should not live in a vacuum during this 

process: 

Please see the response to comment #25 regarding 

how the goals and performance measures relate to 

scenario analysis. With regard to Vital Signs, 

while it is a critical aspect of implementation for 

the current Plan, it is outside the scope of this 

PPP. That said, Vital Signs does include 

indicators directly aligned with all of Plan Bay 

Area’s performance targets, including measures 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

 The goals and performance measures should guide 

the entire process. For instance, rather than waiting 

until the EIR to see how well each scenario meets 

the performance measures, that analysis should be 

conducted during the process of scenario 

development and selection. 

 MTC should report annually on the extent to which 

progress has been made against PBA’s 

performance measures at both the project and 

overall plan levels, and the public should be 

involved in this evaluation process. The “Vital 

Signs” initiative is a welcome step in that direction, 

but it must encompass all of PBA’s performance 

measures and equity metrics. 

 

related to equity. Vital Signs will be updated on a 

regular basis going forward to track progress 

toward regional goals.   

 

70. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

Evaluate Near-Term Equity Impacts: Instead of 

analyzing equity impacts using a “colorblind” 

methodology that speculates about impacts at the 

distant horizon of the planning process, MTC should 

build on the approach suggested by HUD for our 

Regional Prosperity Plan’s “Fair Housing and Equity 

Assessment” by (a) identifying the determinants of 

current segregation and exclusion by race and income 

(including gentrification and displacement ) ; (b) 

adopting action program s to address and eliminate 

them in the short term (four years); and (c) assessing 

progress annually. 

 

This comment is beyond the scope of the PPP. 

Regarding the Fair Housing and Equity 

Assessment, please see the response to comment 

#22.  

71. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

Add a New Focus on Quality Jobs: With hundreds of 

billions of dollars being spent, our new regional plan 

has the power to help reduce extreme income 

inequality. It should include a focus on how that public 

funding can be used in a way that creates, and gives 

low - income residents access to, good jobs, and should 

incorporate key findings and strategies identified in the 

Economic Prosperity Strategy and other outcomes of 

the HUD - funded Sustainable Communities Regional 

Planning Grant. 

 

Please see the response to comment #58.  

 

 

72. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

Be Proactive about Access:  

 Public meetings should be held at times and places 

that are convenient and accessible to the public, 

including low - income residents. Evening and 

weekend meetings should be scheduled at locations 

that are well served by public transit that runs at 

night and on weekends. 

 Assure meaningful opportunities to participate by 

Limited English Proficient residents based upon 

Regarding timing and location of public meetings, 

please see the response to comment #4. Regarding 

removing language barriers for limited-English 

proficient residents, we do plan to seek 

partnerships with community-based organizations 

and intend to work with them to provide needed 

translations in a given community (please see the 

response to comment #3). Likewise we routinely 

translate vital documents (for example, the PPP) 

as well as any other documents upon request) in 

accordance with MTC’s Plan for Special 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

language needs of local communities and not 

merely a request for translation. Identify the 

language needs of “communities of concern,” 

especially in Priority Development Areas where 

planning and investment decisions may have the 

greatest impacts. Provide additional assistance 

reflecting the language needs of the locality in 

which meetings, hearings, and outreach occur. 

 

Language Services to Limited English Proficient 

Populations (as noted on p. 5 of the Final Draft 

PPP). 

 

73. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

Do Not Disband the Equity Working Group: Last 

round, the Regional Equity Working Group (REWG) 

was an effective forum for bringing together the best 

thinking on equity issues through an ongoing dialogue 

of equity experts, yet the draft Plan makes no mention 

of reconvening the REWG. At the same time, MTC 

should ensure that the recommendations of equity 

stakeholders do not live in a silo, but are brought to the 

Commission and to key advisory groups, such as the 

Regional Advisory Working Group, throughout the 

Plan Bay Area process. 

 

Please see the response to comment #1. 

74. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

Establish a Housing Advisory Committee and Track 

RHNA Performance: There is no plan to convene a 

housing - focused advisory group (pp. 21 - 22). 

Although this cycle of Plan Bay Area will not include 

an update of the Regional Housing Need Allocation 

(RHNA), housing 100 percent of the region’s projected 

population growth at all income levels remains one of 

SB 375’s two mandatory targets. A formal housing 

advisory group comprised of a diverse set of local and 

regional stakeholders will help ensure that this target is 

met. The process should also include an assessment of 

whether the region is on track to meet the 2013 RHNA, 

and whether policy changes are needed to encourage 

and accommodate the necessary housing production. 

 

This comment is beyond the scope of the PPP.   

 

RHNA performance is being tracked by the 

regional agencies. The 2013 RHNA-related 

updates to local Housing Elements are either 

underway or recently adopted. 

75. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

Demonstrate Explicit Consideration of Input: Describe 

how public input from each of the varied forums 

described in the draft Participation Plan will be used in 

the development, evaluation and selection among 

alternatives at each key decision point. Provide specific 

opportunities for residents of low - income 

communities of color to meet with decision makers in 

their communities. 

 

Please see the response to comment #12 regarding 

how public comments — including for alternative 

scenarios — are considered.  

 

Regarding opportunities for low-income and 

community of color residents, please see the 

response to comment #3. 

76. Letter (Multiple Organizations, 37 signatories) 

 

Highlight Local Outcomes: Residents connect to 

Plan Bay Area describes the long-range needs, 

policies and investments for the nine-county San 

Francisco Bay Area. Staff work closely with local 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

planning most effectively when they understand how it 

affects them at the local level – in their communities 

and neighborhoods. Describing throughout the Plan 

Bay Area process how decisions, scenarios, and plans 

affect transit riders, residents, commuters, and workers 

where they live and work will help ensure robust public 

participation 

 

jurisdictions and will strive to produce 

information and materials that help the public 

understand how the Plan affects individuals at the 

local level.   

77. Email (Stephen Nestel) 

 

You have acknowledged the failing of your outreach in 

Plan Bay Area One and it seems like the public is being 

taken for a second time with an autocratic central plan 

that presumes to control the economic and 

governmental destiny of millions for decades to come. 

Most people have no idea what is happening with Plan 

Bay Area because the entire process was designed to 

MINIMIZE public involvement by holding daytime 

meetings, arcane language and the collusion of silence 

from local media.  Informal surveys have demonstrated 

that 80% of the INFORMED public is opposed.   

 

We respectfully disagree. The process for 

developing the current Plan Bay Area as adopted 

in 2013 was designed to encourage robust public 

participation, and involved an unprecedented 

number of Bay Area residents (please see the 

response to comments #50 and #53). Regarding 

your opposition for planning at the regional level 

to address transportation and housing issues, data 

from a 2012 telephone survey of 1,600 randomly 

selected Bay Area residents shows that an 

overwhelming 87 percent of Bay Area residents 

express support for the concept of a regional 

transportation and housing plan like Plan Bay 

Area.  

 

78. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

Specifically, please note that Title VI does not require 

citizenship for its protections, and numerous non-

citizens have strong interests in, or reliance on, their 

rights to public transit and other transportation issues 

and services. Before bringing the document back for 

approval, MTC staff should conduct a further review to 

eliminate the existing uses of “citizen” in the document 

except when it is used as a direct quote from other 

sources. As one example, the description of the Policy 

Advisory Council on page 7 references “citizen 

advisors” – is this now a requirement for appointment? 

 

We agree that citizenship is not a prerequisite for 

civil rights nor is it a requirement to serve on our 

Policy Advisory Council. We use this term in the 

expanded definition to describe a resident of our 

region, as opposed to a representative from a 

governmental agency. We have removed it. 

79. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

This is also to recognize and urge that a second 

comment period may well be needed to allow the 

public to respond collectively to MTC staff’s 

preliminary recommendations for the PPP update. 

Given comments by others, as well as those below, a 

further iteration should be conducted, and indeed, there 

appears to be adequate time to allow this additional 

involvement and enhancement of understanding the 

process. 

 

We do not see the need for a second comment 

period since we are not recommending any 

significant changes to the Final Draft PPP; the 

changes recommended by staff are intended to 

clarify or strengthen the original draft. 

80. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

Have an Evaluation of each iteration of the Regional 

Public Participation Plan. It would be helpful to 

We do report on each phase of public engagement 

for our long-range plans, and these documents are 

available under the heading “PBA Outreach and 

Participation Program” on the Plan Bay Area 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

identify more quantitative evaluation criteria as part of 

the PPP so that the public can be advised and provide 

input on how we will all know if-or-when “success” 

has been achieved; most of the proposed “metrics” are 

qualitative and difficult to measure. But it would be 

more useful and indeed honest to do so as part of this 

introduction to the next Plan update, to record and 

disclose areas where the public identifies needs for 

improvement. Also, an up-to-date Evaluation should be 

made available for public review and comment as to 

how the 2010 PPP has addressed the public’s goals.  

 

website at this link: http://planbayarea.org/plan-

bay-area/final-plan-bay-area/final-supplementary-

reports.html 

 

An evaluation of the entire Plan Bay Area Public 

Outreach and Participation Program can be 

viewed at: 

http://planbayarea.org/pdf/Evaluation_Report_PB

A_Outreach.pdf 

81. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

A key element in the development of the 2013 

RTP/SCS was the new publicly noticeable partnership 

between MTC and ABAG. But the absence of 

information regarding ABAG’s statutory and other 

anticipated roles leading up to the 2017 document is 

stark, and requires further explanation, as well as 

commitment by ABAG. The draft PPP is being 

released by and is due to be adopted by MTC alone – 

why is no action listed by ABAG? 

 

This Draft PPP details which agency — ABAG, 

MTC, or both — will be responsible for making 

decisions on each of the planning milestones. 

MTC, as the federally designated metropolitan 

planning organization (MPO), adopted the 2010 

PPP. Both federal and state law task the MPO 

with the responsibility of developing and adopting 

the PPP. Please see the response to comment #15.  

 

82. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

The availability and archiving of audiocasts of MTC 

standing committee meetings and other key public 

events and MTC - ABAG jointly sponsored meetings is 

laudable and much appreciated. But why are not similar 

events conducted “solely” by ABAG similarly 

available (e.g., the Regional Planning Committee), 

when they share the same venue and have access to the 

same technology? 

 

A consultant videotapes ABAG’s major meetings: 

Executive Board, Legislation and Governmental 

Organization Committee, Finance and Personnel 

Committee (except when discussing personnel 

issues), Regional Planning Committee and 

General Assembly. These videos are available on 

http://regional-video.com/mtc-abag-video-index/ 

(YouTube) and also linked from ABAG’s website 

http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/. We have added 

language to p. 20 of Appendix A to alert the 

public to this resource.  

 

83. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

Open and transparent meetings and processes: In 

numerous places, significant qualifiers appear on these 

public rights (e.g., “ample” or “reasonable” 

opportunities). There needs to be more evidence than 

perfunctory statements that “MTC staff makes every 

effort” regarding meeting minutes, or to explain why 

outcomes do not correspond to views expressed. The 

document needs to document why and how staff 

actions or analysis are changed by public input. 

 

The PPP is intended to be a framework for how 

the public can get involved to help influence and 

shape key MTC decisions or to access the 

agency’s programs and services. It is written to 

describe MTC’s commitment to providing a 

transparent, inclusive participation process that 

offers early and continuing opportunities for 

engagement, and we are committed to following 

the principles and strategies outlined on pp 2-3 of 

the Final Draft PPP. Please also see the response 

to comment #12.  

  

84. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

It seems inappropriate for MTC staff to pre-judge the 

relative “value” to individuals on how they can or 

should benefit from addressing various steps in the 

planning process (e.g., “there is comparatively less 

This language is intended to encourage members 

of the public to get involved earlier in the process 

for considering transportation projects, such as 

during the development of the long-range plan on 

the rationale that earlier engagement is best. 

However, we agree that the language could be 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://planbayarea.org/plan-bay-area/final-plan-bay-area/final-supplementary-reports.html
http://planbayarea.org/plan-bay-area/final-plan-bay-area/final-supplementary-reports.html
http://planbayarea.org/plan-bay-area/final-plan-bay-area/final-supplementary-reports.html
http://planbayarea.org/pdf/Evaluation_Report_PBA_Outreach.pdf
http://planbayarea.org/pdf/Evaluation_Report_PBA_Outreach.pdf
http://regional-video.com/mtc-abag-video-index/
http://abag.ca.gov/meetings/


 

value for public to participate in the TIP,” page 19). 

The timing of when RTP projects make it into the TIP 

is indeed a significant public issue for those who rely 

on, or are affected by, identified projects 

 

improved and thus we modified the wording on  

p. 20 of the Final Draft PPP. 

85. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

The statutory requirement whereby SB 375 assigns 

joint responsibility for Plan Bay Area to MTC and 

ABAG makes the absence of commitments by ABAG 

as to what they will be doing in these processes quite 

noteworthy. The document, or at least at a minimum 

Appendix A, should be a joint document, mutually and 

formally agreed to by both agencies. 

 

Please see the response to comment #81.  

 

 

86. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

There is a disconnect between several of the 

representations in the document and actual experience. 

In practice, MTC staff adheres to the least applicable 

minimums required by the Ralph M. Brown Act and 

other “open meeting” provisions – unfortunately, far 

too many discussion opportunities are closed to the 

public under various (and often unnecessary or 

inappropriate) claims of exemptions. It should change 

its policies and practices so that the great majority of 

meetings are open and available to the public. As one 

example, the last paragraph on page 7 states that “MTC 

facilitate policy and technical discussion through 

numerous ad hoc working groups” –  the PPP should 

identify what these are, how decisions are made as to 

whether public access will be allowed, and if not, why.  

When MTC or its staff “coordinates” with “counterpart 

agencies in adjacent regions,” how is the public 

notified and invited? If not, why not? Further, how will 

MTC (and ABAG) go beyond the bare minimums of 

the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in 

providing useful information to both the public and 

decision - makers regarding the next Plan Bay Area? 

 

MTC is fully committed to meeting the 

requirements of the Brown Act and CEQA. This 

includes providing public access to public 

meetings, including providing an audio archive of 

public meetings on its website.  

 

Regarding technical ad hoc, staff-level working 

groups — including with staff from counterpart 

agencies in adjacent regions — such groups are 

used from time to time to address issues that 

require consultation of a detailed and technical 

nature. It is not possible to know in advance 

which issues might require a working group. Any 

resulting policy decisions are brought before the 

Commission.  

 

All staff-level technical working groups that 

might be needed for Plan Bay Area will be 

discussed at the Regional Advisory Working 

Group.  

 

 

87. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

Multiple places in the draft document reference 

“Resolution 3757” – it (and any other resolutions and 

policies related to public communications) should be 

available and searchable on the MTC website. 

 

MTC Resolution 3757 can be found via a search 

from MTC’s website. MTC plans to transition to a 

new software platform that should further improve 

search capabilities for all MTC meeting packets, 

including resolutions that are up for revision. 

MTC is in the midst of an overhaul to its website, 

and search capabilities there should also improve. 

 

88. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

The description of Executive Orders on pages 4-5 only 

addresses such actions at the federal level – similar 

such pronouncements have been made at the State 

level, notably by the current and immediate past 

We reference federal executive orders pertaining 

to civil rights and environmental justice because 

we are a recipient of federal funding and as such 

are obliged to assist the U.S. Department of 

Transportation in implementing applicable federal 

executive orders. 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

Governors relating to Greenhouse Gas reductions. The 

document should be revised to include State – level 

Executive Orders. 

 

 

Regarding the applicability of state executive 

orders pertaining to greenhouse gas emissions, 

this is a subject of active litigation, on appeal to 

the California Supreme Court. With the exception 

of a single Court of Appeal decision in a case 

involving the San Diego Association of 

Governments (SANDAG), California courts have 

long held that local government agencies may 

exercise considerable discretion in what to 

consider. 

 

One of the issues on appeal is whether the Court 

of Appeal was correct in applying the Executive 

Order at issue to SANDAG, as doing so elevates 

the Executive Order beyond its constitutional 

bounds and raises serious separation of powers 

concerns.  Until the issue is resolved by the 

California Supreme Court, MTC believes it is not 

appropriate to elevate these Executive Orders to 

the status of legislative mandates. 

 

89. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

There are multiple other references in the draft 

document where explanations should be expanded in 

order to be useful to the interested public. As examples, 

where is a list of “newspapers of general circulation” in 

each county to which MTC meeting notices are 

provided, or a list of the “numerous newspapers” where 

public hearing notices are sent? What is the list of 

“local media” as a “technique” (page 16)? How does a 

“database of local government officials and staff” 

connect to “targeted mailings to keep the public 

updated” (page 10)? If an individual member of the 

public is included in MTC’s database, how do they 

know how they or their areas of interest are identified? 

When “major initiatives and events” are announced “if 

appropriate” by email, who decides “appropriateness” 

for the public, and how? 

 

 MTC works with media outlets large and small to 

release information to the public. Regarding a 

listing of media outlets, see the response to 

comment #33.  

 

MTC utilizes its database of interested persons 

and government staff to keep its numerous 

stakeholders informed via electronic newsletters 

or email. Some information may be targeted by 

county.  

 

 MTC has multiple ways for people to sign up for 

alerts and information.  Members of the public 

can select to receive certain categories of updates 

from the News section of MTC’s website via a 

web subscription service. You have raised some 

specific ideas we will look into further to make 

our system more robust so that individuals can 

better identify their interests.   

 

90. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

MTC’s Plan for communications with and services for 

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Populations is 

identified on page 17 as a “technique for involving low 

income communities and communities of color” – 

please explain the intended connection between income 

& race with language. Further, the “techniques” of 

polls, surveys and focus groups do not identify how 

persons with languages other than English are included. 

 

Data suggest there is a correlation between 

limited-English proficiency and lower incomes, as 

well as between limited-English proficiency and 

race/ethnicity. We have clarified the specific 

techniques used when reaching out to Limited-

English proficient persons, low-income 

individuals, communities of color and low-literacy 

populations. Additionally, we have added 

language on p. 19 of the Final Draft PPP to reflect 

MTC’s practice to offer translated polls/surveys 

into other languages, such as Spanish and 

Chinese, in order to involve LEP populations; as 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

well as to hold focus groups in-language or offer 

translation services. 

 

91. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

ABAG’s Regional Planning Committee (RPC) is 

described briefly in the draft PPP for Plan Bay Area 

(Appendix A, page 22) but they do not appear to be 

assigned a role for any of the “key milestones” 

outlined, even though they have already had significant 

discussions on matters such as Priority Development 

Areas and Priority Conservation Areas. Nor is any 

successor to the Regional Equity Working Group 

(REWG) identified for any role for the 2017 PBA 

update, even for the Title VI and Environmental Justice 

Analysis. Please correct these omissions. 

 

ABAG’s Regional Planning Committee has an 

advisory role relative to the development and 

adoption of Plan Bay Area. ABAG utilizes its 

Executive Board and Administrative Committee 

for decision-making. 

 

Regarding the Regional Equity Working Group 

please see the response to comment #1. 

92. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

A comprehensive list of “unresolved” topics and issues, 

and requests for further information was developed 

throughout the course of the 2011-to-2013 REWG. 

When and how will responses to these information 

requests be available? 

 

This comment is beyond the scope and purpose of 

the PPP. During the last Plan Bay Area process, 

the Regional Equity Working Group (REWG) 

created a “parking lot” for important issues 

impacting the Bay Area that were beyond the 

purview of MTC and ABAG. It was not expected 

that MTC or ABAG could respond to all of these 

issues, many of which are beyond the purview of 

either agency. The REWG provided a good forum 

to consider the variety of challenges that face the 

region’s communities of concern, as well as for 

people who are low-and moderate income 

generally. The Regional Prosperity Plan slated for 

completion in 2015 was developed and advanced 

with the objective of identifying potential 

solutions to some of these challenges (Please see 

the response to comment #22 for more 

information.)  

 

93. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

The identification in the draft PBA PPP of the link 

relating to Legal Settlements from the 2013 PBA can 

be useful, but at a minimum, the page on “Legal 

Documents” should be improved by adding dates of 

materials reported. How will the interested public be 

informed when updates and additions to this site are 

posted? 

 

Information on all of the Plan Bay Area lawsuits 

and Settlement Agreements has been featured 

prominently on the www.PlanBayArea.org 

website. New developments are highlighted as 

they happen. 

 

94. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

It is also crucial that an Evaluation and Monitoring 

report be provided regarding implementation and 

performance of the 2013 PBA, as input to the 2017 

process. Both the public and elected decision-makers 

should know what the region has actually achieved as 

work is started on the next RTP. If the new “Vital 

For a long-range plan, we believe that short-term 

trends should be considered with caution relative 

to informing future policy considerations. 

However, performance monitoring is a key 

component for both the development and 

implementation of Plan Bay Area and will be 

utilized to inform the development of the update 

to Plan Bay Area. This information will be made 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP

http://www.planbayarea.org/


 

Signs” initiative is intended to fill this role, it should be 

more clearly described; if this is not the intent, how 

will the information be made available? 

 

available online, through the Regional Advisory 

Working Group and the public process for 

developing Plan Bay Area. 

 

95. Letter (Patrisha Piras) 

 

What is the purpose of “Attachment B” (Roles & 

responsibilities) for the draft PPP for Plan Bay Area? It 

appears to currently be an outline that needs to be filled 

in – if so, when will it be completed? 

 

The table in the referenced attachment is intended 

to show in one place the major technical and 

decision milestones, which agency or agencies are 

involved as well as the timing. It is complete, but 

as with any such schedule, is subject to change as 

the process unfolds. 

 

96. Email (Judy Schriebman) 

 

The public is not interested in being manipulated by 

false choices, carefully managed “opportunity sessions” 

and a lack of sincerity on staff’s part to rally and 

address concerns.  

 

 

Please see the response to comment #50.  

97. Email (Judy Schriebman) 

 

It would behoove MTC and ABAG to knit together a 

coordinated Bay Area transportation network, with real 

time information on busses, Muni, and ferries, routes, 

times and payment cards FIRST before attempting to 

shoehorn more people into an already cramped and 

badly mismanaged and uncoordinated, aging 

transportation system. 

 

The SMART train will fail to serve any serious 

transportation needs due to the lack of follow up bus 

service at stations and the placement of the tracks in the 

path of sea level rise flooding. 

 

Please see the response to comment #9. 

98. Email (Judy Schriebman) 

 

The MTC board members should every one of them be 

taking the bus to all meetings, errands, etc. to see where 

the holes are, fixing those holes and making our Bay 

Area transportation system viable. 

 

The comment goes beyond the scope of this PPP. 

 

### 

 
 

Item 5, Memo Draft Final MTC PPP



 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN  

for the SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA 

 

 

Final Draft: 
February 6, 2015 

 

 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter 

101 Eighth Street, Oakland, CA 94607-4700 
 

 

Also available in Chinese and Spanish 
Other languages available upon request by calling 510.817.5757 

 
請撥打電話 510.817.5757 來索取中文版公眾參與計劃的初稿。 

 
Para solicitar una copia en español del  

Borrador Preliminar del Plan para la Participación del Público llame al 510.817.5757. 

 

 

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter 
101 Eighth Street 
Oakland, CA 94607 
Phone: 510.817.5700 
TTY/TDD: 510.817.5769 
Fax: 510.817.5848 
Web: www.mtc.ca.gov 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN  

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
I. Introduction ....................................................................................1 

MTC’s Commitment to Public Participation  ............................................. 2 

 

Federal and State Requirements  ............................................................... 3 

MAP 21 ………………………………………………………… .............................. 3 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 ……………………. ...................... 4 

Executive Orders  ................................................................................. 4 

2008 California Legislation  ................................................................. 5 

Other Requirements  ........................................................................... 6 

 

II. Continuing Public Engagement ....................................................7 

MTC’s Policy Advisory Council  .................................................................. 7 
 
Working With Neighboring Regions  ......................................................... 8 
 
Commission and Committee Meetings ...................................................... 8 
 
Database Keeps Persons in the Loop ........................................................ 10 
 
Public Meetings, Workshops and Forums ................................................ 11 
 
MTC’s Library: Information for the Asking .............................................. 11 
 
Social Media ............................................................................................... 12 
 
Website: www.mtc.ca.gov .......................................................................... 13 
 
Media Outlets Help Engage More Persons ............................................... 13 
 
Staff Dedicated to Assistance and Outreach ............................................. 14 

 

III. Public Participation Techniques .................................................15 

 
   

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



i i   |   P a g e  
 

 

IV. Public Participation Procedures for the Regional 
Transportation Plan and the Transportation Improvement 
Program ........................................................................................20 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) ........................................................ 21 
 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) ......................................... 26 
 
 

V. Interagency and Tribal Government Consultation Procedures  
for the Regional Transportation Plan and the  
Transportation Improvement Program .....................................32 

Public Agency Consultation ...................................................................... 32 
 
Other Protocol for Working with Public Agencies ....................................35 
 
Tribal Government Consultation .............................................................. 37 
 
 

VI. Evaluation and Update of the Public Participation Plan .........39 

 
 
APPENDICES  

Appendix A: A Public Participation Plan for the 2017 Update to Plan Bay 

Area 

 
 
 
 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     1  

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

Public Participation Plan 
 
 
 
 
I know of no safe depository of the ultimate powers of the society but 
the people themselves; and if we think them not enlightened enough 
to exercise their control with a wholesome discretion, the remedy is 
not to take it from them but to inform their discretion. 

— Thomas Jefferson 
 
 
 

I.  Introduction 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is the transportation 

planning and financing agency for the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area. The 

Commission also serves as the Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA), with oversight of 

the toll revenue from the region’s seven state-owned toll bridges, and the Service 

Authority for Freeways and Expressways (SAFE), with oversight of a region-wide 

network of freeway call boxes and roving tow trucks. MTC, through agreements 

with various state and local transportation agencies, also has responsibility to 

develop, operate, and finance an Express Lane Program.  

 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s public involvement process aims 

to give the public ample opportunities for early and continuing participation in 

critical transportation projects, plans and decisions, and to provide full public 

access to key decisions. Engaging the public early and often in the decision-

making process is critical to the success of any transportation plan or program, 

and is required by numerous state and federal laws, as well as by the 

Commission’s own internal procedures. 

 

This Public Participation Plan spells out MTC’s process for providing the public 

and interested parties with reasonable opportunities to be involved in the 

regional transportation planning process. 

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

2     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

M T C ’ S   C O M M I T M E N T   T O   P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N  
 

Guiding Principles 

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s public involvement procedures 

are built on the following guiding principles: 

 

1. Public participation is a dynamic activity that requires teamwork and 
commitment at all levels of the MTC organization.  

 
2. One size does not fit all — input from diverse perspectives enhances the 

process.  

 
3. Effective public outreach and involvement requires relationship building — 

with local governments, with stakeholders and advisory groups.  

 
4. Engaging interested persons in ‘regional’ transportation issues is challenging, 

yet possible, by making it relevant, removing barriers to participation, and 
saying it simply.  

 
5. An open and transparent public participation process empowers low-income 

communities and communities of color to participate in decision making that 
affects them (adopted by the Commission in 2006).  

 

MTC undertakes specific strategies to involve the public, including low-income 

persons and communities of color, in MTC’s planning and investment decisions. 

 

Strategy 1: Early Engagement Is Best 

MTC structures its major planning initiatives and funding decisions to provide 

for meaningful opportunities to help shape outcomes. For example, because 

MTC’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) is the blueprint for both new policies 

and new investments for the Bay Area, updates to the RTP are one of the best 

places for interested persons to get involved. 

 

Strategy 2: Access to All 

MTC works to provide all Bay Area residents opportunities for meaningful 

participation, regardless of disabilities or language barriers. Further, we 

recognize that one should not need to be a transportation professional to 

understand our written and oral communications. In this spirit, we: 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     3  

 hold public meetings in facilities that are accessible under the 
Americans With Disabilities Act, 

 provide auxiliary aids or interpreters to persons with disabilities or 
language translation barriers, 

 strive to communicate in plain language and provide appropriate 
public education materials, and 

 use visual tools to translate detailed data into information that is 
more readily understood. 

 
Strategy 3: Response to Written Comments 

MTC pays close attention to the views of the public. MTC is committed to 

responding to every letter and e-mail sent by individual members of the public. 

 

Strategy 4: Inform Commissioners and Public of Areas of Agreement 

and Disagreement 

MTC staff summarizes comments heard by various parties so that the 

Commissioners and the public have a clear understanding of the depth and 

breadth of opinion on a given issue. 

 

Strategy 5: Notify Public of Proposed or Final Actions 

MTC staff makes every effort to ensure that meeting minutes reflect public 

comments and document how comments are considered in MTC’s decisions. We 

strive to inform participants about how public meetings and participation are 

helping to shape or have contributed to MTC’s key decisions and actions. When 

outcomes don’t correspond to the views expressed, every effort is made to explain 

why not. 

 

F E D E R A L   A N D   S T A T E   R E Q U I R E M E N T S  
 
MAP 21 

Federal surface transportation legislation, known as MAP-21 (Moving Ahead for 

Progress in the 21st Century Act) and signed into law in 2012, underscores the 

need for public involvement. The law requires metropolitan planning agencies 

such as MTC to “provide citizens, affected public agencies, representatives of 

public transportation agency employees, freight shippers, providers of freight 

transportation services, private providers of transportation, representatives of 

users of public transportation, representatives of users of pedestrian walkways  

FLAG AREAS OF 
AGREEMENT AND 
DISAGREEMENT 

MTC staff summarizes 
comments heard by 
various parties so that 
the Commissioners 
and the public have a 
clear understanding of 
the depth and breadth 
of opinion on a given 
issue. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

4     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

and bicycle transportation facilities, representatives of the disabled, and other 

interested parties with a reasonable opportunity to comment” on transportation 

plans and programs. 

 

MAP-21 also requires MTC — when developing the Regional Transportation Plan 

and the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) — to coordinate 

transportation plans with expected growth, economic development, 

environmental protection and other related planning activities within our region. 

Toward this end, this Public Participation Plan outlines key decision points for 

consulting with affected local, regional, state and federal agencies and Tribal 

governments. 

 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 provides that no person shall, on the basis 

of race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 

benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity 

receiving federal financial assistance.  Therefore, Title VI prohibits MTC from 

discriminating on the basis of race, color or national origin in carrying out its 

transportation planning and programming activities, which receive federal 

funding. Title VI was further clarified and supplemented by the Civil Rights 

Restoration Act of 1987 and a series of federal statutes enacted in the 1990s.  

 

Executive Orders 

An Executive Order is an order given by the president to federal agencies. As a 

recipient of federal revenues, MTC assists federal transportation agencies in 

complying with these orders. 

 

 Executive Order 12898: Federal Actions to Address Environmental 

Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations 

Executive Order 12898 mandates that federal agencies make 

achieving environmental justice part of their missions. The 

fundamental principles of environmental justice include: 

 

o Avoiding, minimizing or mitigating disproportionately high and 

adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and 

low-income populations; 

o Ensuring full and fair participation by all potentially affected 

communities in the transportation decision-making process; and 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     5  

o Preventing the denial, reduction or significant delay in the 

receipt of benefits by minority populations and low-income 

communities. 

 

 Executive Order 13166: Improving Access to Services for Persons with 

Limited English Proficiency 

Executive Order 13166 states that people who, as a result of national 

origin, are limited in their English proficiency, should have 

meaningful access to federally conducted and federally funded 

programs and activities. It requires that all federal agencies identify 

any need for services to those with limited English proficiency and 

develop and implement a system to provide those services so all 

persons can have meaningful access to services. MTC’s Plan for 

Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient Populations 

can be found in English, Spanish and Chinese on MTC’s website at 

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/lep.htm.  

 

 Executive Order 12372: Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 

Executive Order 12372 calls for intergovernmental review of projects 

to ensure that federally funded or assisted projects do not 

inadvertently interfere with state and local plans and priorities. The 

Executive Order does not replace public participation, comment, or 

review requirements of other federal laws, such as the National 

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), but gives elected officials of state 

and local governments an additional mechanism to ensure federal 

agency responsiveness to state and local concerns. 

 

2008 California Legislation 

State law (SB 375, Steinberg, Chapter 728, 2008 Statutes) calls on MTC and the 

Association of Bay Area Governments to develop a Sustainable Communities 

Strategy — a new element of the Regional Transportation Plan — to integrate 

planning for growth and housing with long-range transportation investments, to 

strive to reduce greenhouse gas emissions for cars and light trucks. The law also 

calls for a separate Public Participation Plan for development of the Regional 

Transportation Plan and the Sustainable Communities Strategy. Appendix A 

contains the Public Participation Plan for Plan Bay Area, the region’s long-range 

transportation plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy. 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

6     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

Other Requirements 

A number of other federal and state laws call on MTC to involve the public in or 

notify the public of its decisions. MTC complies with all other public notification 

or participation requirements of the state’s Ralph M. Brown Act, the California 

Public Records Act, and the California Environmental Quality Act, the federal 

Americans with Disabilities Act, and other applicable state and federal laws. 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     7  

II. Continuing Public Engagement 

 

MTC is committed to an active public involvement process that provides 

comprehensive information, timely public notice and full public access to key 

decisions. MTC provides the public with myriad opportunities for continuing 

involvement in the work of the agency, through the following methods: 

 

M T C ’ S   P O L I C Y   A D V I S O R Y   C O U N C I L  

The Policy Advisory Council is a 27-member advisory panel that brings a range of 

interests to a single table to offer the Commission policy advice. Formed in 2010, 

the Policy Advisory Council builds on MTC’s long tradition of advisory 

committees and reflects efforts to improve the effectiveness of citizen advisors by 

merging what were previously three separate advisory committees. The members 

of the Policy Advisory Council reflect the “Three E’s” of the Economy, The 

Environment and Social Equity. 

 

The Council will be consulted during the development of MTC policies and 

strategies, and their recommendations on various issues will be reported directly 

to the Commission. The Council may pursue its own policy/program discussions 

and forward independent ideas to the Commission for consideration. The Council 

will address Commissioners directly at MTC committee and Commission 

meetings. MTC Resolution No. 3516 spells out the role and responsibilities of the 

Policy Advisory Council, including ways to encourage more dialogue between 

Commissioners and the Council. 

 

All Policy Advisory Council meetings are audiocast and archived on MTC’s 

website. Meetings are open to the public. In fact, tracking the agenda and 

discussions of MTC’s Policy Advisory Council is one of the best ways for 

interested persons to engage early in the major policy and fiscal issues 

confronting MTC. Agendas are posted on MTC’s website and persons can request 

to be placed on the mailing list. 

 

In addition to the panels listed above, MTC facilitates policy and technical 

discussions through numerous ad hoc working groups, and serves on other multi-

agency advisory committees. 

 

GET INVOLVED: 
SERVE ON MTC’S 
POLICY ADVISORY 
COUNCIL 

A major recruitment is 
done periodically to fill 
advisory council seats. 
However, MTC may 
open recruitment to 
fill interim vacancies. 
Check MTC’s website 
for current 
opportunities 
(www.mtc.ca.gov/get_
involved/) or call 
MTC’s Public 
Information Office at 
510.817.5757. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

8     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

W O R K I N G   W I T H   N E I G H B O R I N G   R E G I O N S  

MTC and its counterpart agencies in adjacent regions often coordinate with each 

other to identify transportation programs and projects of mutual interest for key 

travel corridors traversing both regions. While no formal agreements are in place, 

MTC works closely with the neighboring regions on a number of planning 

initiatives with the Sacramento, San Joaquin, Stanislaus, Santa Cruz and 

Monterey regions, among others. When updating long-range plans and 

Transportation Improvement Programs, the regions do keep each other informed 

and solicit input on planning and programming activities. For air quality 

planning purposes, MTC has an agreement with the Sacramento Area Council of 

Governments to detail agency responsibilities relating to transportation 

conformity and to coordinate the funding of certain projects receiving federal air 

quality funding in eastern Solano County, which is within the Bay Area but falls 

partly in the Yolo-Sacramento air basin. 

 

C O M M I S S I O N   A N D   C O M M I T T E E   M E E T I N G S  

MTC encourages interested persons to attend MTC Commission and standing 

committee meetings to express their views. Items on the Commission agenda 

usually come in the form of recommendations from MTC’s standing committees. 

Much of the detailed work of MTC is done at the committee level, and the 

Commission encourages the public to participate at this stage, either in person or 

by tracking developments via the web. At times it is necessary to impose a time 

limit on public comments in order to allow all attendees the opportunity to speak. 

 

At times it may be necessary to call a special meeting of the Commission or one of 

its committee meetings – one that will be held on a different day of the week than 

called for in MTC’s regular meeting schedule. A “Call and Notice of Special 

Meeting” will be distributed at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting, or in 

accordance with the Brown Act. The notice will be signed by the committee chair 

and posted on MC’s website, posted in the MTC Library, emailed to at least one 

newspaper of general circulation in each of the nine Bay Area counties, and 

emailed to any member of the news media upon request.  

 

Current MTC standing committees are shown in the following table: 

 

  

GET INVOLVED: 
ACCESSIBLE 
MEETINGS 

All Commission public 
meetings, workshops, 
forums, etc. are held 
in locations accessible 
to persons with 
disabilities. Monthly 
meetings of the 
Commission, and 
those of MTC standing 
committees and 
advisory committees, 
usually take place at 
MTC’s offices.  

Assistive listening 
devices or other 
auxiliary aids are 
available upon 
request. Sign‐language 
interpreters, readers 
for persons with visual 
impairments, or 
language translators 
will be provided if 
requested through 
MTC Public 
Information 
(510.817.5757) at 
least three working 
days (72 hours) prior 
to the meeting (five or 
more days’ notice is 

preferred). 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     9  

MTC Standing Committee Structure and Responsibilities 

Administration 
Committee 

Programming & 
Allocations 
Committee  

Planning 
Committee 

Operations 
Committee 

Legislation 
Committee 

These committees regularly meet the second 
Wednesday of each month, in the morning, at 
MTC’s offices. Meeting dates and times are 
tentative; confirm at www.mtc.ca.gov.  

These committees regularly meet the second Friday of each 
month, in the morning, at MTC’s offices. Meeting dates and 
times are tentative; confirm at www.mtc.ca.gov. 

 

Oversight of Agency 
Budget and  
Agency Work 
Program 
 
Agency Financial 
Reports/Audits 
 
Contracts 
 
Commission 
Procedures 
 
Staff Salaries  

And Benefits 

 

Annual Fund 
Estimate 
 
Fund Allocations 
 
State 
Transportation 
Improvement 
Program (STIP) 
 
Federal 
Transportation 
Improvement 
Program (TIP) 
 

 

Regional 
Transportation 
Plan 
 
Other Regional 
Plans (airports, 
seaports) 
 
State and Federal 
Air Quality Plans 
 
Corridor Planning 
Studies 
 
Transportation 
and Land Use 
Initiatives 

 

Transportation 
System 
Management and 
Operational 
Activities 
 
Contracts 
Related to 
System 
Management 
and Operations 
 
Service 
Authority for 
Freeways and 
Expressways 
(SAFE) 

 

Annual MTC 
Legislative 
Program 
 
Positions 
on 
Legislation 
& 
Regulations 
 
Public 
Participation 
 
Policy Advisory 
Council 

 
 

In addition to the above committees, MTC has other committees dedicated to 

specific issues, such as the Bay Area Toll Authority Oversight Committee, 

regarding toll-bridge accounts and improvement projects, the Bay Area 

Infrastructure Financing Agency, regarding express lanes, and the Bay Area 

Headquarters Authority to discuss issues relating to the new regional 

headquarters building under construction in San Francisco. 

 

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

1 0     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

Access to MTC Meetings 

** Final agendas are posted 72 business hours in advance of the meeting time in the MTC Library. 

 

D A T A B A S E   K E E P S   P E R S O N S   I N   T H E   L O O P  

MTC maintains a database of local government officials and staff, and other 

public agency staff and interested persons. The database allows MTC to send 

targeted mailings to keep the public updated on the specific issues they have 

requested to be kept up to date on, including information on how public 

meetings/participation have contributed to its key decisions and actions. 

  

Web Access to MTC Meetings 

[www.mtc.ca.gov] 

If You Have Limited or No 
Web Access * 

Contact the MTC Library or the 
Public Information Office to 
request meeting materials 

Meeting 
Materials 

WHAT … 

is available on  

the web? 

WHEN … 

is it posted on 

the web? 

HOW LONG… 

is it available 

on the web? 

         

Meeting 
Agendas 

♦ MTC Commission  
♦ Standing 
committees 

♦Advisory 
committees 

One week prior 

to meeting** 

6 months  Mailed to interested public 
or available at meeting 

Meeting 
Packets 

Same as above  Same as above  6 months  Same as above 

Audiocast of 
Meetings 

♦ MTC Commission  
♦ Standing 
committees 

♦ Policy Advisory 
Council meetings 

Listen to 
meeting live 

6 months  Meeting minutes will be 
mailed to interested public; 
copies of electronic 
recordings are available 

MTC 
Meeting 
Schedule 

Schedule of all 
Commission and 
advisory committee 
meetings 

Posted and 
updated 
continuously 

Posted and 
updated 
continuously 

Mailed to interested public 
or available at MTC 

GET INVOLVED: 
SIGN UP FOR 
MTC’S DATABASE 

Stay informed by 
signing up to receive 
mailings or periodic 
emails concerning 
major MTC 
initiatives. Anyone 
may request to be 
added to MTC’s 
database by calling 
MTC’s Public 
Information Office 
at 510.817.5757 or  
e‐mailing 
info@mtc.ca.gov. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     1 1  

P U B L I C   M E E T I N G S ,   W O R K S H O P S   A N D   F O R U M S  

Public meetings on specific issues are held as needed. If statutorily required, 

formal public hearings are conducted, and notice of these public hearings is 

placed in the legal section of numerous newspapers in the MTC region, including 

newspapers circulated in minority communities of the Bay Area. Materials to be 

considered at MTC public hearings are posted on MTC’s website, and are made 

available to interested persons upon request. In addition, materials are placed on 

file in the MTC Library.  

 

MTC also conducts workshops, community forums, conferences and other events 

to keep the public informed and involved in various high-profile transportation 

projects and plans, and to elicit feedback from the public and MTC’s partners. 

MTC holds meetings throughout the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area to 

solicit comments on major plans and programs, such as the long-range Regional 

Transportation Plan. Meetings are located and scheduled to maximize public 

participation (including evening meetings). 

 

For major initiatives and events, MTC typically provides notice through posting 

information on MTC’s website, and, if appropriate, through e-mail notices and 

news releases to local media outlets. 

 

M T C ’ S   L I B R A R Y :   I N F O R M A T I O N   F O R   T H E   A S K I N G  

The MTC Library, located in the Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter (the building that 

houses MTC offices) at 101 Eighth Street in Oakland, is open to the public week 

days. Check the website or call MTC Public Information (510.817.5757) for exact 

hours. This special library has an extensive collection of reports, books and 

magazines, covering transportation planning, demographics, economic analysis, 

public policy issues and regional planning in the San Francisco Bay Area. It is 

designed to meet the information needs of government agencies, researchers, 

students, the media and anyone else who is interested in transportation, regional 

planning and related fields. Special features include: 

 Extensive reference assistance by telephone, e-mail, fax and in-person 

 Two public access Internet terminals 

 Newspaper and magazine reading areas 

 Coin-operated copier 

 Open stacks 

GET INVOLVED: 
ALTERNATIVE 
LANGUAGE 
TRANSLATIONS 

If language is a 
barrier to your 
participation in 
meetings, MTC can 
arrange for an 
interpreter or 
translate meeting 
materials. Sign‐
language 
interpreters and 
readers for persons 
with visual 
impairments are 
also available. 
Please call MTC 
Public Information 
(510.817.5757) at 
least three working 
days (72 hours) 
prior to the meeting 
(five or more days’ 
notice is preferred). 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

1 2     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

 

The commitment to using technology to extend public outreach continues with 

MTC Library staff posting on MTC’s website the headlines of transportation and 

related stories from Bay Area daily newspapers as well as key statewide and 

national journals and other such publications. Readers can view the headlines 

each morning on MTC’s website or subscribe to the service via e-mail or by RSS 

feed (a method of electronic notification of web updates). 

 

The library makes public resource materials available for download by posting on 

the MTC website: http://www.mtc.ca.gov/library/pub.php and including URLs 

whenever available for all materials in our publicly available catalog 

http://slk060.liberty3.net/mtc/opac.htm. 

 

S O C I A L   M E D I A  

Another way to keep abreast of hot topics, events and comment opportunities is 

to follow MTC on social media, including Facebook, twitter, Instagram and 

YouTube. Likewise you can be notified when web content is updated by 

subscribing via RSS feel or through a service known as GovDelivery. All of MTC’s 

social media platforms are accessible via the home page of MTC’s web site: 

www.mtc.ca.gov. 

 

 

 

 

  

GET INVOLVED: THE 
FACTS AT YOUR 
FINGERTIPS 

MTC’s publications 
listed on MTC’s 
website can be 
ordered by phone 
(510.817.5836),  
e‐mail 
(library@mtc.ca.gov) 
or by completing an 
online form. The 
entire Library 
collection can be 
searched using the 
online catalog. A wide 
range of MTC 
publications are 
available for 
downloading. 

GET INVOLVED: 
KEEP ON TOP OF 
TRANSPORTATION 
NEWS 

MTC’s Library 
compiles an 
electronic news 
summary with links 
to transportation‐
related articles 
appearing in major 
Bay Area and national 
news outlets. To 
subscribe, visit MTC’s 
website: 
www.mtc.ca.gov/new
s/headlines.htm.  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     1 3  

W E B S I T E :   WWW . M T C . C A . G O V    

MTC’s website — www.mtc.ca.gov — is targeted to audiences ranging from transit 

riders seeking bus schedules to transportation professionals, elected officials and 

news media seeking information on particular programs, projects and public 

meetings. 

 

Updated daily, the site provides information about MTC’s projects and programs, 

the agency’s structure and governing body and upcoming public meetings and 

workshops. It contains the names, e-mail addresses and phone numbers for staff 

and Commission members; all of MTC’s current planning documents, 

publications located in the MTC Library, data from the U.S. Census as well as 

detailed facts about the region’s travel patterns. It also includes important links 

to partner government agencies as well as to other sites such as the Bay Area’s 

511.org for traveler information and the FasTrak®.org site for users of the 

region’s automated toll system.  

 

Interested persons also may access a wealth of data on Bay Area travel and 

commute patterns online at: www.mtc.ca.gov/maps_and_data/. Included is 

access to maps, census data, transit operator statistics, background on travel 

models, and research papers. 

 

M E D I A   O U T L E T S   H E L P   E N G A G E   M O R E   P E R S O N S  

MTC regularly issues news releases about Commission programs and actions of 

interest to the public. These include announcements of public workshops and 

hearings, recruitment for positions on MTC’s advisory committees, and 

employment opportunities through MTC’s high school and college internship 

programs. News releases are sent to regional, state and national media — 

including minority print and broadcast outlets — and some are translated into 

Spanish, Chinese and other languages. In addition to news releases, MTC staff 

and Commissioners also host press events and news conferences (often in 

conjunction with other transportation agencies), visit newspaper editorial boards, 

and conduct briefings with Bay Area reporters and editors to discuss key 

initiatives such as the Regional Transportation Plan. These briefings provide an 

opportunity for both print and broadcast journalists to learn about MTC 

programs that may not immediately produce traditional hard news stories, thus 

GET INVOLVED: 
TRACK MTC VIA 
WEB 

Log onto MTC’s 
website — 
www.mtc.ca.gov — 
for meeting agendas 
and packets. Live 
and archived 
audiocasts of 
meetings make it 
possible for 
interested parties to 
“tune in” at their 
convenience to all 
Commission and 
standing committee 
meetings. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

1 4     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

providing background context for subsequent articles or radio/TV pieces. A list of 

media outlets can be found at this project website: www.PlanBayArea.org. 

 

S T A F F   D E D I C A T E D   T O   A S S I S T A N C E   A N D   O U T R E A C H  

In addition to the components of MTC’s public outreach program detailed above, 

MTC’s commitment to public participation includes staff dedicated to involving 

the public in MTC’s work. Public Information staff provides the following 

materials and services: 

 

 Public Information staff can make available to the public any item on the 

MTC website (including meeting notices, agendas, and materials that 

accompany agenda items for meetings of the Commission and its 

committees and advisory panels) if a person does not have Internet 

access. 

 Public Information staff works with interested organizations to arrange 

for MTC staff and commissioners to make presentations to community 

groups. 

 MTC staff participates in region-wide community and special events, 

especially events in targeted ethnic and under-represented communities. 

 Public Information staff will respond by telephone (510.817.5757), U.S. 

mail (101 Eighth Street, Oakland, CA 94607) or e-mail (info@mtc.ca.gov) 

from the public and the media about MTC. 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     1 5  

III.  Public Participation Techniques 

MTC uses various techniques to develop and execute specific public participation 

programs to inform its major decisions, such as for corridor studies, new funding 

policies or updates to the Regional Transportation Plan. 

 

A menu of participation techniques follows, and includes some tried-and-true 

approaches as well as new suggestions we heard from the public while developing 

this plan. 

 

Public Meetings/Workshops 

 Offer customized presentations to existing groups and organizations 

 Co-host workshops with community groups, business associations, etc. 

 Contract with community-based organizations in low-income and 

minority communities for targeted outreach 

 Sponsor a topical forum or summit with partner agencies, with the media 

or other community organizations 

 Encourage opportunities for public input directly to policy board 

members 

 

Techniques for Public Meetings/Workshops 

 Open Houses 

 Question-and-Answer sessions with planners and policy board members 

 Break-out sessions for smaller group discussions on multiple topics 

 Interactive exercises 

 Customized presentations 

 Vary time of day for workshops (day/evening) 

 Conduct meeting entirely in alternative language (Spanish, Chinese, for 

example) 

 

Visualization Techniques 

 Maps 

 Charts, illustrations, photographs 

 Table-top displays and models 

 Web content and interactive games 

 Electronic voting at workshops 

 PowerPoint slide shows 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

1 6     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

 

Polls/Surveys 

 For major planning efforts (such as the Regional Transportation Plan 

and Sustainable Communities Strategy), conduct statistically valid 

telephone polls  

 Electronic surveys via web 

 Intercept interviews where people congregate, such as at transit hubs 

 Printed surveys distributed at meetings, transit hubs, on-board transit 

vehicles, etc. 

 

Focus Groups 

 Participants recruited randomly from telephone polls 

 Participants recruited by interest area 

 

Online and Printed Materials 

 User-friendly documents (including use of executive summaries) 

 Outside review of publications to ensure clear, concise language 

 Post cards 

 Maps, charts, photographs and other visual means of displaying 

information 

 

Targeted Mailings/Flyers 

 Work with community-based organizations to distribute flyers 

 E-mail to targeted database lists 

 Distribute “Take-one” flyers to key community organizations 

 Place notices on-board transit vehicles and at transit hubs 

 

Utilize local media 

 News releases 

 Invite reporters to news briefings 

 Meet with editorial staff 

 Opinion pieces/commentaries 

 Purchase display ads 

 Negotiate inserts into local printed media 

 Visit minority media outlets to encourage use of MTC news releases 

 Place speakers on Radio/TV talk shows 

 Public Service Announcements on radio and TV 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     1 7  

 Develop content for public access/cable television programming 

 Civic journalism partnerships  

 

Use of the Internet/Electronic Access to Information 

 Website with updated content 

 Use social media to reach a larger audience 

 Audio-cast of past public meetings/workshops 

 Electronic duplication of open house/workshop materials 

 Interactive web with surveys, comment line 

 Use the web to provide interaction among participants 

 Access to planning data (such as maps, charts, background on travel 

models, forecasts, census data, research reports) 

 Provide information in advance of public meeting 

 

Notify Public via 

 Blast e-mails 

 Notice widely disseminated through partnerships with local government 

and community-based and interest organizations 

 Electronic newsletters 

 Social media such as Twitter and Facebook  

 Local media 

 Notices placed on-board transit vehicles and at transit hubs 

 

Newsletters 

 MTC’s electronic newsletter  

 Submit articles for publication in community/corporate newsletters 

 

Techniques for Involving Low-Literacy Populations 

 Train staff to be alert to and anticipate the need of low-literacy 

participants in meetings, workshops, and the like 

 Robust use of “visualization” techniques, including maps and graphics to 

illustrate trends, choices being debated, etc. 

 Personal interviews or use of audio recording devices to obtain oral 

comments 

 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

1 8   |   P u b l i c  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  P l a n  

Techniques for Involving Low Income Communities and 

Communities of Color 

See also MTC’s Final Revised Plan for Special Language Services to Limited 

English Proficient (LEP) Populations, which can be found in English, Spanish 

and Chinese on MTC’s website at www.mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/lep.htm. 

 Involve MTC’s Policy Advisory Council 

 Grants to community-based organizations to co-host meetings and 

remove barriers to participation by offering such assistance as child care 

or translation services  

 “Take One” flyers on transit vehicles and at transit hubs 

 Outreach in the community (flea markets, churches, health centers, etc.) 

 Use of community and minority media outlets to announce participation 

opportunities 

 Personal interviews or use of audio recording devices to obtain oral 

comments  

 Translate materials; have translators available at meetings as requested   

 Include information on meeting notices on how to request translation 

assistance  

 Robust use of “visualization” techniques, including maps and graphics to 

illustrate trends, choices being debated, etc.  

 

 

Techniques for Involving Limited-English Proficient Populations 

See also MTC’s Final Revised Plan for Special Language Services to Limited 

English Proficient (LEP) Populations (the “LEP Plan”), which can be found in 

English, Spanish and Chinese on MTC’s website at 

www.mtc.ca.gov/get_involved/lep.htm. 

 

 Use of the above-noted techniques, modified where appropriate in 

accordance with the LEP Plan  

 Train staff to be alert to and anticipate the need of Limited-English 

Proficient low-literacy participants in meetings, workshops, and the like  

 Personal interviews or use of audio recording devices to obtain oral 

comments in languages other than English 

 Translated documents and web content on key initiatives 

 Translate materials; have translators available at meetings as requested  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     1 9  

 Include information on meeting notices on how to request translation 

assistance 

 On-call translators for meetings 

 Translated news releases and outreach to alternative language media, 

such as radio, television, newspapers and social media 

 Robust use of “visualization” techniques, including maps and graphics to 

illustrate trends, choices being debated, etc.   

 When conducting statistically valid polls, surveys or focus groups, offer 

the information in other languages such as Spanish or Chinese 

 

 

Techniques for Reporting on Impact of Public Comments 

 Summarize key themes of public comments in staff reports to MTC 

standing committees 

 Direct mail and email to participants from meetings, surveys, etc. to 

report final outcomes 

 Newsletter articles 

 Updated and interactive web content 

 

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

2 0     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

IV. Public Participation Procedures for the 

Regional Transportation Plan and the 

Transportation Improvement Program  

There are two key transportation initiatives of MTC’s that are specially called out 

in federal law as needing early and continuing opportunities for public 

participation — development of the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and the 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

 

Public Participation Opportunities in the RTP and TIP 

Because of its comprehensive, long-term vision, the RTP provides the earliest and 

the best opportunity for interested persons and public agencies to influence 

MTC’s policy and investment priorities for Bay Area transportation. It is at this 

earlier RTP stage where investment priorities and major planning-level project 

design concepts are established, and broad, regional impacts of transportation on 

the environment are addressed. Thus, it might be easier for a member of the 

public to influence decisions about projects at this stage. there is comparatively 

less value for public to participation in the Another opportunity for public 

participation, but further along in the process, is the TIP, which is a 

programming document that identifies funding for only those programs and 

projects that are already included in the RTP. A mid-point between the RTP and 

TIP is the project-selection process. Interested residents can become versed in 

how a transportation project moves from an idea to implementation — including 

local project review, details for how projects are included in MTC’s RTP, MTC’s 

Project Selection Process, the TIP and environmental review/construction phases 

— in a publication titled “A Guide to the San Francisco Bay Area’s Transportation 

Improvement Program, or TIP.” This document is available on MTC’s website 

(http://files.mtc.ca.gov/pdf/TIP/2015/guide_to_the_2015_tip.pdf) and from 

the MTC Library. 

 

Another easy way to engage on transportation policies and investment is to 

request to be added to MTC’s RTP database (see sidebar at left for instructions). 

 

  

GET INVOLVED: SIGN 
UP FOR MTC’S RTP 
DATABASE 

One of the ways to 
have the most impact 
on MTC’s policy and 
investment decision is 
to participate in an 
update of the regional 
transportation plan 
(RTP). Contact MTC’s 
Public Information 
Office online at 
www.PlanBayArea.org 
or at info@mtc.ca.gov, 
or call at 510.817.5757, 
and ask to be included 
in MTC’s database. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     2 1  

A .   R E G I O N A L   T R A N S P O R T A T I O N   P L A N  

The long-range Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) prioritizes and guides Bay 

Area transportation development over 25 years. The RTP is the comprehensive 

blueprint for transportation investment (transit, highway, local roads, bicycle and 

pedestrian projects), and establishes the financial foundation for how the region 

invests in its surface transportation system by identifying how much money is 

available to address critical transportation needs and setting the policy on how 

projected revenues are to be spent. The RTP is updated at least once every four 

years to reflect reaffirmed or new planning priorities and changing projections of 

growth and travel demand based on a reasonable forecast of future revenues 

available to the region. 

 

Under California Senate Bill 375 (Steinberg, Chapter 728, 2008 Statutes) the RTP 

must include a regional Sustainable Communities Strategy for achieving a 

regional target for reducing greenhouse gases for cars and light trucks and 

identify specific areas in the nine-county Bay Area to accommodate all the 

region’s projected population growth, including all income groups, for at least the 

next 25 years. The legislation requires MTC and the Association of Bay Area 

Governments (ABAG) to jointly develop the regional Sustainable Communities 

Strategy to integrate planning for growth and housing with long-range 

transportation investments. In the Bay Area, MTC and ABAG are joined by the 

Bay Area Air Quality Management District and the Bay Conservation and 

Development Commission to develop a plan that also incorporates shoreline 

planning and air quality objectives. 

 

The law also calls for a separate Public Participation Plan for development of the 

regional transportation plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy. Appendix A 

describes a Public Participation Plan for Plan Bay Area, the region’s Sustainable 

Communities Strategy and Regional Transportation Plan. 

 

MTC prepares several technical companion documents for RTP updates. These 

include a program-level Environmental Impact Report per California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines, and transportation air quality 

conformity analyses (to ensure clean air mandates are met) per federal Clean Air 

Act requirements. Certain revisions to the RTP may warrant a revision or update 

to these technical documents. The process for preparing and conducting  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

2 2     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

interagency consultation on the conformity analysis is described in MTC 

Resolution No. 3757. 

 

MTC also prepares an equity analysis of RTP updates to determine whether 

minority and low- income communities in the Bay Area share equitably in the 

benefits of the regional transportation plan without bearing a disproportionate 

share of the burdens. As an assessment of the region’s long-range transportation 

investment strategy, this analysis is conducted at a regional, program-level scale. 

This assessment of the long-range plan is intended to satisfy federal requirements 

under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and federal policies and guidance on 

environmental justice. For each update of the RTP, MTC will prepare a public 

participation plan (see below “RTP Update”) that will provide more information 

on how the equity analysis will be conducted throughout that update of the RTP. 

 

Updating and Revising the Regional Transportation Plan 

A complete update of an existing regional transportation plan is required at least 

once every four years. The RTP also may be revised in between major updates 

under certain circumstances, as described below in the table and narrative: 

 

 RTP Update 

This is a complete update of the most current long-range regional transportation 

plan, which is prepared pursuant to state and federal requirements.  

 

RTP updates include extensive public consultation and participation involving 

hundreds of Bay Area residents, public agency officials and stakeholder groups 

over many months. MTC’s Policy Advisory Council and other members of the 

public play key roles in providing feedback on the policy and investment 

strategies contained in the plan. Local and Tribal governments, transit operators 

and other federal, state and regional agencies also actively participate in the 

development of an RTP update via existing and ad hoc forums.  

 

For each RTP update MTC will prepare a multi-phased public outreach and 

involvement program to ensure that all those with a stake in the outcome are 

actively involved in its preparation. See Appendix A for specific information on 

public engagement for Plan Bay Area, which is slated to be updated in 2017. 

 

 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     2 3  

 RTP Amendment 

An amendment is a major revision to a long-range RTP, including adding or 

deleting a project, major changes in project/project phase costs, initiation dates, 

and/or design concept and scope (e.g., changing project locations or the number 

of through traffic lanes). Changes to projects that are included in the RTP only for 

illustrative purposes (such as in the financially unconstrained “vision” element) 

do not require an amendment. An amendment requires public review and 

comment, demonstration that the project can be completed based on expected 

funding, and/or a finding that the change is consistent with federal 

transportation conformity mandates. Amendments that require an update to the 

air quality conformity analysis will be subject to the conformity and interagency 

consultation procedures described in MTC Resolution No. 3757. 

 

 RTP Administrative Modification 

This is a minor revision to the RTP for minor changes to project/project phase 

costs, funding sources, and/or initiation dates. An administrative modification 

does not require public review and comment, demonstration that the project can 

be completed based on expected funding, nor a finding that the change is 

consistent with federal transportation conformity requirements. As with an RTP 

amendment, changes to projects that are included in the RTP’s financially 

unconstrained “vision” element may be changed without going through this 

process.  

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

2 4     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

Updating and Revising the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

Public Participation for an RTP Update 

 Prepare a public participation plan to provide early and continuing opportunities to comment. 
Review public outreach and involvement program with the public and advisory groups. 

 Implement public outreach and involvement program, which may include: 

 Numerous targeted workshops with local governments, partner agencies, advisory groups 
including MTC’s Policy Advisory Council, and the general public 

 Opportunities to participate via the web, online surveys, etc. 

 Posting draft documents to the web for public review and comment 

 Documents available for viewing at the MTC Library 

 Notify the public of opportunities to participate using such methods as local media outlets, web 
postings, electronic‐mailings to MTC’s database and advocacy groups. 

 Conduct inter‐governmental consultation, as appropriate. 

 Conduct interagency consultation as appropriate based on Air Quality Conformity Protocol 
(MTC Resolution No. 3757). 

 Release Draft Plan for at least a 55‐day public review period 

 Hold at least three public hearings in different parts of the region 

 Respond to significant comments 

 Provide additional review and comment opportunity of 5 days if the final RTP differs significantly 
from the Draft RTP and raises new material issues.  

 Adoption by the MTC Commission at a public meeting. Notify the public about the Commission’s 
action with electronic mailings to MTC’s database. 

 

Public Participation for an RTP Amendment 

 Release proposed amendment for a 30‐day public review 

 Notify the public of opportunities to participate and comment using such methods as local media 
outlets, email notice to MTC’s database or web postings. 

 Post amendment on MTC’s website for public review 

 Amendment available for viewing at the MTC Library 

 RTP Amendment reviewed at a public meeting of the MTC Planning Committee. 
 Approval at a public meeting by the MTC Commission. 
 Post approved RTP Amendment on the MTC website and notify the public about its approval 

via email to MTC’s database. 
 

Public Participation for RTP Administrative Modification 

 No formal public review. 
 Approval by MTC Executive Director. 
 RTP Administrative Modification posted on MTC website following approval. 
 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     2 5  

 

Countywide Transportation Plans 

Bay Area counties are authorized by state law to develop Countywide 

Transportation Plans on a voluntary basis, and the countywide plans are an 

integral part of the Regional Transportation Plan. These long-range planning and 

policy documents assess transportation needs and guide transportation priorities 

and funding decisions for that county over a 20-25 year horizon. These 

countywide plans inform the transportation projects and programs that are 

forwarded to MTC for consideration in the region’s long-range plan. MTC’s 

guidelines for development of countywide plans by the county Congestion 

Management Agencies can be found here: http://www.mtc.ca.gov/planning/ctp/ 

 

Congestion Management Process 

Under federal regulations, MTC is required to prepare a congestion management 

process (CMP) for the Bay Area that includes strategies for managing travel 

demand, traffic operational improvements, public transportation improvements, 

and the like. MTC’s Planning Committee at a public meeting adopts a CMP 

approximately every two years, with the results of this technical evaluation used 

to inform MTC decisions on program and investment priorities, including the 

Regional Transportation Plan. Those interested in this exercise may obtain copies 

of the relevant memoranda via MTC’s website, or by requesting to be added to the 

Planning Committee’s mailing list. 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

2 6     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

B .   T R A N S P O R T A T I O N   I M P R O V E M E N T   P R O G R A M  

The Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) helps implement the policy and 

investment priorities expressed by the public and adopted by MTC in the 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). In this way, public comments made as part 

of the RTP are reflected in the TIP as well. The TIP covers at least a four-year 

timeframe, and all projects included in the TIP must be consistent with the RTP, 

which covers 25 or more years. The TIP is a comprehensive listing of Bay Area 

surface transportation projects — including transit, highway, local roadway, 

bicycle and pedestrian investments — that: 

 receive federal surface transportation funding, or are 

 subject to a federally required action, or are 

 regionally significant, for federal air quality conformity purposes. 

 

The TIP does not contain all funds or projects or programs identified in the 

Regional Transportation Plan. The majority of revenues identified in the Plan are 

never included in the TIP. These include local and state funds used to operate 

and maintain the transportation network that do not meet the criteria listed 

above. The TIP in itself does not implement the plan, but is a subset of projects 

that are consistent with implementing the Plan. 

 

The TIP includes a financial plan that demonstrates there are sufficient revenues 

to ensure that the funds committed (or “programmed”) to the projects are 

available to implement the projects or project phases. Adoption of the TIP also 

requires a finding of conformity with federal transportation- air quality 

conformity mandates. 

 

Individual project listings may be viewed through MTC’s web-based Fund 

Management System at http://www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/fms_intro.htm. As part 

of MTC’s commitment to public involvement, many projects in the TIP are 

mapped to present the online reader with a visual location of the project. 

Individuals without access to the internet may view a printed copy of the project 

listings at the MTC library. 

 

In addition to a Transportation Improvement Program that is accessible online 

at: http://www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/tip/, MTC maintains free, subscription-

based e-mail distribution lists to inform interested individuals, transportation 

officials and staff of changes and actions related to the TIP. Through this system,  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     2 7  

individuals may be alerted as needed regarding the development and approval of 

a new TIP and updates, such as the notice of a TIP update, or notice and approval 

of the TIP amendments. The TIP-INFO Notification tool helps facilitate public 

review and comments as well as coordination with transportation and other 

public agencies. Sign up for the service by contacting MTC at info@mtc.ca.gov. 

 

To further assist in the public assessment of the TIP, and specifically to analyze 

the equity implications of the proposed TIP investments, MTC conducts an 

investment analysis for the TIP with a focus on minority and low-income 

communities.  

 

Updating and Revising the TIP 

Federal regulations require that the TIP be updated at least once every four years. 

From time to time, circumstances dictate that revisions be made to the TIP 

between updates. MTC will consider such revisions when the circumstances 

prompting the change are compelling. The change must be consistent with the 

RTP, not negatively impact financial constraint, or adversely affect 

transportation-air quality conformity findings of the TIP.  

 

In addition to a TIP update, revisions to the TIP may occur as TIP amendments, 

TIP administrative modifications, or TIP Technical Corrections. The criteria for 

administrative modifications and amendments are defined in federal regulations, 

specifically Title 23, CFR part 450.104. 

 

The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Federal Transit Administration 

(FTA), and California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) have developed 

amendment and administrative modification procedures for the TIP. These 

procedures are posted online at 

www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/tip/tiprevisionprocedures.pdf. Further explanation 

about TIP updates and how the types of revisions are processed are shown in the 

narrative and table that follows. 

 

 TIP Update 

This is a complete update of the existing TIP, to reflect new or revised 

transportation investment strategies and priorities. Federal regulations require 

an update of the TIP at least once every four years. Because all projects included 

in the TIP are consistent with the RTP, MTC’s extensive public outreach for 

development of the RTP is reflected in the TIP as well. The TIP supports  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

2 8     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

implementation in the short-term, the financially constrained element of the RTP 

and is responsive to comments received during the development of the RTP. TIP 

updates will be subject to the conformity and interagency consultation 

procedures described in MTC Resolution No. 3757. 

 

The State of California may require a TIP update more frequently than the 

federally required four-year update cycle. In such circumstances MTC may 

perform a limited and less robust update and outreach effort by simply updating 

information reflecting updated project information using prior TIP reports, 

analysis and methodologies. Significant modification of analytical approaches 

and additional features to the TIP will be made on the federal 4-year update 

cycle, and more in-line with the four-year update cycle of the RTP. 

 

 TIP Amendment 

This is a revision that involves a major change to the TIP, such as the addition or 

deletion of a project; a major change in project cost or project/project phase 

initiation date; or a major change in design concept or design scope (e.g., 

changing project termini or the number of through traffic lanes). An amendment 

is a revision that requires public review and comment, re-demonstration of fiscal 

constraint, or an air quality conformity determination. Amendments requiring a 

transportation-air quality conformity analysis will be subject to the conformity 

and interagency consultation procedures described in MTC Resolution No. 3757. 

 

 TIP Administrative Modification 

An administrative modification includes minor changes to a project’s costs or to 

the cost of a project phase; minor changes to funding sources of previously 

included projects; and minor changes to the initiation date of a project or project 

phase. An administrative modification does not require public review and 

comment, re-demonstration of fiscal constraint, or conformity determination. 

 

 TIP Technical Correction 

Technical corrections may be made by MTC staff as necessary. Technical 

corrections are not subject to an administrative modification or an amendment, 

and may include revisions such as: changes to information and projects that are 

included only for illustrative purposes; changes to information outside of the TIP 

period; changes to information not required to be included in the TIP per federal 

regulations; or changes to correct simple errors or omissions including data entry 

errors. These technical corrections cannot significantly impact the cost, scope, or  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     2 9  

schedule within the TIP period, nor will they be subject to a public review and 

comment process, re-demonstration of fiscal constraint, or a conformity 

determination. 

 

Public Participation for Updating and Revising the Transportation Improvement Program 

TIP Update  

  Notify public of opportunities to participate; use appropriate lists within MTC’s database, 

including list of Regional Transportation Plan participants. 

Also notify the public using such methods as local media outlets; electronic‐mailings to advocacy 

groups; or via an electronic subscription system that is open for anyone to sign up to be kept 

informed about the TIP, such as TIP‐INFO e‐mail notification. 

 
 Notify Bay Area Partnership technical committees or working groups. 

Conduct intergovernmental review and consultation, as appropriate. 

  Release Draft TIP for 30‐day public review and comment period. 

 Draft TIP available for viewing in MTC Library;  

 Sent to major libraries throughout the Bay Area upon request 

 Posted on MTC website 

 MTC staff may make minor, technical edits to the Draft TIP during the review and comment 

period; in these instances MTC will display the technical edits on MTC’s web site and notify 

interested parties via e‐mail notification.   
 

  Provide additional review and comment opportunity of 5 days if the final TIP differs significantly 

from the Draft TIP and raises new material issues. 

 Respond to significant material comments pertinent to the TIP; MTC’s response compiled into 

an appendix in the final TIP. 

 Review by an MTC standing committee, typically the Programming & Allocations Committee 

(a public meeting); referral to Commission. 

 Adoption by Commission at a public meeting. 

Approval by California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 

Approval by Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration (FHWA/FTA). 

 

 After approval: 
 post in MTC Library 

 post on MTC website 

 notify Bay Area Partnership technical committees or working groups. 

 Notify the public about the Commission’s action with electronic notifications, such as TIP‐INFO 

(an electronic subscription system anyone can sign up to be kept informed about the TIP.) 
 
 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

3 0     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

Public Participation for Updating and Revising the Transportation Improvement Program 

TIP Amendment  

 Notify public via TIP‐INFO Notification (e‐mail) or other electronic notification methods.  

 Notify Bay Area Partnership technical committees or working groups 

  Available for viewing in MTC Library 

  Posted on MTC website for public review 

 Amendments deleting or adding or changing a project subject to a new air quality conformity 

analysis:  

o 30‐day public review and comment period, with review by an MTC 

standing committee at a public meeting; and 

o Approval by the full Commission at a public meeting.  
 

 Amendments deleting or adding a project not subject to an air quality conformity analysis 

(such as a roadway rehabilitation):  

o Review and approval by an MTC standing committee or the full 

Commission at a public meeting. 
 

 Amendments changing an existing project that is not subject to an air quality conformity 

analysis, or changing an existing grouped project listing (such as the highway bridge 

program), or bringing a previously listed project or phase back into the TIP for financial 

purposes; or changing TIP funding revenues: 

o Approval by the MTC Executive Director or designee, following 5‐day 

notice on MTC’s website, or  

o Review and approval by an MTC standing committee or the full 

Commission at a public meeting. 

 Approval by Caltrans  →  Approval by FHWA/FTA 

 After approval: 
 post in MTC Library 

 post on MTC website 

 notify Bay Area Partnership technical committees or working groups 

 notify public via electronic subscription system open to anyone who requests to be kept 
informed about the TIP, such as TIP‐INFO email notification. 

 

TIP Administrative Modification 

 No public review. 

 Approval by MTC Executive Director or designee by delegated authority (authority is delegated 
by the Federal Highway Administration/Federal Transit Administration), or Caltrans 

 After approval: 
 post in MTC Library 

 post on MTC website 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     3 1  

 

TIP Technical Correction 

 No public review. 
 Technical corrections by staff. 
 No approval required. 

 

 

 

 

Federal Transit Administration Program of Projects Public 

Participation Requirements  

Federal transit law and joint Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)/Federal 

Transit Administration (FTA) planning regulations governing the metropolitan 

planning process require a locality to include the public and solicit comment 

when the locality develops its metropolitan long- range transportation plan and 

its metropolitan TIP. FTA has determined that when a recipient follows the 

procedures of the public involvement process outlined in the FHWA/FTA 

planning regulations, the recipient satisfies the public participation requirements 

associated with development of the Program of Projects (POP) that recipients of 

Section 5307, Section 5337 and Section 5339 funds must meet. This Public 

Participation Plan follows the procedures for public involvement associated with 

TIP development and therefore satisfies public participation requirements for the 

POP. All public notices of public involvement activities and times established for 

public review and comment on the TIP will state that they satisfy the POP 

requirements of the Section 5307, Section 5337 and Section 5339 Programs. 

 

Annual Listing of Obligated Projects 

By federal requirement, MTC publishes at the end of each calendar year an 

annual listing of obligated projects, which is a record of project delivery for the 

previous year. The listing also is intended to increase the awareness of 

government spending on transportation projects to the public. Copies of this 

annual listing may be obtained from MTC’s website: 

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/funding/delivery/ or by contacting MTC’s Library.  

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

3 2     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

V. Interagency and Tribal Government 

Consultation Procedures for the Regional 

Transportation Plan and the Transportation 

Improvement Program 

A .   P U B L I C   A G E N C Y   C O N S U L T A T I O N    

The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act – better known as  

MAP-21 – is federal surface transportation legislation that specifies a public 

participation process, directing metropolitan transportation agencies like MTC to 

consult with officials responsible for other types of planning activities that are 

affected by transportation in the area, be that conservation and historic 

preservation or local planned growth and land use management. 

 

The most effective time to involve the public and governmental agencies in the 

planning and programming process is as early as possible. As such, the 

development of the regional transportation plan, with its long-range timeframe, 

is the earliest and the key decision point for the interagency consultation process. 

It is at this stage where funding priorities and major projects’ planning-level 

design concepts and scopes are introduced, prioritized and considered for 

implementation. Furthermore, MTC’s funding programs and any projects flowing 

from them are derived directly from the policies and the transportation 

investments contained in the RTP. Because the RTP governs the selection and 

programming of projects in the TIP, MTC considers the agency consultation 

process as a continuum starting with the regional transportation plan. The RTP is 

the key decision point for policy decisions regarding project and program 

priorities that address mobility, congestion, air quality, and other planning 

factors; the TIP is a short-term programming document detailing the funding for 

only those investments identified and adopted in the RTP. 

 

MTC will use the following approaches to coordinate and consult with affected 

agencies in the development of the RTP and the TIP. Throughout the process, 

consultation will be based on the agency’s needs and interests. At a minimum, all 

agencies will be provided an opportunity to comment on the RTP and TIP 

updates. 

 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     3 3  

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

MTC’s compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) serves 

as the framework to consult, as appropriate, in the development of the RTP with 

federal, state and local resource agencies responsible for land use management, 

natural resources, environmental protections, conservation, and historic 

preservation. This consultation will include other agencies and officials 

responsible for other planning activities in the MTC region that are affected by 

transportation, to the maximum extent practicable. 

 

As required by CEQA, the Notice of Preparation (NOP) stating that MTC as the 

lead agency will prepare a program-level Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for 

the RTP is the first step in the environmental process. The NOP gives federal, 

state and local agencies and the public an early opportunity to identify areas of 

concern to be addressed in the EIR and to submit them in writing to MTC. 

Further, MTC also will hold agency and public scoping meeting(s) to explain the 

environmental process and solicit early input on areas of concern. During the 

development of the Draft EIR, MTC will consult with affected agencies on 

resource maps and inventories for use in the EIR analysis. 

 

MTC will consider the issues raised during the NOP period and scoping 

meetings(s) during its preparation of the EIR. Subsequently, as soon as MTC 

completes the Draft EIR, MTC will file a Notice of Completion (NOC) with the 

State Clearinghouse and release the Draft EIR for a 45-day public review period. 

MTC will seek written comments from agencies and the public on the 

environmental effects and mitigation measures identified in the Draft EIR. 

During the comment period, MTC may consult directly with any agency or person 

with respect to any environmental impact or mitigation measure. MTC will 

respond to written comments received prior to the close of comment period and 

make technical corrections to the Draft EIR where necessary. The Commission 

will be requested to certify the Final EIR, and MTC will file a Notice of 

Determination (NOD) within five days of Commission certification. 

 

Note that while the RTP is not subject to the federal National Environmental 

Policy Act (NEPA), MTC will consult with federal agencies as appropriate during 

the preparation of the CEQA environmental document. Additionally, the 

involvement of federal agencies in the RTP can link the transportation planning 

process with the federal NEPA process. As the projects in the RTP and TIP  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

3 4     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

continue down the pipeline toward construction or implementation, most must 

comply with NEPA to address individual project impacts. 

 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

As discussed above, crucial decisions whether or not to support or fund a 

transportation program or project in the region first occurs at the RTP level. The 

TIP translates recommendations from the RTP into a short-term program of 

improvements focused on projects that have a federal interest. Therefore, the 

earlier, and more effective, timeframe for public comment on the merits of a 

particular transportation project is during the development of the long-range 

plan. The TIP defines project budgets, schedules and phasing for those programs 

and projects that are already part of the RTP. The TIP does not provide any 

additional information regarding environmental impacts, beyond that found in 

the program-level environmental analysis prepared for the RTP. 

 

As such, starting at the RTP development stage, MTC staff will concurrently 

consult with all agencies regarding the TIP. Subsequent to the RTP, additional 

consultations at the TIP stage will be based on an agency’s needs and interests. At 

a minimum, all agencies will be provided with an opportunity to review and 

comment on the TIP. Project sponsors — including the California Department of 

Transportation (Caltrans), local jurisdictions, transit operators, and county 

congestion management agencies (CMAs) — review and consult with MTC on 

each of their respective projects in the TIP. These agencies (and any other 

interested agency) are involved every step of the way in the establishment of MTC 

programs, selection of projects and their inclusion in the TIP.  

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     3 5  

B .   O T H E R   P R O T O C O L S   F O R   W O R K I N G   W I T H  

P U B L I C   A G E N C I E S  

The Bay Area Partnership Review and Coordination 

MTC established the Bay Area Partnership to collaboratively assist the 

Commission in fashioning consensus among its federal, state, regional, and local 

transportation agency partners regarding the policies, plans, and programs to be 

adopted and implemented by the Commission. More recently, that focus has 

shifted to advising the Commission on specific transportation investment policies 

or matters related to the Regional Transportation Plan. Membership includes a 

chief staff officer from all public agencies representing the following 

transportation interests: 

o Transit operations 

o Transportation facilities 

o Congestion management agencies 

o Public works agencies 

o Airports and seaports 

o Regional, state and federal transportation,  

environmental, and land use agencies 

 

The Partnership Board’s technical/advisory committees consider the on-going 

and more technical aspects of investment issues. The Partnership Board 

(audiocast live and later archived on MTC’s website) and its technical advisory 

committee meetings are open to the public. The status of TIP revisions are 

provided to the partnership through email notifications. For TIP updates, 

technical/advisory committee(s) and working group(s) will be kept informed and 

consulted throughout the process by e-mail notifications or presentations as 

appropriate. 

 

Air Quality Conformity and Interagency Consultation 

A dialogue between agencies over transportation-air quality conformity 

considerations must take place in certain instances prior to MTC adoption of its 

RTP or TIP. These consultations are conducted through the Air Quality 

Conformity Task Force — which includes representatives of the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA), the California Air Resources Board 

(CARB), Caltrans, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District, and other state 

and local transportation agencies. These agencies review updates and, in certain   

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

3 6     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

instances, amendments to the RTP and TIP to ensure they conform to federal 

transportation conformity regulations via transportation-air quality conformity 

analysis. 

 

In accordance with Transportation-Air Quality Conformity and Interagency 

Consultation Protocol procedures (MTC Resolution No. 3757), MTC must 

implement the interagency consultation process for the nine-county San 

Francisco Bay Area before making a transportation conformity determination on 

the RTP or TIP. In developing an update to the RTP/TIP, MTC will bring 

important issues to the Partnership or its technical committees/working groups 

for discussion and feedback. All materials that are relevant to interagency 

consultation, such as the RTP/TIP schedule, important RTP/TIP-related issues, 

and draft RTP/TIP, will also be transmitted to the Conformity Task Force for 

discussion and feedback. Similar consultation will occur for RTP/TIP 

amendments requiring an air quality conformity analysis. 

 

Intergovernmental Review via Regional and State Information 

Clearinghouses  

The intent of intergovernmental review, per Executive Order 12372, is to ensure 

that federally funded or assisted projects do not inadvertently interfere with state 

and local plans and priorities. Applicants in the Bay Area with programs/projects 

for inter-governmental review are required to submit documentation to 

Association of Bay Area Government’s (ABAG) Area-wide Clearinghouse and the 

State Clearinghouse in Sacramento, which are responsible for coordinating state 

and local review of applications for federal grants or loans under state-selected 

programs. In this capacity, it is also the function of the Clearinghouses to 

coordinate state and local review of federal financial assistance applications, 

federally required state plans, direct federal development activities, and federal 

environmental documents. The purpose of the clearinghouses is to afford state 

and local participation in federal activities occurring within California. The 

Executive Order does not replace public participation, comment, or review 

requirements of other federal laws, such as the National Environmental Policy 

Act (NEPA), but gives the states an additional mechanism to ensure federal 

agency responsiveness to state and local concerns.  

 

 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     3 7  

ABAG’s clearinghouse notifies, via the bi-weekly e-mail Intergovernmental 

Review Newsletter, entities and individuals at all governmental levels, as well as 

certain public interest groups that might be affected the proposed project or 

program. The state and area- wide clearinghouses are a valuable tool to help 

ensure that state and local agency comments are included along with any 

applications submitted by an applicant to the federal agencies. 

 

MTC uses this service to notice TIP updates and those TIP amendments that 

require an air quality determination. This service is not used for TIP amendments 

that do not require an air quality conformity determination, for TIP 

administrative modifications and for TIP technical corrections. The 

clearinghouses also receive and distribute environmental documents prepared 

pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and coordinate the 

state-level environmental review process. The RTP is subject to CEQA and 

therefore is reviewed through the clearinghouses as well.    

 

C .   T R I B A L   G O V E R N M E N T   C O N S U L T A T I O N  

There are six federally recognized Native American tribes in the San Francisco 

Bay Area. MTC invites the tribes to conduct government-to-government 

consultation throughout the regional transportation planning process and the 

companion Transportation Improvement Program. MTC lays the groundwork for 

consultation early in the process of developing the regional transportation plan, 

and generally includes a “Tribal summit” for all six Tribal governments. MTC 

expresses to each tribe a willingness to conduct individual meetings at the tribe’s 

convenience. 

 

MTC board members and executive staff participate in consultation with the 

Tribal governments. MTC will conduct consultation and associated activities in 

locations convenient for the Tribal governments. Past meetings have been held in 

Sonoma County, where most of the Tribal governments are located. 

 

The Tribal summit often will include MTC’s partner agencies, the Association of 

Bay Area Governments, the state Department of Transportation and the 

appropriate congestion management agencies. The Tribal summit also may 

include facilitation by an individual or organization known to the Tribal 

governments. 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 

3 8     |     P u b l i c   P a r t i c i p a t i o n   P l a n  

The Tribal summit will include discussion about how the Tribal governments will 

participate in development of the long-range plan, as well as the companion TIP. 

The Tribal summit also serves to introduce the Tribal governments to MTC’s 

partner agencies. 

 

As a next step after the tribal summit, MTC encourages individual meetings with 

each tribal government throughout development of the regional transportation 

plan to discuss issues and concerns specific to each tribe. MTC offers to conduct 

consultation at a time and location convenient for the tribe, which may include 

attendance at meetings of the tribal council or committees. The governments also 

receive material from MTC throughout the RTP planning effort. 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



M e t r o p o l i t a n   T r a n s p o r t a t i o n   C o mm i s s i o n     |     3 9  

VI. Evaluation and Update of the Public 

Participation Plan  

 

MTC’s Public Participation Plan is not a static document, but an on-going 

strategy that will be periodically reviewed and updated based on our experiences 

and the changing circumstances of the Commission and the transportation 

community it serves. 

 

As part of every public outreach and involvement program developed for the 

regional transportation plan, MTC will set performance measures for the 

effectiveness of the participation program and report on the results. These 

performance reports will serve to inform and improve future outreach and 

involvement programs, including future updates to this Public Participation Plan. 

 

Additionally, MTC will periodically evaluate various components of the items 

identified under Section II, “Continuing Public Engagement,” which form the 

core of MTC’s public involvement activities. 

 

This Public Participation Plan may be subject to minor changes from time to 

time. Any major updates will include a review by MTC’s advisory committees, 45-

day public comment period with wide release and notification of the public about 

the proposed changes, review by the Commission’s Legislation Committee (a 

public meeting), and approval by the Commission. We will extend the public 

comment period by an additional 45 days in instances where major revisions are 

proposed in response to comments heard. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



 
MTC Public Participation Plan 

Appendix A 

 

 

A Public Participation Plan for the  

2017 Update to Plan Bay Area 

 

 

 

FINAL DRAFT  
Released February 6, 2015 

 
 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter 

101 Eighth Street, Oakland, CA 94607-4700 

 
Also available in Chinese and Spanish 

Other languages available upon request by calling 510.817.5757 
 

請撥打電話 510.817.5757 來索取中文版公眾參與計劃的初稿。 
 

Para solicitar una copia en español del  
Borrador Preliminar del Plan para la Participación del Público llame al 510.817.5757. 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



A Public Participation Plan for  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

I. Introduction ......................................................... 1 

II. Developing an Update to Plan Bay Area ............... 3 

A. Plan Update Process & Schedule ................................................. 3 
B. Summary of Key Milestones     ..................................................... 4 

1.  Policy Element 

a) Goals ......................................................................... 4 

b) Performance Targets ................................................ 5 

2.  Regional Forecasts 

a) Population, Employment, Housing and Travel 

Demand Forecasts .................................................... 6 

b) Transportation Revenue Forecast  ........................... 7 

3.  Project Performance  

a) Call for Projects ........................................................ 8 

b) Project Performance Assessment ............................ 9 

c) Operations and Maintenance Need Assessments .. 10 

4.  Scenario Analysis 

a) Define and Evaluate Scenarios ............................... 10 

b) Adopt Preferred Scenario ....................................... 12 

5.  Draft and Final Plan 

a) Draft & Final Environmental Impact Report ......... 13 

b) Title VI and Environmental Justice Analysis ......... 13 

c) Air Quality Conformity Analysis ............................. 14 

d) Draft and Final Plan ................................................ 14 
 
 
 
 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



III. Related Work ................................................... 16 

A. Tracking Performance................................................................. 16 
B. Countywide Transportation Plans   ............................................ 16 
C. Legal Settlements ........................................................................ 17 

 

IV. Public Engagement ........................................... 18 

A. Local Governments ..................................................................... 18 
B. General Public   ........................................................................... 19 
C. Policy and Advisory Committees  .............................................. 20 
D. Additional Outreach to Government......................................... 23 

 

V. Public Participation Strategies .......................... 25 

A. Voices from Underserved Communities ................................... 25 
B. Other Partnerships  .................................................................... 25 
C. Participation Activities ............................................................... 26 

 

VI. Public Participation Goals for Plan Bay Area .... 28 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Key Milestones 2014-2017 .................................................. 31 
B. Responsibilities & Roles ..................................................... 32 
 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1  

I. Introduction 

In July 2013, the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) adopted Plan Bay Area, the first 

Regional Transportation Plan for the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area that also 

includes a Sustainable Communities Strategy as required by California Senate Bill 

375 (2008). Per federal requirements, MTC must update the regional 

transportation plan every four years. This Appendix A to MTC’s Public 

Participation Plan outlines the anticipated approach and schedule for the update 

of Plan Bay Area.  

 

Senate Bill 375 gives MTC and ABAG joint responsibility for Plan Bay Area. In 

general, ABAG is responsible for land use and housing forecasts; MTC will forecast 

travel demand and transportation revenue. The legislation also states that the two 

agencies are jointly responsible for “set(ting) forth a forecasted development 

pattern for the region, which, when integrated with the transportation network, 

and other transportation measures and policies, will reduce the greenhouse gas 

emissions from automobiles and light trucks to achieve, if there is a feasible way to 

do so, the greenhouse gas emission reduction targets approved by the state board.”  

 

Plan Bay Area focuses on where the region is expected to grow and what 

transportation investments will support that growth. The adopted Plan charts a 

course for accommodating anticipated growth while fostering an innovative, 

prosperous and competitive economy; preserving a healthy and safe environment; 

and allowing all Bay Area residents to share the benefits of vibrant communities 

connected by an efficient and well-maintained transportation network. 

 

Although the federal guidelines require the Regional Transportation Plan to be 

updated every four years, the plans themselves are long-range plans, and many key 

policy priorities, projects and programs remain the same from one plan to the next. 

As ABAG and MTC look towards the 2017 update of the Plan, our approach for this 

planning cycle is to conduct a focused update of Plan Bay Area building off of the 

core framework established by the 2013 Plan. 

 

PLAN BAY AREA 
UPDATED EVERY 
FOUR YEARS  

One key difference 
between the 2013 
Plan Bay Area and the 
2017 update is that 
the 2017 update does 
not include the 
Regional Housing 
Needs Allocation 
(RHNA), which was 
required in 2013, and 
is expected to be 
included again in the 
2021 Sustainable 
Communities 
Strategy.    

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2  

P u b l i c  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  P l a n  

This appendix outlines the ways that ABAG and MTC will work to involve Bay Area 

residents and public officials in the 2017 update to Plan Bay Area. The process will 

promote an open, transparent process that encourages the ongoing and active 

participation of local governments and a broad range of community members. 

 

The update to Plan Bay Area will require MTC and ABAG to work together with 

local governments, county congestion management agencies, public transit 

agencies, business and community groups, nonprofits, and interested residents to 

allow all who are interested have the opportunity to be involved. We invite all Bay 

Area residents to join in the dialogue to make our region a better, more livable 

place. 

 

One key difference between the 2013 Plan Bay Area and the 2017 update is that the 

2017 update does not include the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA), 

which was required in 2013, and is expected to be included again in the 2021 

Sustainable Communities Strategy. 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     3  

II. Developing an Update to Plan Bay Area  

ABAG and MTC will complete the main work elements for the update to Plan Bay 

Area. In an effort to integrate transportation and land use planning with clean air 

and shoreline climate adaptation planning, the Bay Area Air Quality Management 

District (BAAQMD) and the Bay Conservation and Development Commission 

(BCDC) will provide support on the update. Local government participation is also 

vital; regional agencies will partner with cities and counties on this effort — 

including on public engagement. Outreach will highlight locally approved plans or 

policies for future growth, and illustrate how the regional planning process 

supports local priorities. 

 

A .  P l a n  U p d a t e  P r o c e s s  &  S c h e d u l e  

Developing a multibillion-dollar, long-range plan for the nine-county San 

Francisco Bay region is not a simple task. The update will take place over two-and-

a-half-years and involve four regional agencies, nine counties, 101 towns and cities, 

elected officials, planners, stakeholder organizations, the public and other 

interested residents. The many moving parts include goal setting, statutory and 

voluntary targets, land use forecasting, financial projections, project evaluation, 

scenario analysis and more. The figure below provides a high-level overview of the 

Plan development process. Public participation is critical to ensure an open 

process, in which all interested residents have the opportunity to offer input and 

share their vision for what the Bay Area will look like decades from now. 

 

 

Plan Development Process 

 

 

Goals &  
Performance  

Targets

Policy 
Element

Jobs, Housing, 
Population, Travel 

Demand & 
Transportation 

Revenues

Forecasts

Transportation 
Projects & Programs 

Assessment

Project 
Performance

Alternative Land Use 
Distributions 

&Transportation 
Investment 
Strategies

Scenario 
Analysis

EIR and Plan

Plan 
Development

Local 
government 
participation is 
vital; regional 
agencies will 
partner with 
cities and 
counties on this 
effort — 
including on 
public 
engagement.   
 
 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     4  

 

The process will need to be flexible and is subject to change, as needed, to reflect 

and respond to the input received as we move through the steps of updating Plan 

Bay Area. To help direct interested Bay Area residents and organizations to 

participate in key actions or decisions being taken, any changes as well as 

additional detail will be posted on the PlanBayArea.org website.  

 

B .  S u m m a r y  o f  K e y  M i l e s t o n e s  

This section describes key milestones along the path to developing the update to 

Plan Bay Area. For more detail also see Attachment A, Key Milestones 2014-2017, 

which illustrates the expected timing of decision making for the planning effort; 

and Attachment B, Responsibilities & Roles. For descriptions of advisory 

committees, please refer to Section IV, Public Engagement.  

 

1.  Policy Element  

This task establishes goals and a performance framework for outcomes the 

region desires to achieve. The goals and performance framework for the 

update of the Plan will build off the 2013 Plan. 

 

a. Goals 

Before proposing a land use approach or recommending a transportation 

investment strategy, the two agencies will set regional goals to guide policy 

and investment decisions to help the region achieve its desired outcomes.  

 

 Opportunities for Input: Evening public open houses; discussion at 

the Regional Advisory Working Group and MTC’s Policy Advisory 

Council. 

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee; adoption by MTC Commission 

and ABAG Executive Board. 

 Significance: Regional goals will be used to guide policy direction and 

investment decisions. 

 Timeframe: A first step toward the update. (See Attachment A.)  

 

 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     5  

b. Performance Targets  

Performance targets provide a framework from which we can measure 

and evaluate various land use scenarios and transportation investments 

and policies. Taken together, performance targets allow us to better 

understand how different projects and policies might affect the region’s 

future. The current Plan Bay Area adopted in 2013 includes a 

complementary set of 10 performance measures (see table below).  

 

Two of the 10 adopted Plan Bay Area targets are not only ambitious — they 

also are mandated by state law (SB 375). The first mandatory target 

requires the Bay Area to reduce its per-capita greenhouse gas emissions 

from cars and light-duty trucks by 15 percent by 2035. The second 

mandatory target addresses adequate housing by requiring the region to 

house 100 percent of its projected population growth.  

 

The remaining targets are voluntary targets and were adopted though 

consultation with experts and the public. The targets focus on the 

economy, environment and equity, with additional metrics focused on the 

state of the region’s transportation system. All 10 performance targets tied 

to the current adopted Plan are listed below. These targets may be revised 

for the Plan Bay Area update.   

 

Performance Targets from Plan Bay Area, adopted July 2013 

Climate 
Protection 

 Reduce per‐capita greenhouse gas emissions from cars 
and light‐duty trucks by 15% 

Adequate 
Housing  

 Requires the region to house 100 percent of its 
projected population growth 

A Prosperous 
and Globally 
Competitive 
Economy 

 To increase the Bay Area’s gross regional product (GRP) 
 Maintain the transportation system  

 Decrease automobile vehicle miles traveled per capita 
and increase non‐auto mode share 

A Healthy and 
Safe 
Environment 

 Reduce premature deaths from air pollution 

 Reduce injuries and fatalities from collisions 

 Increase the amount of time people walk or cycle for 
transportation 

 Protect open space and agricultural lands 

Equitable 
Access 

 Decrease the share of low‐income and lower‐middle 
income residents’ household income consumed by 
transportation and housing 

PLAN BAY AREA 
PERFORMANCE 
TARGETS  

The first mandatory 
target requires the 
Bay Area to reduce its 
per‐capita 
greenhouse gas 
emissions from cars 
and light‐duty trucks 
by 15 percent by 
2035.   

The second 
mandatory target 
addresses adequate 
housing by requiring 
the region to house 
100 percent of its 
projected population 
growth. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     6  

 Opportunities for Input: Evening public workshops; discussion at the 

Regional Advisory Working Group, and MTC’s Policy Advisory 

Council. 

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee; approval from MTC 

Commission.  

 Significance: Targets and metrics provide a framework to measure 

and evaluate various land use scenarios and transportation 

investments and policies. 

 Timeframe:  A first step toward the update. (See Attachment A.) 

 

2.  Regional Forecasts  

ABAG and MTC track and forecast the region’s demographics, transportation 

and economic trends to inform and guide Plan Bay Area investments and 

policy decisions. The forecasts provide a picture of what the Bay Area may look 

like in 2040, so that today’s decisions align with tomorrow’s expected 

transportation, business and housing needs. These forecasts form the basis for 

developing the regional land use plan, which is critical for the region’s ability 

to forecast and analyze regional travel patterns and to develop the region’s 

transportation investment strategy. For Plan Bay Area, ABAG is responsible 

for the land use forecasts, including jobs, housing and population forecasts; 

MTC is responsible for travel demand forecasts and analysis as well as 

developing the transportation revenue forecasts. 

 

a. Population, Employment, Housing and Travel Demand 

Forecasts 

The total regional jobs, housing and population forecasts provide essential 

information for the update to Plan Bay Area. ABAG will forecast regional 

employment by industry, population and households by age and income. 

This forecast will be built with several forecasting tools — including REMI 

(an econometric model), a demographic model developed by Meyers and 

Pitkin (USC), and a housing model developed by ABAG. These models will 

provide insights on the potential economic and demographic drivers for 

the Bay Area over the next 30 years. The forecast methodology and results 

will be reviewed by a technical advisory committee that includes regional 

agencies, consultants and scholars with substantial experience in regional 

analysis. 

 

REGIONAL 
FORECASTS  

For Plan Bay Area, 
ABAG is 
responsible for 
the land use and 
housing forecasts, 
including jobs, 
housing and 
population 
forecasts; MTC is 
responsible for 
will forecast travel 
demand forecasts 
and analysis as 
well as developing 
the transportation 
revenue forecasts.  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     7  

The 2017 update will not include the Regional Housing Needs Allocation 

(RHNA), which was required in 2013, and is expected to be included again 

in the 2021 Sustainable Communities Strategy. 

 

MTC uses the population, employment and housing forecasts developed 

by ABAG to estimate and analyze regional travel patterns and demand on 

the transportation system and the resulting emissions. 

 

 Opportunities for Input: Discussion at the Regional Advisory Working 

Group, ABAG’s Regional Planning Committee, MTC’s Policy Advisory 

Council. 

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee; adoption by ABAG Executive 

Board.  

 Significance: This technical work sets the stage for future analysis by 

identifying anticipated employment, population and housing growth.  

 Timeframe: Forecasts are needed before scenario options are fully 

defined and evaluated. (See Attachment A.) 

 

b. Transportation Revenue Forecast 

The investment strategy for the update to Plan Bay Area will be based on 

an estimate of total transportation funding available looking forward at 

least 20 years, per federal requirements. MTC will work with partner 

agencies and use financial models to forecast how much revenue will be 

available for transportation purposes over the duration of the Plan. These 

forecasts are used to plan investments that fit within the “financially 

constrained” envelope of revenues that are reasonably expected to be 

available.  

 

Under the current Plan Bay Area, revenue forecasts total $292 billion over 

the 28-year period, in year of expenditure dollars. Over two-thirds (68 

percent) of these funds are from regional and local sources, including 

transit fares, dedicated sales tax programs, city and county revenues, and 

bridge tolls, among others. Making up the remainder are state and federal 

revenues (mainly derived from fuel taxes) and “anticipated” revenues, 

which are unspecified revenues that reasonably can be expected to become 

available within the Plan horizon.   

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     8  

 Opportunities for Input: Discussion at the Regional Advisory Working 

Group and the Policy Advisory Council. 

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee. 

 Significance: This technical work sets the stage for future investment 

strategy, identifies transportation revenue expected to flow to region 

over the life of the plan (at least 20 years).  

 Timeframe: Forecasts are needed before scenario options are fully 

defined and evaluated. (See Attachment A.)  

 

 

3.  Project Performance  

This component identifies potential transportation projects; evaluates those 

projects to determine their cost-effectiveness and contribution toward achieving 

the Plan’s adopted performance targets; provides information on what is needed 

to operate and maintain the region’s transportation network; and considers the 

effects of the transportation projects on the region’s low-income and minority 

populations.  

 

a. Call for Projects  

The Call for Projects allows public agencies to submit candidate 

transportation projects for consideration in the update to Plan Bay Area. 

Draft guidance for submitting projects will be released in advance of the 

initial call for projects. The initial step will be to update information for 

projects included in the 2013 Plan Bay Area. The submittal process will 

call for each county Congestion Management Agency (CMA) to coordinate 

the project submittal process for their respective county and provide 

public comment opportunities. Larger projects spanning multiple 

counties or that are regional in nature may be submitted by a public agency 

directly to MTC.  

 

 Opportunities for Input: Discussion at the Regional Advisory Working 

Group, MTC’s Policy Advisory Council and locally through county 

Congestion Management Agencies. Currently planned projects will be 

a topic at the Plan Bay Area evening public open houses, slated for May 

2015. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     9  

 Decision-Making Roles: CMA boards will approve project listings 

from each county; MTC’s Planning Committee will provide overall 

direction.  

 Significance: Opportunity to submit transportation projects for 

consideration in the update to Plan Bay Area. 

 Timeframe: Potential projects must be identified before scenario 

options are fully defined and evaluated. (See Attachment A.) 

 

b. Project Performance Assessment  

Plan Bay Area is also based on MTC’s commitment to evaluate major 

transportation projects to make sure dollars are allocated to the most cost-

effective projects that support the established goals and targets. MTC will 

again perform a project performance assessment on major projects across 

the region in order to evaluate projects on two criteria: benefit-cost ratio 

(which captures the project’s cost-effectiveness) and a target score. The 

target score measures the contribution the project makes toward achieving 

the Plan’s adopted performance targets, and also evaluates how well 

projects meet goals related to equity, the environment and the economy.  

 

The Commission will use its policy discretion along with the project 

performance assessment results to decide which transportation projects 

and programs to include in the preferred transportation investment 

strategy. 

 

 Opportunities for Input: Discussion at the Regional Advisory Working 

Group and the Policy Advisory Council; results of this assessment will 

be discussed at the second round of evening public meetings relating 

to planning scenarios (see page 12).  

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee; 

approval by MTC Commission. 

 Significance: Provides information to use in deciding which projects 

and programs to include in the preferred transportation investment 

strategy.  

 Timeframe: Potential projects are evaluated before scenario options 

are fully defined and evaluated; precedes any decision by ABAG and 

MTC on a preferred scenario for the Plan. (See Attachment A.) 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 0  

c.  Operations and Maintenance Need Assessments   

Plan Bay Area’s “fix it first” policy ensures the region directs a majority of 

funding to maintaining and operating the existing transportation system. 

The operations and maintenance needs assessment identifies the funding 

needed to operate and maintain the existing transportation network — 

including local streets and roads, the state highway system and public 

transit services. MTC staff work directly with staff from transit agencies 

and local streets and roads agencies to get information for the need 

assessments.  

 

 Opportunities for Input: Discussion at Regional Advisory Working 

Group and MTC’s Policy Advisory Council. 

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee. 

 Significance: This technical evaluation will provide information on 

the funding needed to operate and maintain the region’s 

transportation network.  

 Timeframe: Precedes any decision by ABAG and MTC on a preferred 

scenario for the Plan. (See Attachment A.) 

 

4.  Scenario Analysis  

With the goals and targets clearly identified, MTC and ABAG will formulate 

possible scenarios — combinations of land use patterns and transportation 

investments — that could be evaluated together to see if (and by how much) 

they achieve (or fall short of) the performance targets.  

 

a. Define and Evaluate Scenarios  

As part of the update to Plan Bay Area, ABAG and MTC will develop up to 

three land use and transportation scenarios that will provide options for 

distribution of the total amount of growth forecasted for the region to 

specific locations, coupled with different transportation investment 

strategies. These scenarios will seek to address the needs and aspirations 

of each Bay Area jurisdiction, while meeting Plan Bay Area performance 

targets to guide and gauge the region’s future growth. The analysis of 

various scenarios will inform the development of a preferred alternative, 

both for transportation investments and a land use strategy as well as 

identify alternatives to analyze in the environmental review process.  

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 1  

The metrics identified earlier in the process (see Performance Targets, 

page 5) will be the basis of an analysis to gauge the effects of Plan Bay Area 

on the region’s economy, environment, and low-income and minority 

populations. 

 

 Economic Metrics seek to track the strength of the Bay Area’s 

economy and business climate and provide a framework for evaluating 

the overall strength of the region’s economy. The currently adopted Plan 

Bay Area seeks to increase gross regional product (GRP). 

 Environmental Metrics measure impacts on public health and the 

natural environment from vehicle emissions, including greenhouse 

gasses and particle pollution. They also track open space preservation 

and active transportation.  

 Equity Metrics provide a framework for evaluating equity concerns 

for the approximately one-fifth of the Bay Area’s total population that 

live in areas with large numbers of low-income and minority 

populations. Promoting access to housing, jobs and transportation for 

these residents advances Plan Bay Area’s objective to advance equity 

in the region; it also increases our chances of meeting the other 

performance targets. For the update to Plan Bay Area, the analysis of 

the equity metrics (including the supplemental equity analysis 

conducted for Plan Bay Area) will be fully integrated into the 

performance analysis of the scenarios rather than developed through 

a separate evaluation. To further address any issues related to low-

income communities and communities of color, a Regional Equity 

Working Group will be established  and meet as needed for the focused 

update to Plan Bay Area, drawing from membership of the Regional 

Advisory Working Group and MTC’s Policy Advisory Council. 

 

A number of potential transportation investments will be considered as 

part of the update to Plan Bay Area, but not all of these items will be funded 

due to limited resources. Likewise, a variety of policies will be considered 

to achieve the goals set earlier for the Plan. But which supporting policies 

will help the region achieve its goals? The tradeoffs considered in these 

decisions will be the focus of this component to the update of Plan Bay 

Area. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 2  

 Opportunities for Input: Topic at evening public workshops to allow 

public review and comment on the results of the analysis of the 

scenario alternatives. Discussion also at the Regional Advisory 

Working Group, MTC’s Policy Advisory Council and ABAG’s Regional 

Planning Committee.  

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee; approval of land use 

distribution by ABAG Executive Board; and approval of transportation 

investment strategy by MTC Commission.   

 Significance: The scenarios offer a regional-scale analysis for a 

package of investments and policies. 

 Timeframe: Precedes any decisions by ABAG and MTC on a preferred 

scenario for the Plan. (See Attachment A.) 

 

b. Adopt Preferred Scenario  

Based on the results of the scenario and project performance assessments, 

ABAG and MTC will define a preferred scenario to advance to final 

environmental analysis. The preferred scenario will include a land use 

distribution, a transportation investment strategy and policies MTC and 

ABAG believe will best meet the goals and targets established early in the 

process.  

 

 Opportunities for Input: Selection of Preferred Scenario follows the 

second round of evening public meetings that discussed the scenario 

options. Discussion at Regional Advisory Working Group, MTC’s 

Policy Advisory Council and ABAG’s Regional Planning Committee. 

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee; adoption by MTC 

Commission and ABAG Executive Board.  

 Significance: The Preferred Scenario pairs a single land use 

distribution that is a flexible blueprint for accommodating growth 

over the long term with a financially-constrained transportation 

investment strategy. 

 Timeframe: Occurs after the second round of public meetings and 

before the detailed environmental review work can begin. (See 

Attachment A.) 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 3  

5.  Draft and Final Plan 

a. Draft and Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR)  

A programmatic environmental impact report on the Plan, including the 

preferred scenario and a limited set of alternatives, will identify the 

environmental impacts of the proposed long-range land-use changes and 

transportation investments and policies taken as a whole. A Draft EIR will 

be released for public comment and submitted to the appropriate resource 

agencies for review and comment. 

 

 Opportunities for Input: A Notice of Preparation will be issued and a 

public scoping meeting(s) will be held to explain the environmental 

process and solicit early input on areas of concern. The Draft EIR will 

be the subject of three public hearings. Discussion at Regional 

Advisory Working Group, MTC’s Policy Advisory Council and ABAG’s 

Regional Planning Committee. A public comment period will be 

established for written and oral public comments, as per guidelines 

under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); responses to 

comments will be in the Final EIR.  

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee; approval from MTC 

Commission and ABAG Executive Board.  

 Significance: Final set of actions leading to adoption of the updated 

Plan Bay Area. 

 Timeframe: Final set of actions. (See Attachment A.) 

 

b. Title VI and Environmental Justice Analysis 

MTC and ABAG will conduct an equity analysis to satisfy federal 

requirements with respect to the metropolitan planning process. The 

analysis will measure both the benefits and burdens associated with the 

investments in the update to Plan Bay Area to determine that minority, 

limited English proficient and low-income communities share equitably in 

the benefits of the investments without bearing a disproportionate share 

of the burdens.   

 

 Opportunities for Input: Discussion at Regional Advisory Working 

Group and MTC’s Policy Advisory Council. 

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee. 

PROGRAM EIR 

A Program EIR is 
prepared on the 
Draft Plan and 
looks at the 
environmental 
impacts of 
proposed 
transportation 
investments and 
land use forecasts 
taken as a whole, 
as one large 
project, as 
required by the 
California 
Environmental 
Quality Act 
(CEQA). 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 4  

 Significance: Provides information on the effects of Plan Bay Area on 

the region’s minority, limited English proficient and low-income 

communities. 

 Timeframe: Final set of actions. (See Attachment A.)      

 

c. Air Quality Conformity Analysis  

The air quality conformity analysis considers if the transportation projects 

in the financially constrained Plan Bay Area, taken together, do not cause 

new air quality violations, worsen existing air quality, or delay timely 

attainment of the federal air quality standards pertaining to ozone, carbon 

monoxide and particulate matter (PM2.5). The analysis is done to meet 

federal planning requirements in accordance with the latest U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency transportation conformity regulations 

and the Bay Area Air Quality Conformity Protocol (MTC Resolution No. 

3757). 

 

 Opportunities for Input: Technical analysis will be discussed by the 

Regional Air Quality Conformity Task Force. 

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee; 

approval from MTC Commission. 

 Significance: Final set of actions leading to adoption of the updated 

Plan Bay Area. 

 Timeframe: Final set of actions. (See Attachment A.)      

 

d. Draft and Final Plan  

Release of the Draft Plan Bay Area will initiate another round of public 

meetings to gather comments on the draft in preparation for final Plan 

adoption. MTC and ABAG will seek input on the Draft Plan through a 

variety of methods.   

 

Staff anticipates a concurrent release of the Draft EIR and Draft Plan Bay 

Area documents for 45-day and 55-day public comment periods, 

respectively. The Draft EIR analysis, together with input from the public 

on the Draft Plan, will inform the policy discussions and public dialogue 

leading to the Final Plan Bay Area adoption by both ABAG and MTC, 

anticipated to occur in June 2017. 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 5  

 Opportunities for Input: The Draft Plan will be the subject of the third 

series of public meetings, including at least three public hearings. 

Discussion at Regional Advisory Working Group, MTC’s Policy 

Advisory Council and ABAG’s Regional Planning Committee.  

 Decision-Making Roles: Direction from MTC’s Planning Committee 

and ABAG’s Administrative Committee; approval from MTC 

Commission and ABAG Executive Board. 

 Significance: Final set of actions leading to adoption of the updated 

Plan Bay Area. 

 Timeframe: Final set of actions. (See Attachment A.) 

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 6  

III. Related Work  

A .  T r a c k i n g  P e r f o r m a n c e  

At both the scenario and project levels, Plan Bay Area emphasizes performance. To 

complement this performance focus, a new, dynamic performance monitoring 

effort is underway. 

 

Vital Signs Regional Performance Monitoring Initiative –  

In coordination with regional partners, MTC is leading a new regional performance 

monitoring initiative to track regional progress toward key transportation, land 

use, environmental, and economic goals. Vital Signs will measure on-the-ground 

performance and help to inform the public and policymakers alike about critical 

regional trends. The results will provide an early look at progress towards regional 

objectives established in Plan Bay Area and help inform its update. 

 

Vital Signs will focus on observed data and be updated annually. These results will 

be shared with the public through a new interactive performance monitoring 

portal, integrating maps and graphs to explore regional data and allowing the 

public to better understand the performance of their neighborhood or city in the 

broader regional context.  

 

Performance results will be released in multiple phases, starting with 

transportation and land use metrics in early 2015. Additional Vital Signs metrics 

related to economic and environmental performance will be released through mid-

2015. 

 

B .  C o u n t y w i d e  T r a n s p o r t a t i o n  P l a n s  

Bay Area counties are authorized by state law to develop Countywide 

Transportation Plans on a voluntary basis, and the countywide plans are an 

integral part of Plan Bay Area. These long-range planning and policy documents 

assess transportation needs and guide transportation priorities and funding 

decisions for that county over a 20-25 year horizon. These countywide plans 

inform the transportation projects and programs that are forwarded to MTC for 

consideration in the region’s long-range plan. Adopted countywide transportation 

plans in the Bay Area can be found at the links shown below. MTC’s guidelines for 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 7  

development of countywide plans by the county Congestion Management Agencies 

can be found here:  

http://www.mtc.ca.gov/planning/ctp/RES-2120.pdf  

 

Alameda County:  Alameda County Transportation Commission 
 http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/795  
 
Contra Costa County:  Contra Costa Transportation Authority  
 http://ccta.net/sources/detail/11/1  
 
Marin County: No current plan 
 
Napa County:  Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency 
 http://www.nctpa.net/vision-2040-project-overview  
 
San Francisco County:  San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
www.sfcta.org/transportation-planning-and-studies/san-francisco-transportation-plan-2040-home  
 
San Mateo County:  City/County Association of Government of San Mateo County 
 http://ccag.ca.gov/programs/planning/countywide-transportation-plan/ 
 
Santa Clara County:  Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority 
http://www.vta.org/projects-and-programs/planning/valley-transportation-plan-2040-vtp-2040  
 
Solano County:  Solano Transportation Authority 
 http://www.sta.ca.gov/Content/10054/ComprehensivePlans.html  
 
Sonoma County:     Sonoma County Transportation Authority 
http://www.sctainfo.org/reports/Comprehensive_Transportation_Plan/2009%20Comprehensive%20Tr
ansportation%20Plan.htm  
 

C .  L e g a l  S e t t l e m e n t s  

ABAG and MTC agreed to perform a number of activities associated with the 2017 

update to Plan Bay Area and its companion programmatic Environmental Impact 

Report (EIR) as part of legal settlements. These activities include, but are not 

limited to, feasibility analyses, healthy infill guidelines and Priority Development 

Area performance assessment. The settlement agreements can be found online at 

http://planbayarea.org/plan-bay-area/legal-settlements.html.   

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 8  

IV. Public Engagement 

In developing the update to Plan Bay Area, ABAG and MTC strive to promote an 

open, transparent process that encourages the ongoing and active participation of 

local governments and a broad range of interest groups and individuals from the 

general public. That will entail involving both government and non-government 

agencies, organizations and individuals in the multi-year planning effort.  

 

A .  L o c a l  G o v e r n m e n t s  

A partnership with local governments — from elected officials to city managers, 

planning and public works directors, transit operators, and congestion 

management agencies — is critical to the update to Plan Bay Area. Local officials 

can provide the valuable context and specifics about local priorities, and explain 

how the regional plan supports these. One avenue for discussion with local 

government staff is through the Regional Advisory Working Group (RAWG), 

described below. In addition to the staff-to-staff discussions that will occur at the 

RAWG meetings, ABAG and MTC will work with members of their policy boards 

to coordinate meetings in each county with elected officials and local government 

staff. County Congestion Management Agencies (CMAs) provide a meeting 

structure that will also be used to discuss issues related to Plan Bay Area.  

 

Regional Advisory Working Group (RAWG): Comprised of local 

government staff as well as staff from county Congestion Management Agencies, 

transit agencies and county health departments, the primary purpose of this ad hoc 

group is to enable MTC and ABAG staff to provide information to and receive input 

from local and county-level staff. Regular discussions on technical milestones will 

be held; the group will meet as needed. It is anticipated that the RAWG will meet 

approximately monthly throughout 2015 and early 2016.  

 

The Regional Advisory Working Group has no set membership, its meetings are 

open to the public and representatives from other organizations, and any 

individuals interested in the development of Plan Bay Area are invited to 

participate and provide feedback. Because it is primarily a staff-to-staff group, 

RAWG meets during the workday. Meeting materials are posted on the Plan Bay 

Area website; meetings are audiocast over the Internet and archived on the web.  

 

 

LOCAL CONTEXT 

For public workshops, 
MTC and ABAG will 
seek partnerships 
with local and county 
government, Caltrans 
and other public 
agencies to explain 
the relationship of 
the regional plan to 
adopted local 
priorities for 
transportation and 
land use.  

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     1 9  

ABAG DELEGATE MEETINGS 

An elected official from each city, town and county in the Bay Area serves as a 

delegate to ABAG’s General Assembly. Shortly after adoption of Plan Bay Area in 

2013, ABAG staff convened regular meetings of their ABAG delegates in each 

county to start an ongoing dialogue with these elected officials about the challenges 

in implementing Plan Bay Area and how ABAG could be of greater help.  

 

To date, ABAG has held delegate meetings in San Mateo, Santa Clara, Alameda, 

Solano, Sonoma, Marin, Napa and Contra Costa counties with anywhere from five 

to 15 delegates in each meeting. These conversations are helping to inform ABAG 

and MTC about the challenges facing local jurisdictions as they seek to implement 

Plan Bay Area in ways that reflect their local land use controls as well as their 

unique assets and values. Some communities are focused on creating more open 

space and recreation areas for their residents while others seek to attract more jobs 

or create additional transportation and housing options for local families.  

 

ABAG staff will conduct a second and third round of delegate meetings with elected 

officials in each county over the next two years to continue learning about local 

issues and challenges and to provide local officials an even greater voice in the 

shaping of the update to Plan Bay Area. 

 

B .  G e n e r a l  P u b l i c   

The general public has several avenues for ongoing participation in the 

development of the Plan.  

o Key issues and policy matters will be presented at public meetings or open 

houses held in the evening. MTC and ABAG will hold a minimum of three 

public meetings in Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, San Mateo and 

Santa Clara counties, and one or more meetings in the less populous 

Marin, Napa, Solano and Sonoma counties over the course of developing 

the Plan. Topics will include goals, alternative scenarios, and the Draft 

Plan and Draft Environmental Impact report, as detailed in Attachment A, 

Key Milestones 2014-2017. 

o For public workshops, MTC and ABAG will seek partnerships with cities 

and counties, Caltrans and other public agencies to explain the 

relationship of the regional plan to adopted local priorities for 

transportation and land use. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 0  

o ABAG and MTC policy board meetings present another opportunity for the 

public to keep abreast of the Plan’s development. The committees are 

described below.  

o Additionally, ABAG and MTC both have advisory panels that meet on a 

regular basis. The Plan’s development will be presented to these groups for 

discussion and comment. The committees are described below; meetings 

are open to the public. 

o The public is invited to be an active participant in meetings of the Regional 

Advisory Working Group, where a wide range technical and policy issues 

will be discussed.  

o The Plan Bay Area website (www.PlanBayArea.org) is another way for the 

public to stay informed on the progress of the update or participate in 

online surveys or comment forums.  

o Regular updates will be sent to interested members of the public via 

electronic newsletters and email.  

 

C .  P o l i c y  &  A d v i s o r y  C o m m i t t e e s  

Regularly scheduled meetings of ABAG’s and MTC’s policy and advisory 

committees present another opportunity for interested members of the public — 

whether government or non-government — to stay involved. Meeting times and 

locations will be posted on the Plan Bay Area website. If unable to attend, meeting 

materials will be accessible via the Plan Bay Area website (www.PlanBayArea.org) 

as well.  

 

Additionally, meetings of MTC’s policy board are audiocast and archived at 

mtc.ca.gov/meetings/schedule/. ABAG’s major meetings (Executive Board, 

Legislation and Governmental Organization Committee, Finance and Personnel 

Committee, Regional Planning Committee and General Assembly) are videotaped 

and available on regional-video.com/mtc-abag-video-index/ (YouTube) and also 

linked from ABAG’s website abag.ca.gov/meetings/. 

 

The ABAG Executive Board: ABAG’s Executive Board carries out policies 

established by the General Assembly, which is composed of representatives of the 

Bay Area’s 101 cities, towns and counties. ABAG’s Executive Board makes 

operating decisions and controls expenditures and acts on recommendations from 

other Association committees. The 38 voting memberships on the Executive Board 

include elected officials reflecting population size of the nine counties, with non-

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 1  

voting members representing state or federal agencies invited to serve at the 

pleasure of the Board. The Executive Committee meets the third Thursday of every 

other month, beginning in January, at 7 p.m. in the auditorium of the Joseph P. 

Bort MetroCenter.  

 

ABAG General Assembly:  ABAG’s General Assembly meets twice a year 

(usually in April and October) and determines policy matters for the Association, 

including adoption of the annual budget and work program, and reviews major 

policy actions and recommendations of the Executive Board. General Assembly 

delegates from each member city and county and their alternates must be elected 

officials from the jurisdiction they represent — except for the City of San 

Francisco, where the mayor may appoint as his or her alternate any officer of that 

government. Each member city and county has one vote in the General Assembly; 

San Francisco is counted as both a city and county for the purposes of 

membership. Votes are tabulated separately for county representatives and for 

city representatives, with majority vote of each group required for action or 

adoption of policy recommendations. 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission: MTC is guided by a 21-member 

policy board composed of local officials from the nine Bay Area counties, including 

two members who represent regional agencies — ABAG and the Bay Conservation 

and Development Commission — as well as three nonvoting members appointed 

to represent the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, the U.S. 

Department of Transportation, and the California Department of Transportation. 

Sixteen of the voting commissioners are appointed by local elected officials in each 

county, including the mayors of the three most populous cities in the region — San 

Jose, San Francisco and Oakland. The Commission generally meets monthly on 

the fourth Wednesday of the month, at approximately 10 a.m., at MTC’s offices in 

Oakland, in the Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter.  

 

Joint ABAG and MTC Meetings: To more fully collaborate, the MTC 

Planning Committee and ABAG’s Administrative Committee will meet 

jointly as needed to oversee development of the update to Plan Bay Area. At major 

planning milestones, staff will present a summary of key comments heard from 

public workshops, open houses, online forums, telephone polls and the like. 

ABAG’s Administrative Committee submits reports and recommendations to the 

Executive Board or acts for the Executive Board in a month when the Board does 

not meet or in an emergency. MTC’s Planning Committee considers issues related 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 2  

to Plan Bay Area and other regional plans, state and federal air quality plans, 

corridor studies, as well as connections between transportation and land use.  

 

Additionally, both the full MTC Commission and ABAG Executive Board will meet 

jointly at key milestones throughout the process.  

 

ADVISORY COMMITTEES TO THE PLAN BAY AREA UPDATE 

Joint Policy Committee: The Bay Area Joint Policy Committee (JPC) 

coordinates the planning efforts of ABAG and MTC, as well as the Bay Area Air 

Quality Management District (BAAQMD) and the Bay Conservation and 

Development Commission (BCDC). The JPC has 20 voting members (five each 

from the four regional agencies) who work on issues of interest to the four agencies, 

including climate change adaptation, regional economic development, renewable 

energy and Plan Bay Area.   

 

MTC’s Policy Advisory Council: The Policy Advisory Council is a 27-seat 

advisory panel established to advise MTC on transportation policies in the San 

Francisco Bay Area, incorporating diverse perspectives relating to the 

environment, the economy and social equity. This panel will be an active 

participant in the update to Plan Bay Area by providing input on regional planning 

efforts linking transportation, housing and land use plans to reduce greenhouse 

gas emissions. The Policy Advisory Council meets monthly, on the second 

Wednesday of the month, at 1:30 p.m. at MTC’s offices in the Joseph P. Bort 

MetroCenter, Oakland.  

 

ABAG’s Regional Planning Committee: The Regional Planning Committee 

hears Bay Area planning issues of regional concern and makes recommendations 

to the ABAG Executive Board. The Regional Planning Committee includes 36 

members, with a minimum of 18 elected officials from the nine Bay Area counties; 

representatives of the four regional agencies; and stakeholders representing a 

broad range of issues, including business, economic development, recreation/open 

space, environment, public interest, housing and labor; as well as representatives 

from ethnic minority groups and special districts. The Regional Planning 

Committee meets the first Wednesday of alternate months, from 1-3 p.m. in the 

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter Auditorium, in Oakland. 

 

The Bay Area Partnership: This group of top executives from Bay Area transit 

operators, county Congestion Management Agencies and public works 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 3  

departments, as well as regional, state and federal transportation, environmental 

and land use agencies, advises MTC periodically on key planning issues, including 

Plan Bay Area. Staff level working groups meet occasionally on issues such as local 

roads, public transit and transportation finance.  

 

The Active Transportation Working Group: The Active Transportation 

Working Group is an advisory group to MTC staff focused on bicycle and 

pedestrian policy to reduce crashes and encourage more people to use active 

modes. The group is comprised of staff members from local cities, transit agencies, 

county Congestion Management Agencies, advocacy groups, public health 

departments and other interested residents. They advise MTC staff on pedestrian 

and bicycle policy, funding, engineering and design issues. They meet 

approximately every other month at MTC’s offices and will provide staff-level 

feedback as appropriate. 

 

 

D .  A d d i t i o n a l  O u t r e a c h  t o  G o v e r n m e n t   

FEDERAL, STATE AND OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES AND NATIVE 

AMERICAN TRIBAL GOVERNMENTS  

In addition to the local governments that will be involved in the update to Plan Bay 

Area, MTC and ABAG will consult with officials responsible for other types of 

planning activities that are affected by transportation in the area, such as federal 

and state conservation and historic preservation agencies. Consultation will be 

based on the agency’s needs and interests. At a minimum, agencies will be 

informed about the process to develop the update and will be provided an 

opportunity to participate. 

 

Consultation with the region’s Native American governments also will occur. There 

are six federally recognized Native American tribes in the San Francisco Bay Area. 

MTC and ABAG will invite the tribes to participate in government-to-government 

consultation during development of the update to the Plan. The groundwork for 

consultation will occur early in the process of developing the regional 

transportation plan and will include a “Tribal summit” for all six Tribal 

governments. MTC and ABAG will also conduct individual meetings at each tribe’s 

convenience.  

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 4  

STATUTORILY REQUIRED INPUT  

As required by SB 375 legislation, at least two informational meetings in each 

county will be held for members of the county board of supervisors and city 

councils to review and discuss the Draft Plan and consider their input and 

recommendations. Notice of the meeting shall be sent to each city clerk and to the 

clerk of the board of supervisors. One informational meeting will be conducted if 

attendance at the one meeting includes county board of supervisors and city 

council members representing a majority of the cities representing a majority of 

the population in the incorporated areas of that county.  

 

  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 5  

V. Public Participation Strategies  

Development of the update to Plan Bay Area will be a multi-year effort. Public 

participation strategies for major milestones will be identified and posted on 

www.PlanBayArea.org. Detail for all milestones is described in Chapter 2, although 

it is important to note that this is an iterative process that is subject to change. 

Throughout each phase, ABAG and MTC will use a variety of participation 

techniques to engage a wide range of residents, as described in this Participation 

Techniques section.  

 

A .  V o i c e s  f r o m  U n d e r s e r v e d  C o m m u n i t i e s  

The success of Plan Bay Area is dependent on all voices in the region being 

represented and involved. MTC and ABAG will take special effort to engage 

minority and low-income residents that do not typically participate in regional 

government planning efforts.  

 

In order to seek out and consider the needs of those traditionally under-

represented in the planning process, including minority, low-income and limited 

English proficient communities, a limited number of contracts will be provided to 

community non-profit organizations in communities of concern through a request 

for proposals (RFP) competitive process for assistance in engaging their residents. 

See MTC’s Plan for Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient (LEP) 

Populations for more information on involving populations with limited-English 

proficiency.   

 

B .  O t h e r  P a r t n e r s h i p s  

To encourage partnerships with the many interested groups and to help reach out 

to and involve individuals, local government officials, and community 

organizations, a Plan Bay Area “tool kit” will be developed. The tool kit will include 

information to continue discussions with other interested members of the public, 

publicize comment opportunities and build general awareness for the long-range 

planning effort. We will build upon the networks of advisors and the work of 

partner agencies.   

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 6  

C .  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  A c t i v i t i e s  

The public participation efforts will include:  

Advance Notice  

 Develop details for the planning process and opportunities for public 
engagement in advance of each phase of the Plan Bay Area development — and 
post these details on www.PlanBayArea.org. 

 Maintain an updated calendar of events on the Plan Bay Area website.  

 Provide timely notice about upcoming meetings. Post agendas and meeting 
materials on the web one-week in advance of policy committee meetings or ad 
hoc advisory group meetings. 

 Use a mailing list database to keep participants notified throughout the multi-
year process (via e-mail or U.S. mail).  

 Circulate a Draft Plan Bay Area or Alternative Planning Strategy, if one is 
prepared, for public review at least 55 days before the adoption of the Final 
Plan Bay Area.   

 Work with media outlets to encourage news coverage in advance of meetings.  

Meetings, Open Houses, Workshops, Public Hearings 

 Provide opportunities for a discussion in each county on important issues 
surrounding how Plan Bay Area can better support local activities. Pursuant to 
state statute, MTC and ABAG will hold a minimum of three public meetings in 
Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco, San Mateo and Santa Clara counties, 
and one or more meetings in the less populous Marin, Napa, Solano and 
Sonoma counties.  

 Promote a civil atmosphere at public meetings that provides an opportunity 
for all participant to speak free of disruptions and personal attacks.  

 Host public meetings, open houses or workshops in convenient and accessible 
locations and at a variety of times (evenings, weekends, as well as weekdays).  

 Hold at least three public hearings on the Draft Plan Bay Area or Alternative 
Planning Strategy, if one is prepared; hold the public hearings in different 
parts of the region to maximize the opportunity for participation by members 
of the public throughout the region.  

 Use “visualization” techniques to communicate technical planning issues and 
strategies to the public, such as maps, videos, graphics, animation or computer 
simulation to depict alternatives under consideration.  

 Provide a summary of comments heard at public meetings via 
www.PlanBayArea.org.  

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 7  

Internet/Social Media 

 Use a single web address — www.PlanBayArea.org — so members of the public 
have a single place to go for current updates and to request to receive notices 
and information.  

 Maintain an archive of past workshop meeting materials on the Plan Bay Area 
website.  

 Offer interactive web polls, surveys, etc.  

 Provide timely, easy-to-understand information on a website that is accessible, 
per the Americans with Disabilities Act.  

 Use social media to reach and engage residents.  

Media Outlets 

 Issue press releases to media outlets, including ethnic, foreign-language and 
community media, to keep reporters apprised of progress and generate 
coverage on radio, television, newspapers and the Internet.  

 Translate news releases about public meetings into Spanish and Chinese, or 
other languages as appropriate. ,. 

Outreach to targeted groups 

 Recruit “ambassadors” to help spread the word about public comment 
opportunities.  

 Piggy-back on existing meetings in order to attract greater attendance and 
participation.  

 Seek out and consider the needs of those traditionally under-represented in 
the planning process, including minority, low-income and limited English 
proficient communities.  

 Provide assistance, if requested at least three working days prior to a meeting, 
to people with disabilities and language assistance to people with limited 
English proficiency. (Five or more days’ notice is preferred.) Such requests 
may be made through the MTC Public Information Office at 510-817-5757. 

Other 

 Statistically relevant public opinion poll (also available in languages other than 
English).  

 The methods ABAG and MTC will use to report progress on the Plan Bay Area 
update will include, but not be limited to, the web, e-mail updates, electronic 
and print newsletters, and local media outlets.   

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 8  

VI. Public Participation Goals for Plan Bay Area 

 

People who take the time and energy to participate should feel it was worth their 

while to join in the discussion and debate. MTC, with assistance from ABAG, 

commits to the following goals and performance benchmarks to measure the 

effectiveness of the public participation program. 

 

1. Promote a transparent process: MTC and ABAG should make every effort 
to make the often-complex planning process transparent so that the public has 
early and continuing opportunities to help shape policies and inform decisions.  

 

2. Encourage broad participation: The process should include the greatest 
number of people possible from throughout the region and reflect the diverse Bay 
Area population, regardless of individuals’ language, personal mobility or ability 
to attend a meeting, subject to available budget and resources. 

 

3. Engage for impact: The feedback received through this Public Participation 
Plan should be analyzed and provided to policy makers in a timely manner to 
inform their decisions. Interested participants should be informed of actions by 
MTC and ABAG at key milestones throughout the planning process.  

 

4. Build knowledge: This program is an opportunity for MTC and ABAG to 
inform a wide range of people about transportation and land-use issues in the Bay 
Area. Each step of the process should include an educational element to set context 
and promote increased understanding of the plan and relevant topics.  

 

T a r g e t e d  P e r f o r m a n c e  M e a s u r e s  

MTC and ABAG will survey participants in an effort to inform and improve future 

outreach and involvement programs. Results from the survey and other data will 

be used to conduct an evaluation of Plan Bay Area public engagement at the 

conclusion of the planning process. Following are specific performance metrics 

that will be tracked: 

 

1. Promote a transparent process 

 For each major technical planning milestone, develop user-friendly web 
content and/or handouts written in plain language explaining: 

“What I want 
is to get done 
what the 
people desire 
to have done, 
and the 
question for me 
is how to find 
that out 
exactly.”   
 
—Abraham Lincoln 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     2 9  

o the purpose of the work 

o significance or impact on other plan elements 

o opportunities for public input 

o decision-making roles 

 Produce user-friendly videos, interactive data visuals, maps and other 
graphic elements to help tell the story.  

 

2. Encourage broad participation 

 The demographics of targeted groups (age, ethnicity, income, primary 
language, geographic location, disability) roughly mirror the 
demographics of the Bay Area’s population.  

 Four thousand or more comments are logged on the Plan Bay Area update 
or associated documents. 

 There are 100,000 visits or “page views” to the Plan Bay Area website.  

 Online engagement options are available for those who are not able to 
attend meetings. 

 Meetings are held in all nine counties, in central locations and accessible 
by public transit to the extent feasible. 

 Meetings are linguistically accessible to 100 percent of participants, with 
three (3) working days’ advance request for translation. (Meeting 
announcements offer translation services with advance request for 
translation services.)  

 All meetings are accessible under the requirements of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA). 

 Plan Bay Area or elements of it are mentioned in at least 200 radio or TV 
broadcasts, online forums and blogs, social media, newspaper articles, 
editorials, commentaries, or other printed media. 

 

3. Engage for impact  

 One hundred percent of written correspondence received is logged, 
analyzed and shared in a timely manner with staff and policy makers for 
consideration. 

 One hundred percent of written correspondence is acknowledged. 

 Policy decisions and other actions are summarized and reported back to 
the database of interested residents at key milestones in the process. 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     3 0  

 

4. Build knowledge  

 Sixty percent of participants surveyed “strongly agree or agree” with 
statements that rate Plan Bay Area public participation efforts provided:  

o Sufficient opportunity to comment/ask questions 

o Clear information at an appropriate level of detail 

o An opportunity to learn about transportation and land use issues 

o An opportunity to hear other perspectives and different points of 
view 

 

 

 

 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



dra
ft

Plan Bay Area Update:  Key Milestones 2014–2017
M

ile
st

on
es

OctSep Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Phone
Poll

Public WorkshopsPublic WorkshopsPublic Workshops

Policy Element

Public Participation Plan þ

Scenario
Development
Approach þ

Goals þ

þ

Project Performance 
Call For Projects ¨

Project Performance
Assessment

Operations & Maintenance
Need Assessments ¨

þ

Regional Forecasts
Regional
Forecast
Approach Final Forecast

Methodology &
Preliminary Forecast þ¨

Transportation Revenue Forecast ¨

Scenario Analysis
Adopt Preferred Scenario 
Land Use Distribution 
& Transportation 
Investment Strategy þ

þþþþ

Draft & Final Plan

Prepare Draft Plan and Draft EIR

Conduct Air Qualilty Conformity
and Title VI/EJ Analysis

Release Draft Plan & Draft EIR

Adopt Plan & EIR þ

¨ ABAG/MTC Information

þþþþ ABAG/MTC Action

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 M
IL

ES
TO

N
ES

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t &

 
Pu

bl
ic

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t 

2016 20172014 2015

Performance 
Targets

  

þþþþ

Release Air Qualilty Conformity 
and Title VI/EJ Analysis

Release 
Defined
Scenarios

Release 
Scenario/Targets
Evaluation

Attachment A

¨

M
TC

 G
ra

p
hi

cs
.p

b 
—

 1
.2

9.
15

Goals &  
Performance  

Targets

Policy Element

Jobs, Housing, 
Population, Travel Demand

& Transportation 
Revenue

Forecasts

Transportation
Projects & 
Programs

Assessment

Project Performance

Alternative Land Use 
Distributions &
Transportation 

Investment Strategies

Scenario Analysis

EIR
&

Plan

Plan Development

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



P U B L I C   P A R T I C I P A T I O N   P L A N   F O R   P L A N   B A Y   A R E A       |     3 2  

 
Attachment B – 
Responsibilities & Roles:  2017 Plan Bay Area 
Major Tasks Advisory Decision-Making 

 

A B E F G H I 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

Bo
ar

d 
 

Re
gi

on
al

 A
dv

is
or

y 
 

W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
 

Po
lic

y 
A

dv
is

or
y 

Co
un

ci
l 

Re
gi

on
al

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

  

M
TC

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 
&

 A
BA

G
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Bo

ar
d 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

 

MTC Joint MTC ABAG Joint ABAG MTC 

1. Policy Element       

Goals        
Performance Targets        
       

2. Regional Forecasts       

Population/Employment/Housing Forecasts       
Transportation Revenue Forecast       
       

3. Project Performance       

Call For Projects       
Project Performance Assessment       
Operations & Maintenance Needs Assessment       
       

4. Scenario Analysis       

Define & Evaluate Scenarios       
Adopt Preferred Scenario  
[Land Use Distribution+  
Transportation Investment Strategy] 

      

       

5. Draft and Final Plan       

Draft EIR       
Draft Plan       
Air Quality Conformity Analysis       
Final EIR       
Final Plan       
       

 
 Input/Information 
 Action/Decision 
 

NOTE: Information provided is tentative and subject to change. 

Action items presented jointly to MTC’s Planning Committee and ABAG’s Administrative Committee may seek a 
recommendation from one or both committees.  
 

Item 5, Final Draft MTC PPP



Blank Page 



 Date: February 25, 2015 

 W.I.: 1112 

 Referred by: Planning 

  

 

 

 

ABSTRACT 

Resolution No. 4174 

 

This resolution adopts the MTC Public Participation Plan.  

 

This resolution supersedes MTC Resolution No. 3821.  

 

 

 

 

Item 5, Abstract



 Date: February 25, 2015 

 W.I.: 1112 

 Referred by:  Planning 

 

Re: MTC Public Participation Plan 

 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 

RESOLUTION 4174 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is the regional 

transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay Area pursuant to Government 

Code Section 66500 et seq. and is the federally designated metropolitan planning 

organization for the San Francisco Bay Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, MTC is committed to involving Bay Area residents, as well as 

public agencies and officials, Tribal governments, freight providers and other interested 

parties in the development of transportation plans and programs in a manner consistent 

with federal legislation, Moving Ahead for the 21st Century (Map 21, PL 112-141) and 

pursuant to requirements of the Federal Highway Administration and the Federal Transit 

Administration that metropolitan planning organizations adopt and periodically update 

public participation plans [23 CFR Part 450 and 49 CFR Part 613]; and 

 

 WHEREAS, MTC is committed to implementing California Senate Bill 375 

(Chapter 728, 2008 Statutes), which calls upon metropolitan planning organizations to 

adopt participation plans to engage the public in development of the regional 

transportation plan/sustainable communities strategy; and 

 

WHEREAS, MTC in March 2006, as part of adopting principles on 

Environmental Justice, committed to “Create an open and transparent public participation 

process that empowers low-income communities and communities of color to participate 

in decision making that affects them”; and 

 

Item 5, Abstract



WHEREAS, MTC, recognizing the value to be gained from listening to and 

learning from many voices from throughout the diverse nine-county Bay Area, developed 

the attached Public Participation Plan after numerous conversations, meetings, surveys, 

focus groups and a public meeting; now, therefore, be it 

 

RESOLVED, that MTC adopts the Public Participation Plan attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as Attachment A; be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that Attachment A shall be revised periodically by MTC as part of 

its ongoing commitment to inform and include the people of the Bay Area in its decision-

making process; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED, that this resolution supersedes MTC resolutions 3821 (Public 

Participation Plan, 2007), 2648 (Federal Public Involvement Procedures, 2003) and 3351 

(Public Involvement Action Plan, 2001), and be it further 

 

RESOLVED that the Executive Director is authorized to implement and 

administer the Commission’s Public Participation Plan, and shall submit a copy of this 

resolution to the Federal Highway Administration and the Federal Transit 

Administration, and to other agencies as appropriate. 

 

 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 

 

 

________________________________________________ 

    Chair 
 

 

The above resolution was entered into 

by the Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission at a regular meeting of 

the Commission held in Oakland, 

California on February 25, 2015. 

 

Item 5, Abstract



 Date: February 25, 2015 

 W.I.: 1112 

 Referred by: Planning 

  

 

 Attachment A 

 Resolution No. 4174 

 

 
 

 

The Public Participation Plan is on file in the offices of the Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission, MetroCenter, 101 Eighth Street, Oakland, CA 94607.  

 

Item 5, Abstract



INSERT 
 

Attachment A to MTC RES-4174 

is located at 

 

J:\COMMITTE\Planning 

Committee\2015\February\05b_FinalDraft 

PPP and PBA Apendix A_1-30-15_to 

Planning.pdf 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Item 5, Abstract



Blank Page 



 

TO: MTC Planning Committee/ABAG Administrative 

Committee 

DATE: February 6, 2015 

FR: MTC Executive Director/ABAG Executive Director   

RE: Priority Development Areas Criteria Review 

 

Background 

In 2007 through the FOCUS program, ABAG and MTC in collaboration with other regional 

agencies, cities and counties, transit agencies, congestion management agencies, and 

stakeholders created a framework to have local governments self-identify Priority 

Development Areas (PDAs) to help support future growth in transit served, infill locations.  

The Priority Conservation Area (PCA) designation was created at the same time. 

 

Since 2007, over 190 PDAs have been nominated by cities and counties and adopted at the 

regional level, with PDAs serving as a primary framework for Plan Bay Area and other 

regional programs such as the One Bay Area Grant program. Among the PDAs, approximately 

120 are considered “Planned” with locally adopted planning and zoning supportive of the PDA 

designation.  The remainder are considered “Potential” in locations where the local community 

has not yet enacted a neighborhood or area-level plan and related zoning. 

 

The criteria developed through FOCUS identified three criteria for areas proposed for PDA 

designation:  

 

 The area is within an existing community. 

 The area is near existing or planned fixed transit (or served by comparable bus service).  

 The area is planned or is planning for more housing.  

 

These terms are defined as: 

 

Area: the planning area being proposed for designation as a Priority Development Area. Since 

the program seeks to support area or neighborhood planning rather than a project-by-project 

approach to development, the recommended area size is at least 100 acres, which is 

approximately a 1⁄4 mile radius.  

 

Existing Community: the area is within an existing urbanized area, lies within an urban growth 

boundary or limit line if one is established, and has existing or planned infrastructure to 

support development that will provide or connect to a range of services and amenities that meet 

the daily needs of residents making non motorized modes of transportation an option.  

Item 6



2 

 

 

Housing: the local jurisdiction is planning for a significant increase in housing units in the area 

to a minimum density of the selected place type from the Station Area Planning Manual, 

including affordable units, which can also be a part of a mixed use development that provides 

other daily services, maximizes alternative modes of travel, and makes appropriate land use 

connections.  

 

Near Transit: (1) an area around an existing rail station or ferry terminal (typically a half-mile 

around the station), (2) an area served by a bus or bus rapid transit corridor with minimum 

headways of 20 minutes during peak weekday commute periods or (3) an area defined as a 

planned transit station by MTC’s Resolution 3434.   

 

The criteria for “Near Transit” was amended in 2010 to require that PDAs be within ½ mile of 

either: a) an existing rail station or ferry terminal; b) along a bus or bus rapid transit corridor 

with minimum headways of 20 minutes during peak weekday commute periods; or c) a 

planned transit station included in MTC’s Resolution 3434.  PDAs already adopted were 

grandfathered in at the time of this change. 

 

Discussion 

These criteria continue to serve the regional agencies well and have created wide support from 

jurisdictions across the Bay Area.  Through the MTC/ABAG-sponsored PDA Planning Grant 

Program (previously known as the Station Area Planning Program), jurisdictions have adopted 

plans for 66,000 housing units, 50 million square feet of commercial space and 110,000 jobs—

all with convenient access to transit and local amenities. The location of PDAs helped inform 

land use distributions and regional transportation investments in Plan Bay Area as well as the 

distribution of flexible county funds through the One Bay Area Grant. Following adoption of 

the Plan, PDAs have become a central part of Plan Bay Area implementation efforts and 

related collaborative efforts with local jurisdictions, regional partner agencies, transit agencies, 

county congestion management agencies and stakeholders. 

 

In response to a request by ABAG Executive Board members, ABAG and MTC staff reviewed 

the PDA program criteria, focusing specifically on the “Near Transit” requirement—the 

subject of the request.  

 

As described above, the adopted criteria requires that areas inside a PDA typically be within ½ 

mile of a rail station, ferry terminal; a bus or bus rapid transit corridor with minimum 20 

minute headways during peak weekday commute periods; or a planned transit station included 

in MTC’s Resolution 3434. The rationale for setting a ½ mile boundary is to ensure that PDA 

residents and employees of PDA businesses have convenient access to reliable transit service 

and to improve the use and cost-effectiveness of public transit. This approach is consistent with 

MTC’s Resolution 3434 transit oriented development policy which is designed to ensure that 

local jurisdictions plan for transit-supportive land uses and densities around the region’s transit 

investments. Locating a jurisdiction’s high and medium density development closest to transit 

makes sense economically (larger employers seek locations within walking distance of transit 

and density supports small local businesses); environmentally (increased transit use reduces the 

need to drive and greenhouse gas emissions); and in terms of public health (people that live or 

work close to transit are more likely to walk or bike to and from the transit station or stop).  

Item 6



3 

 

 

A large body of peer-reviewed research including the Transportation Research Board’s Report 

95 on Transit Oriented Development, has found that residents or employees of an area are less 

likely to use transit service beyond approximately ¼ mile of a station or stop.  By electing to 

allow PDAs to extend ½ mile from transit (as opposed to ¼ mile), the ABAG Executive Board 

provided flexibility to jurisdictions and transit agencies to maximize the development potential 

around the station, consistent with adopted regional policy. While a limited number of transit 

users will access transit without a car beyond the ½ mile, the radius helps identify the highest 

priority land around key transit investments.   

 

To recognize the importance of providing residents of communities outside of a PDA with 

access to its transit service and amenities, the One Bay Area Grant provides funding for 

projects that connect these communities to PDAs. This approach continues to support focused 

growth around the region’s transit and infrastructure investments (within PDAs) while 

improving access to goods, services, and convenient transit for residents that are otherwise less 

likely to access them  in general and by foot or bicycle in particular. 

 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends retaining the current PDA criteria without modification.  Based on the 

history of the PDA criteria and a review of transit access studies, the criteria continues to 

effectively serve regional and local planning efforts. Staff further recommends that this item be 

forwarded by the ABAG Administrative Committee to the ABAG Executive Board for 

approval. 

 

 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 

Steve Heminger     Ezra Rapport 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 6



Blank Page 


	AC 20150213 Call and Notice Final
	AC 20150213 Agenda Final
	AC 20150213 Item 04A MTC Planning Committee Summary Minutes 20150109
	Blank Page 1
	AC 20150213 Item 04Bi Minutes 20141114 Draft
	AC 20150213 Item 04Bii Minutes 20150202 Draft
	AC 20150213 Item 04Biii Memo Authorization Submit CVA Proposal
	Blank Page 1
	AC 20150213 Item 04Biii Res 2015 01-14 SFEP Clean Vessel Act Proposal
	AC 20150213 Item 04Biii CVA Final Proposal
	Blank Page 1
	AC 20150213 Item 04Biii CVA Budget
	SFCVA BUDGET
	SFCVA Budget - Hours
	SFCVA Budget - Cost breakdown with match

	Blank Page 1
	AC 20150213 Item 05 Memo Final Draft MTC Public Participation Plan
	AC 20150213 Item 05 Final Draft MTC PPP 20150206
	Blank Page 1
	AC 20150213 Item 05 Abstract Final DRaft MTC PPP
	Blank Page 1
	AC 20150213 Item 06 Priority Development Area Transit Criteria
	Blank Page 1



